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Independent audft report

To the Board of Directors of Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş. (“the
Bank”) and its consolidated subsidiaries (“the Group9 as at December 31, 2014 and the related
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of income and expense items accounted
under shareholders equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and consolidated statement of
changes in shareholders’ equity for the year then ended and summary of significant accounting
policies and other expianatory notes to the financial statements.

Responsibllity of the Bank’s Board of Directors for the financial statements:

The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the “Regulation on the Principles and
Procedures Regarding Banks’ Accounting Applications and Safeguarding of Documents” published in
the Official Gazette dated November 1, 2006 and numbered 26333 and Turkish Accounting
Standards, Turkish Financial Reporting Standards and other regulations, circulars, communiqus and
pronouncements in respect of accounting and financial reporting made by the Banking Regulation and
Supervision Agency. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control reievant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies.

Auditor’s responsibillty:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the “Regulation on Authorization and Activities of Institutions
to Conduct ndependent Audit in Banka” published in the Official Gazette dated November 1, 2006
and numbered 26333 and with the Independent Auditing Standards which is a part of Turkish Auditing
Standards promulgated by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”).
We planned and performed our audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the consideration of the effectiveness of internal control and
appropriateness of accounting policies applied relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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İndependent auditor’s opin/on:

in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in ali material
respects, the financial position of Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş. and its consolidated subsidiaries as at
December 31, 2014 and the results of its operations and its cash t Iows for the year then ended in
accordance with the prevailing accounting principles and standards set out as per Articles 37 and 38
of the Banking Act No: 5411, and other regulations, communiquös, circulars and pronouncements
made by the Banking Regulation and SupeMsion Agency in respect of accounting and financial
reporting.

Repods on ar/sing from other regulatory requ/rements:

1) in accordance with Article 402 paragraph 4 of the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) no 6102; no
significant matter has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Bank’s
bookkeeping activities for the period January 1 — December 31, 2014 are not in comphance with
the code and provisions ot the Bank’s articles of association in relation to financial reporting.

2) in accordance with Article 402 paragraph 4 of the TCC; the Board of Directors submitted to us
the necessary explanations and provided required documents within the context of audit.

Additiona! paragraph for canvenience transla t/on ta Engiish:

As expiained in detail in Note 1. of Section Three, the effects of difterences between accounting
principles and standards set Dut by regulations in contormity with Articles 37 and 38 of the Banking Act
No: 5411, accounting principles generaHy accepted in countries in which the accompanying
consohdated tinancial statements are to be distributed and international Financial Heporting Standards
(‘İFRS”) have not been quantified in the accompanying consohdated financial statements. Accordingly,
the accompanying consolidated tinancial statements are not intended to present the financiai position,
results of operations and changes in financial position and cash flows in accordance with the
accounting principles generaliy accepted in such countries and FAS.

Güney Bağmsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik Anonim Şirketi
A rnernber timi öf Ernst 8 Young Global Limited

Ethem Kutucular, SMrv{M
Partner

Istanbul, February2, 2015
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The consolidated fınancial report of
Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş. as of December 31, 2014

E-MaiI: fjnciaIreortsaikredi.car

The consolidated financial report for the year end which is prepared in accordance with the “Communiquğ Related to Publiciy
Announced Financial Statements of Banks and Ezplanations and Notes Related to these Financial Statements as regulated by the
Banking Regulatlon and SupeMsion Agency, includes the follawing sections.

• Section one
• Section two
• Section three
• Sectlon four
• Sectlon five
• Sectıon siz
• Sectıon seven

General information about the parent bank
- Consolidated financial statements of the parent bank
- Ezplanations on accounting policies apptled in the related period

Information related to fınancial position of the Group
- Ezplanations and notes related ta consolidated fınancial statements

Other ezplanations
lndependent auditor’s report

Suhsidlarles Assocıates Joint Vontures

1. Yapı Kredi Finansal KiralamaA.O.
2. Yapı Kredi Faktoring A.Ş.
3. Yapı Kredi Yatırım Menkul Değeder A.Ş.
4. Yapı Kredi Porttöy Yönetimi A.Ş.
5. Yapı Kredi Holding B.V.
6. Yapı Kredi Bank Nederland N.V.
7. Yapı Kredi Bank Moscaw
8. Stiching Custody SeMses YKB
9. Yapı Kredi Bank Azerbaijan CJSC
10. Yapı Kredi invest LLC
11. Yapı Kredi Bank MaltaLtd.

1. Banque de Commerce et de
Placements SA.

2. Allianz Yaşam ve Emeklilik A.Ş.

1. Yapı Kredi Koray
Gayrimenkul Yatırım
Ortaklığı A.Ş.

Although, Yapı Kredi Diversifıed Payment Rights Finance Company (the Stmctured Entity> is not a subsidiary of the Bank, it has been
included in the consolidation since the Bank has al 00% central.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year end and notes to these financial statements which are ezpressed
(uniess otherwise stated) in thousands of Turkısh Lira, have been presented based on the accounting books of the Bank prepared in
accordance with Regulatlan on the Principles and Pracedures Regarding Banks’ Accounting and Safeguarding of Documents, Turkish
Accounting Standards, Turkish Financial Reporting Standards and related appendices and interpretations on these, and have been
independentiy audited.

B. ed İZLER
Hea o nancial
Reporti and Accountıng
Executl Vice Presıdent

F. Fü u Akkaı BOZOK
Memb Audit Committee

OOYapKred

lnvestments in subsidiaries, associates and jaint ventures, whose fınancial statements have been
financial statements are as follaws.

consolidated in these consohdated

Mustafa V. KOÇ
Chalrman of the
Board of Dlrectors

/

— şzz:j22
‘GIanni P0. PAPA

hairman ofAuditCommlttee

!lBenedetta NAVARRA Adil G. ÖZTOPRA
Member of Audıt Commlttee Member of Audlt Cmmi en

Contact ınformatıon of the personnel ın charge for addressıng questıons abou’l ıs fınancial report

Name-Surname t TWe
Teıephone Number
Fax Number

Barış Savur / ınternational Reporting and Consolidation Manager
(0212>3396322
(0212> 339 61 05

ğÖŞ*oc UniCreditGmup
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(Convenience translation of publiciy annaunced consolidated financial statements originahy issued
in Turkish, sea in note 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2014
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL’))

Section One

General Information

History of the Parent Bank including its incorporation dale, initial legal status and amendments
to legal status, if any:

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş. (“the Bank”, “Yapı Kredi” or “the Parent Bank”), was established and
started operations on September 9, 1944 with the pernıission of the Council of Ministers No. 3/6710
as a private capital commercial bank authorised to perform alI banking, economic, financial and
commercial activities which are allowed by the laws of the Turkish Republic. The statute of the Bank
has not changed since its incorporation.

Il. Explanation about the Parent Bank’s capital structure, sharehalders holding directly or
indirectly, collectively or individually, the management and controlling power and changes in
current year, if any and explanations on the controlling Group of the Bant

The Parent Banka publiciy traded shares are traded on
the representatives of these shares, Global Depository
Exchange. As of December 31, 2014, 18,20% of the
(December 31, 2012, - 18,20%). The remaining 81,80%
(“KFS”), a joint venture of UniCredit (“UCG”) and Koç Group.

the Borsa Istanbul (“BIST”) since 1987 and
Receipts, are quoted at the London Stock

shares of the Bank are publicly traded
is owned by Koç Finansal Hizmetler A.Ş.

KFS was established on March 16, 2001 to combine Koç Group finance companies under one
organisation and it became the main shareholder of Koçbank in 2002. On October 22, 2002, Koç
Group established a strategic partnership with UCG over KFS.

in 2005, the Bank’s shares that were owned by Çukurova Group Companies and the Saving Deposits
Insurance Fund (“SDIF”) were purchased by Koçbank. in 2006, Koçbank purchased additional shares
of the Bank from BIST and an investment fund and, during the same year, alI rights, receivables, debts
and Iiabilities of Koçbank were transferred to the Bank pursuant the merger of the two banka.

In 2006 and 2007, with the acquisition of Yapı Kredi and its subsidiaries, KFS Group Iaunched
structural reorganisation and the following subsidiaries is still under the control of group were Iegally
merged:

Merging entitles Merger date Merged entity

Yapı Kredi Koçbank October 2, 2006 Yapı Kredi
Yapı Kredi Finansal Kiralama A.0. (‘Yapı Kredi Koç Leasing

Leasing”) December 25, 2006 Yapı Kredi Leasing
Yapı Kredi Faktoring A.Ş. (‘Yapı Kredi Faktoring”) Koç Faktoring December 29, 2006 Yapı Kredi Faktodng
Yapı Kredi Porttöy Yönetimi A.Ş. (“Yapı Kredi Koç Portföy

Porttöy”) December 29, 2006 Yapı Kredi Porttöy
Yapı Kredi Yatırım Menkul Değerler A.Ş. (“Yapı Koç Yatırım

Kredi Menkul’) January 12, 2007 Yapı Kredi Menkul
Yapı Kredi Bank t’Jederland N.V. (“Yapı Kredi NV”) Koçbank Nederland N.V. July 2, 2007 Yapı Kredi NV

After the merger and the share transfer procedures in 2007 and of a capital increase by TL 920 million
in 2008, KFS owns 81,80% of the shares of the Bank.

—1
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(Convenience translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turkish, see in note 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

General information (continued)

ili. Explanations regarding the board of directors, members of the audit commillee, Chief
Executive Offlcer and executive vice presidents, and their areas of responsibility and shares if
any:

As of December 31, 2014, the Parent Bank’s Board of Directors, Members of the Audit Committee,
General Manager and Assistant General Managers are as follows:

Board of Directors Members:

Name Responsibilitv

Mustafa V. KOÇ
Gianni F.G. PAPA
H. Faik AÇIKALIN
Carlo VIVALDI1>
Adil Giray ÖZTOPRAK
Ahmet Fadıl ASHABOĞLU
Benedetta NAVARRA
Francesco GİORDANO
Füsun Akkal BOZOK
Jürgen Dr. KULLNIGG
Laura Stefania PENNA<11
Osman Turgay DURAK

Audit Commiftee Members:

Chairman
Vice Chairman
Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Name Responsibility

Gianni F.G. PAPA Chairman
Adil Giray OZTOPRAK Member
Benedetta NAVARRA Member
Francesco GIORDANO Member
Füsun Akkal BOZOK Member

General Manager and Deputy General Manager:

Name Responsibility

H. Faik AÇIKALIN Chief Executive Officer
Carlo VIVALDI Deputy General Manager

1) According to the decisions taken in the Board of Directors Meating heid on January 19, 2015, it was decided to;

a. end Vice Chairman of the Board role of Gianni F. G. Papa and appoint him as Board Member etfective from February
16, 2015,

b. end Executive Board Mamber role of Carıo Vivaldi and appoint as Vice chalrman of the Board effective trom February
16, 2015,

c. appoint Niccol6 Ubertaııi as Executive Board Member, sub]ect to approval of the first Generaı Assembıy of the Bank,
instead of Laura Stefanie Penna who has reslgned her position as Board Member effective trom February 16, 2015,

d. appıy to BRSA in order to appoint Niccolö Ubertalli as Deputy Generaı Manager of the Bank, instead of carlo Vivaldi
who is going to ıeave his position as Oeputy Generaı Manager, effective from Februaıy 16, 2015.

-2-
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(Convenience translation of publiciy announced consalidated financlal statements originaliy issued
in Turkish, see in nate 1. af secilon three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements as af December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

General informatian (continued)

Assistant General Managers:

Name Responsibility

Akif Cahit ERDOĞAN Information Technologies and Operation Management
Cemal Aybars SANAL Legal Activities Management
Feza TAN Corporate and Commercial Banking Management
Marco IANNACCONE Financial Planning and Administration Management

Mehmet Erkan ÖZDEMİR
Control / Consumer Relations

Mehmet Gökmen UÇAR Retail Credits Management
Mehmet Myrat ERMERT Corporate Communication Management
Mert ONCU Treasury Management
Mert YAZICIOĞLU Private Banking and Asset Management
Nurgün EYUBOĞLU Corporate and Commercial Credit Management
Stefano PERAZZINI Internal Audit / Chief Audit Executive
Süleyman Cihangir KAVUNCU Human Resources and Organization Management
Wolfgang SCHILK Risk Management
Yakup DOĞAN Alternative Distribution Channels
Zeynep Nazan SOMER OZELGIN Retail Banking Management

IV. Information on the individual and corporate shareholders having control shares of the Parent
Bank:

Share amounts Share Paid-in Unpaid
NamelCommercial title (nominal> percentage capital (nominal) portion

Koç Finansal Hizmetler A.Ş. 3.555.712.396,07 %81,80 3.555.712.396,07 -

Koç Finansal Hizmetler A.Ş. is a joint venture of Koç Group, UniCredit Group and Temel Ticaret ve
Yatırım A.Ş.

V. Summary information on the Parent Bank’s activities and service types:

The Parent Banks activities summarized from the article 3 of the articles of association are as follows:

The Parent Bank’s purpose and subject matter in accordance with the Banking Law, regulations and
existing laws include:

• The execution of ali banking activities,
• The execution of alI economic and financiai activities which are aliowed by the regulation,
• The execution of the representation, attorney and agency activities related to the subjects

written above,
• The purchase and sale of share certificates, bonds and alI the capital market instruments, in

accordance with Capital Market Law and regulations.

in case of necessity for performing activities which are useful and required but that are not specified in
the articles of association, a Board of Directors’ proposal is to be presented to the General Assembly.
With the approval of the General Assembly the proposal becomes applicable, subject to the approvals
required by law.

3 2t-
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(Convenlence translation of publiciy announced consoHdated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turkish, see in note 1. of section three>

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements as of December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

General information (continued)

As ot December 31, 2014, the Parent Bank has 1.002 branches operating in Turkey and 1 branch in
overseas (December 31, 2013- 948 branches operating in Turkey, 1 branch in overseas).

As of December 31, 2014, the Parent Bank has 17.457 employees (December 31, 2012 - 15.683
employees). The Parent Bank together with its consolidated subsidiaries is referred to as the “Group”
in these consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2014 the Group has 18.534
employees (December3l, 2013- 16.680 employees).

The accompanying consolidated tinancial statements and notes to these tinancial statements are
expressed in thousands ot Turkish Lira (TL), unless otherwise stated.

VJ. Difterences between the communiqu6 on preparation of consolidated financial statements of
Banks and Turkish Accounting Standards and short explanation about the entities subject to
fulI consolidation or proportional consolidation and entities which are deducted from equity or
entities which are not included in these three methods:

According to Communiquö of the Preparation Consolidated Financial Statements and Turkish
Accounting Standards, Banque de Commerce et de Placements SA, one ot the associates of the
Bank, and Yapı Kredi Koray Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı, an entity under common control, ara
consolidated through “Equity Method” in the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Allianz Yaşam ve Emeklilik A.Ş., on which the Bank has indireot participation, is also
consolidated through “Equity Method” in the consolidated tinancial statements ot the Group. These
entities are taken into account as a deduction item in shareholders equity for the purpose ot
calculation ot capital adequacy ratio.

Yapı Kredi Kültür Sanat Yayıncılık Tie. ve San. A.Ş., and Enternasyonal Turizm Yatırım A.Ş., which
are subsidiaries ot the Bank, are not consolidated into the Bank’s consolidated tinancial statements in
acoordance with Communiquö of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements since these
entities are not tinancial institutions.

AlI other subsidiaries are tully consolidated.

Vii. The existing or potential, actual or legal obstacles on the immediate transfer of shareholder’s
equity between the Bank and its subsidiaries or reimbursement of liabilities:

None.

MUHASEBECI
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(Convenience translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy Issued
in Turkish, ses in note I. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Cansolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
(Uniess otherwlse stated amounts are expressed in thausands of Turklsh Lira («TL’))

Section two
Consolidated financial statements

1. Consolidated balance sheet (Statement of Financial Position)

Current Poçiod Priar Period
(31fl22014) (31(1 211013)

Nato
(Section

Asette Five) TL P0 Tatil TL FC Tattı

TattI atsete 116.279.742 78.618.963 194.958.705 92.197.519 68.112.325 160.309,844

t-s 2.990.682 20.223.983 23214.685 1,330.475 17.660,274 18.990.749

i-b 1.044.488 165.303 1.209.792 1.529.329 193.835 1.723.164
1.044428 165303 1209.702 1.529 329 103.835 1.723.104

63.529 25622 05.151 30.438 24513 54367
4.037 4.037 20119 20.719

)‘ 970 839 139682 1.110.521 1.427.991 168.12 t 1.590.112

83 , 03 50.171 1.195 5(366

I-ç 950.505 2.941.370 3.891.875 516.091 3.493.035 4.009.120
1.568.759 - 1.589,750 2.879.994 48.453 2,928,447
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42.094.032
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243,490

41.636.503
010.799

402 766)
1.172.175
3,61e- 646
3314 657

304 029
2 60,370
260,370

248.247
1.320.503

i-d,e 15.325.839
4 3 .2 10

13 892.754
.385.875

t-t 84.713.077
63054 068

1,170.818

82,483,250
3.762,524

12703.515)
1.596.058

6-9 1.937.723
1,927,769

9.954
-9 200,717

06.214
4.503

4.503
i-h 2.300

2,300
19.054
(9.054
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Losnı and recatvatin
Loana art recatijaties
Lo-ana 10 banka nak gioup
Covemmoni 0601 aaCunhiea
Ouiar
I.oans todor 000550

Spoodic prov,s:ons (-1
Factoring receivebita
Neid-to-matudty inveelmente (net)
Govamironi dahi aenjriisa
Dolar narkaitüla 10507,513

inteatmente in aeaocietea (net)
DonsoLidaiod based on epstiy maihod
0 noon sohda le d
invtslmtnls in flnanciai aasooialea
invesiments in son iınanoal aaaoda?oa
Subsidiariea (net)
Uncontolidated iinanc:ai subsldiariea
Unoonsoiidaltd non-linanciai subttdiarits
Joint venturee (net)
Aocounlod based on equiIy mo?hod
Un consoiidaia d
Financial Joint venluras
Noniinanciar oıni vonluros
Leate receivablee
FinanoiaL laata rereivabias
Optmiio0 basa roooivabiua
c7ltrar
Unaamed nOsme 5.)
Derivetire Iinonciet saatte heid tor hedging

Far va’on hod9e
Dada iloa hada
Foreign nal Lnvoslmani hodge
Property and epuipment (net)
intengibit saatte (net)
Dood*’i

invealmtnt properiy (net)
Tat atset
Curren? Isa asa.?
Doiorred la, assel
Aeeena held for ressie and reiated ta d)acantinuod operations
(net)
Osld for sabo puipaana

Roia?od 0 di500nlbnuod oporaiions
Obner saatte

248.247
t .32 6, 503

18.674.097
43,610

6254,654
2 345 833

126.807.109
125,534.067

1,414 314

124 119.753
4.379,323

53.106.281)
1761. 233
5.556.359
5,242386

313,983
461,087
459 584

4,503

4,503
2.300

2,300
19.054
19.054

46.453

3.995.850
392

3419501
495.967

33.348.685
32,009247

4,4,459

33,684,788
570.946

(326 338)
876.724

3311.930
2,964,382

347,555
253.462
253.462

1,701,131
1,176,863
9.293.502

37.381
7.559 125
(.390 996

66.274.045
£5.336.619

586 364

64,750,247
3,050.927

(2.118.693)
1.185.611
3.577.663
3 562,986

‘4_On
998.002

93 499
4.503

4.503
2.300

2.300
10.376

0.376

1,749.554
1 178.803

13.209.362
37,773

11278.626
t 892 903

190.623,830
93,435.858

.000,523

95 435,035
3,033 073

(2445.001)
2.141335
6,889.603
6,527.368

352235
451.464
446 961

4.503

4.503
2.300

2,300
10.376
10.376

1-1 1.327.249 3.678.001 5.005.250 5.624.174 2,853.198 3.977.372

1.060553 4,309,742 5970.295 ‘.257705 3,359,953 3017,658

(306.765)
4.808

4.508

(333 304)
-3 256146

1 77,695
78251

4< 1004.686
t-i 1.434.859

973 433
455 926

6-en
962.636

i-n 163,038

i-o 154.664
154,004

(-8 1.536.347

031.741) (965045)
- 256.146

177.895
78251

48.105 1109.787
22.547 1.457,365

979493
22.547 477873

8,666 972.306
3272 3272
5,390 i69034

(630.3 165
467.627
307,375
160.252

(233.531)
462.819
307. 375
155444

970.323
1.380.633

979 493
201,140

66.090
7,407

78,003

40.218 1.015.541
12.957 1.393.590

979.493
12.357 414,097

eli 155.485 158.298
829 955.485 159.298

9092.507 2.629.034 1337574

0.235
3,746
4 489

1.097
1,097

882.344

94.245
11.153
83 .092

‘59-395
159.395

2.220.218

The accompanying explanations and notes form an integral part of these consolidated
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(Convenience translation ot publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turklsh, sec in nato 1. ot sedion three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
(unıess otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL’))

1. Consolidated balance sheet (Statement of Financial Position)

Curren: Period Prior Period
(31(1 2/2014) (31/12/2013)

Ilote
Uab.Iilie* (Seotion

Five) TL P0 Totel TL PC Tot.I

Deposito Il’e 62.903934 44.726.637 107.630,631 44.470.043 44.011.738 88.481 .781
1.1 Depzs4s ol ila flank’s risk gmup 7.450.703 6.474.508 13.925,21 3 %3.042 7.083 348 11.052 390

.2 Dinar 55453.291 38252129 93.705 420 40 507.001 36.922.390 77429.391

Il. Derivsbve 8(0400)81 tiü(Iities held for Irading ll-b 700.537 159.769 650,326 775.635 88.098 863.633

ili. Funde borrowed 0-6 2.071.547 19.345.409 21.416.956 2.049.476 17242.089 19291.567

IV. honey moritetı 6.408.838 2.365.914 8.774.762 2.461.502 3.143.784 5.605.288

4 1 F,-nds 1cm ınsomarü, monay mateS . - - - -

4.2 ııdo frcnı (Oanbul 5106k eoran3a m04sy mark:: 2.572:03 2.572 663 2.211.044 ‘ 2211.064

4.3 FL00spmo1duMerrnpolchaseagşarnenls 3.036,775 2.365,914 6.202083 250.439 3,143.784 3.394222

V. Marktfsbte securihjes l.sued (net) II’ç 3.287.064 10.068.873 13.355.937 1.559.777 6.763.066 S.492,943

5 1 ‘.638.373 1.712.209 3.350.562 1.165920 827.050 1.992970

5.2 Assal bacaad secunhias . 3,054.498 3,054 408 - 2.576.083 2.576.093

5.3 Bonda 1.648,631 5,302.166 6,950.857 493,857 3,359,933 3853.790

Vi. Funda
6.1 Bouomor 0815 . _ .

6.2 050m ‘

Vii. Mitcehhaneoue poyables 7.057.974 1.680.362 8,738.336 6.690.683 1.577.616 7,268,299

mit. 010cr IIhbi(iIIes (1-d 1.374.470 1.596,330 2.970.800 1.158.174 762.297 1,920.471

it Fectorlng paysbles . . .

X. Lease payable. Il, . . .

10.1 Onancial Iran: payablos
10,2 OperalLonal baro payason , ‘ .

103 050m . ,

104 DrIsrrod sosa aapenses (‘1 , ,

Xt. Derivativa hinancial Ibabilitbes hefd ‘on hedging II’f 229,099 211.349 440.448 30.573 355.822 386.395
11,1 Fasvaluatredga 657 . 657
112 Caslı lee belge 228 442 211.329 439.791 33573 355 822 386 395

11.3 Fcıe:3n ne? brveilrnnfl? irooge . . .

XII. Prorisione U’g 3.651.981 707.056 3.350.037 2.507.561 572.442 3,080.063

12.1 General can bass prczsıcn 1 297235 630586 1.927.521 1010544 510,329 1.520.673

12.2 Rnstmclunng pravınions . .

123 Rnsoıve for empIOyOe nghts 261.025 17.019 276044 222 256 13.579 238,035

124 nnuranne 10085,041 praasions (neil . . ,

12.5 Oker prcvisions 1.093.721 59,451 1.153.172 1.272.561 49,534 1.047.095

xrn. Tez Nability II’ğ 420.462 6.766 427,228 221,065 2.010 223,015

13.1 Cunenl as %abdIy 320 262 4.327 424 799 225.065 683 221.754

73.2 Defoool an liabilrny ‘ 2.439 2.439 ‘ 5 321 1.321

XJV. LInbIhbtias for propedy and equbpment heid for salt and related
10 diccontinuad operatione (nal)

14.1 HnId ler sale
14.2 Eldialed la diaconhlnaed operal<ons . - ,

XV, Subordbnated mani 111ı . 6,770,549 6,770,549 - 6.480,981 5.460.981

XVL Shareholdere cquily ((-1 20.178.005 35.700 20.213.705 18,756,080 (470.570) 16.285.510

16.1 Pad-bn caplal 4,347.051 . 4,347,051 4,347,051 - 4,347.055

56,2 Caplal rasorvas 1.552,046 38.194 1.618.240 845,508 (472.863) 372,645

16.2.1 Shara premium 543,881 . 543,885 543,881 . 543.881

56.2.2 SOnra cancollallon proliis . , .

16.2.3 Malçalabbo saauıllian vaiaallon dillerences [5,’ 193539 197.929 391.408 241.315) 123.197 (118.115)
16.2.4 Prcpany and ofluipmenl ravalaal)on dilberonces 18485 ‘ 50.485 -

16.2.5 Inlang)ble assais ıavalualLon dilloroncas
16,2.6 flava)uason dilleronces ol InsanlmenI propefly .

16,2.7 Oonua ehame lere inveslmrnls in associatas, sutsıdranne and
)oInl vanluron 4.503 ‘ 4503 4,503 ‘ 4.503

16.29 Hedgrng lands (oileciıve porlion) (350 925) 161.7355 512.661) 239,825 536.360) <356 235)
162.9 Valu: incrnano e alooo 0:51 ler ssk mal rerared le d sccn’.:nund

00404,006

162.10 01cm capilal mser.os 1.172.564 ‘ 1.172.564 208,614 ‘ 298 614

16.3 Prof.? rosoışns 10838470 (4941 10.807.976 8.974,058 2.293 0976 35?

16.3.1 Legal reseftos 041.000 ‘ 641.000 463,786 ‘ 463.786

16.32 Sralas FaSO?966

16.33 Ealraord:r.anı FestivaL 9.015.284 ‘ 9.515,264 8.051.473 - 0.051 473

56.3.4 Orürer proli ‘oserves 352.186 493) 351.692 454 790 2293 465 092

564 irr.e or 5155) 0439976 ‘ 3.139.976 4.586.936 ‘ 4 556 936
64 Pılor yaam’ i060rne er :0:8) 1,393 961 . 1.393065 527.953 ‘ 927 984

10,4.2 Curren? yaar neler on bass) 2,056 055 . 2,056015 3,658,952 ‘ 3.658.952

16.5 l4nodiy )nlereah Il-) 462 - 462 2,527 ‘ 2.527

Torol liabllilies and sharaholders’ equily 101.263.971 87,674,734 1 94,958.705 79.780,471 80,529.373 1 60.309.844

The accompanying explanations and notes Iorm an inlegral pan of these consolidated finafldiaLsfatö.htT’ ‘‘
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(Convenience translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial stalements originafly issued
in Turkish, see in note 1. ol section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turklsh Lira (“TL”))

Il. Consolidated off-balance sheet commitments

Tolol oWbalanc. .büloommltnonls (8+0) 299044,649 107.332.144 407166702 239.844.509 159.325.664 399.275.263

011,7.90 Period Pdot P.,lod
)31112l20149 (3111 2420739

Not.
9S.<1on

slv.! 76. FC Toto! 75 50 Tonu

k Dft-bj,i. .2ı..0 commiun.e0s {I.II.IIfl 110.310,117 145.577.134 254,307310 101237.404 124,753,142 226,930.540

1. Gü.mntrn.ndssn.nII.. 19’.-13 15.903,223 32.773,616 30,710,632 12.500,95$ 25.168,010 38,007,616

11 LtIle,scl 8,68781960 15913419 22081 794 37 995212 12010493 14820899 27647293

1 1 1 Güataniees tubled 1 081816 lenlet 934 503 713 716011 1 220623 462 035 567 448 1 130 496

1 1 2 Guarar,loo, g’vonlo’ l1’oşa trade cpo’alon 2 316159 11 151 474 23 467 633 1 521 089 12927 171 15439930

113 01berlolo,solguşorooe 13013536 213639 13380055 10514493 234393 11058644

1-2 Dar.. aooe54erees - 920 002 120 982 010580 118644

1 2-1 ımon ele’ 11 aoceplanco - 120 982 126987 918686 118688

i 2 2 0068 bar 3008993668 - - , - -

03 LelIoesMCotğd 3 7059530 7859933 1 200 9704223 8770481

T 3 t Docsmetflaty Lefleta c4 oorol 3 7 859 528 7 059 533 T 208 6 695 080 6 696 380

132 Olhetieilersolctedt - 302 302 ‘ Il 003 Il 093

1 4 Protinancrng goon 69 güaTIeo

1-6 Endorsomenls
1 5-1 Endorsemems Ta The Coniral Oank ol the Rspubllc of Turkoy - - , - , -

1 5 2 0166, endornemenls , -

1,6 6308,51185 lanüe pürotrase 0681811888
1 7 Fadonng 9107091880 , . ,

1-8 Dibe’ güaranlees 69.002 788-094 050-798 70350 2-016-957 2,086 307

09 Olhnrwarrantlen ‘ 9-996 016 1 916.016 - 1.515143 1,515-143

Il. Commltmenis 111.8.1 42,019,920 3.740,589 46,669,518 37,495,036 7,705,077 40.281,015

2.0 Irovrooblo mmiments 42.810,920 3.503 210 46 423.130 37 495.938 7.592,903 49048931

2.0 1 Mset purohase and oaiecommsmenls 937,272 2 206.515 3,142,787 1 016 025 6.966,288 0,702319

2.1,2 DepoOl ü6I0856 0811681090080805806896 ‘ 0 8 ‘ 0 0

2.9.3 Share copla1 ooınlmlmonin 0 068011818£ and stğnldia,les , , ,

2.1.4 Loan graniing 08009’imenhs 6 945 917 1 178 342 8,125 659 5 903 104 510,050 8 394.154

2 1 5 Socunllnı lseue blake80go commilments , , ,

2 1 0 0003T158006T8 ot 080,70 dnpodi requsrementl - ,

2 7 7 ca’n’iooseofs ot tseques 5681397 5904 302 5385711 - 5 305 711

21 8 Ta and 58089544.55,68, sopal coln7lmeds 46 406 ‘ 44 481 41 007 ‘ 41 307

21 6 Cşr’nıseelo 068 oee±r ceol 6mb 25612776 ‘ 25 512 778 20 610763 ‘ 21 610 702

2.1 13 c-r4310190n18 0 aeöl 93,119093 br.6O93 83008003 p5041891108 11 149 - 10 149 7 385 ‘ 7 365

21 Il PocoreaNestrn sMfl 6818 cawoalmsms 11 maoke!aUe 8606,04$ - , - , -

21.12 Pa0,bleo 1cr sImI salo crrnlmet4s 11 mo4eatOe 9608911,65 , , , -

2.1 13 0153, titootca3o aceamemonls 3 387.035 117,045 3534093 2793 864 75 750 2825 722

2 2 Omocaole comrMmees - 245 309 248 389 - 232,974 232 974

221 RenocaNe ban otaling ccecm.omee4s 749637 149537 167 212 157,212

22,2 057m rovocoNe ccerntr,enls ‘ 96 552 96 552 - 85 762 65 762

IL D.elvMlv. 0n69.I h,089m9.ets 111-6-t 504.874 110053,079 160693,053 50682,505 91799,107 142,631,615

31 C-oc’sal6ss 14-8506! InOruneorü ot 601007904630506 9 517 874 22136823 61 547 497 12 175 303 25402 330 37 629 513

31 0 Tt80osdSoOS tottsna!ue helge 401 084 699 330 1 150 422 1 104 783 1 854212 2610175

3 92 Ttor,s,tlicos la, canh Sowsedge 15 330 520 20 438 405 43 767 075 99 079 800 23246810 35 077 770

3 1.3 Tmosacllons la’ lore 99 net nveOmenl hodgo ‘ . ,

32 Tradrng 80588001198 39 505 360 07,310 156 127,593,456 30 066 145 66306,777 108002122

3,2,9 Fonvard Iotergncumoncy boy/ooo Itanaaolions 2,539 304 4590693 7,’ 10 597 3 076 427 5 587 169 9463606

3 2,9 1 Forward Toteigncunency tansadlons’buy 630 495 2 537 700 3 477 155 1 108,191 4 003,188 5.014 309

3 2,9.2 Foiward loroign cunency ‘ansacilonsosIl 1.599 889 2642.613 3,642 802 2 770 226 1.579021 4,349 217

3,2,2 Swap Itanaacll ona Telalnd 90 orelgn cunency and in cr691 tales 29 413,079 05 051,539 94,464,610 27 446 282 48,100 440 75 548 722

3,2,2,1 Foreignourrenoy noop-buy 12,708,918 26,015.209 30,823,927 Il 031 782 20 657,042 32,491 704

3 2,2,2 Foreign cuI000cy 549p4691 18,706.161 22.276 088 39,982,249 15 805,520 16 876,174 32 482 684

3,2,2,3 lnlmesl toto swap’buy ‘ 7,679 621 7,579 621 ‘ 5,283,182 5.283.982

3.2 2,4 lnlesesl role swap’oeSl ‘ 7,979 621 7,979,829 5,293,182 5,283(82

3,2,3 Forei 9° ourrntcy, Itlerenl role andsecaülies oplions 3,625 651 12,727.219 16,852 870 6 493 436 12,273934 18,757,270

3,2,3,9 Foreign cutteney opltors.buy 1 777,396 2 631 940 4 700,265 2 028 204 4,303 865 6,332 589

3.2,32 Foreign currency açlsons-snll 2 011 110 2 70’ 972 4 703.082 3 564 908 3,250.977 8,395 ‘85

3.233 50987669 colo opllots’bt0r - 3516649 3 546,849 70000 2,359,526 2 430 328

3.2.34 1,196,089 toto oprlons’stll - 3 539 649 3,548 649 70800 2,359,528 2 430 326

32.36 Securitles oplrons-huy 55 500 ‘ 55 500 020104 ‘ 829104
32 3 6 Secontles oplions-nelI il 725 ‘ Il 725 429 259 ‘ 429 250

324 Foter8n curtncy l11uees
3 2 1 1 P68047! cnrrmty UL’tos-b,/ ,

321,2 F68117!cSrrencyT68uTov-6e1 ,
-

326 968m003ta9el698005 , , ,

3 2 5.1 980mo69 tao T890168-bW , , . . -

3252 Ino,o89ta!etıSwo.-seiI - .

326 018cr 3 717 180 5508 785 9.275 971 650000 375 314 9 233303

0. Cuslody.otdpl.dg.. nc.Io.d (IV.öV,VI) 161,533.531 40,764,900 221209,480 131.707.185 34.502.522 173,268.717

IV. IT.en, hşW in tu.Tody 67.500.120 6499003 74090011 61314014 5853140 07.108,162

4.1 C4,11ome,lond 09318011110 bolarcos , . 12 2

42 sredw607s001rn!ıosse:dlnusody 93433151 5823785 56685916 40522433 5160024 54082487

43 C9’acacsteceNedIalcoOeOon 14227339 85339 13:12677 9785253 130746 9554990

44 0060r.0004JrcrIs,ece000dIoe01Oed’ot 2906063 593060 3530 753 2610553 553029 3723382

45 0506, assela 08085-811 la, ooileğıon - 20 819 20 096 ‘ 33 537 30 537

4 6 Anselo 76cc/ted lar pusüc ollenng , ,

4 7 Ohet 0,805 üsde’ cuslody 41 775 5 07’ 48.048 7 775 ‘ 7 775

4.6 CusoodLans , . .

V. Pledo.. t.celo.d 112,458,019 32,656.709 148.115,628 76.070,903 27.183,253 103,273.156

5,0 Markelab le secutoles 976,923 257 179 380 204 520 237 204 753

52 Ouaranleo toros 641.970 275 098 9 117.067 650 445 430 490 1 120135

53 Commodily 20 438 5 805 33,341 22,503 7.336 30 319

54 Wananlo , , ,

5,5 Properlles 69 897,000 24504871 94 409,097 52 806,977 05 792 532 72480000

5 6 Olhe, plod9od llems 47 592,205 7,065,872 40,377,957 22 474777 8 945,452 29 424 229

5.7 Pledged lems’depoütory ‘ 4,098 4,906 , 3,805 3 905

Vi. Acc.pted lndepced.et guacenle.. and worconolu 1,470,484 1,691,360 3,007.042 1.313,270 1,485,020 2.708.300

The accompanying expianations and notes form an integra pad of Ihese consohdated

İ’roio 17
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(Convenience translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originally issued
in Turkish, sea in nde 1. ot secfion dine)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
(Unıess otherwlse stated amounts are ezpressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL))

1fl. Consolidated income statement

Restated
Nota Current Period Prior Period

(Settion (01/01- (01/01-
Income and ezpense Itema Ave) 3111212014) 31/12/2013)

ı. ınterost incame ıv-a 11633.965 9.951563
1.1 Interest on loans IV-a-1 9.913.741 7.776.582
1.2 Interest received from reserve deposits 732 115
1.3 Interest received from banks W-a-2 122.951 106.285
1.4 Interest received from money market transactions 241.310 123 056
1.5 Interest received from marketable securities ponfolio IV-a-3 1.861.164 1.539.839
1.5.1 Tmdingfinancial assels 3.378 11.146
1.5.2 Financial assets af fair value through profil ot (105$)
1.5.3 Available-for-sale financial assets 1.418.765 1.104.052
1.5,4 Held 10 matudty invesfmenfs 439.018 424.641

1.6 Financial lease income 334.268 284.050
1.7 Clher inferest income 159.799 122.630
ıı. ınterest expense ıV-b (6,660.665) (4.886.128)

2.1 Interest on deposits IV-b-4 (4.773.287) (3.557.677)

2.2 Intarest on funds borrowed IV-b-1 (851.007) (778.265)

2.3 Inferest expense on money market transactions (503.351) (263.274)
2.4 Interest on securifies issued IV-b-3 (513.882) (270.222)
2.5 Otherinlerest expenses (19.138> (16.690>
ııı. Net Interest intome (ı + ıı) 5.973.300 5.066.435
IV. Net fees and commissions income 2.343.015 2.136.188
4.1 Fees and commissions receved 2,960.372 2.548.931
4.1.1 Non-cash Ioans 324.669 282.175
4.1.2 Other IV-) 2,635.703 2.266.756
4.2 Fees and commissions paid (617.357) (412.743)
4.2.1 Non-cash Ioans (10.968) <10.184)
4.2.2 Other (606.389) (402.559)
V. Dividend income tV-c 9.351 15.243
Vi. Trading gahv(Ioss) (net) IV’-ç (236.654) 387.726
6.1 Tradinggains]{tosses) on secudties 278.801 571.819
6.2 Denvative financial transaclions gainsl(Iosses) IV-d (1.279.245) 1.612.067
6.3 Foreign exchange gains/(Iosses) 763.790 (1.796.160)
viı. Otheroperatingincome ıV-e 621.734 445.166
vııı. Totaı operating income 1 ıoss (ılı+ıV+v+vı+vıı) 9.710.746 8.050.756
ıx. Provislon for impairment of bana and other recelvables (-) IV-f (1.936.729) (1.552.121)
X. Other operating expenses (-) ıv-g (4.146.281) (3.543.346)
xı. Net operating incomel(ıoss) (Vlıı-ıx-x) 2.625.736 2.955.291
xıı. Excess amount recorded as income etler merger
xııı. Income/Qoss> from Investments accounted based on equity method 42.642 1.6B8
xıv. lncome/Qoss) on net monetary position
XV. Profldfloss) before taxes from continulng operatlons (xı+xlı+xııI+xıv) tV-ğ 2,668.578 2.962.979
XVI. Tax provision for continulng operatlons (t) IV-h (612.396) (629.802)
16.1 Currenf tax provision (754.504) (223.229)
16.2 Deferred fax provision 172.108 (406.573)
xvıı. Net profidboss from continuing operalions (XVsXVı) 2.056.162 2.333.177
xvııı. ıncome from dlscontlnued operations . 1.581.831
15.1 Income from non-current assets held for resale . 237.009
18.2 Profh from sales of associates, subsidiades and joinl ventures . 1.344.822
15.3 Other income from disconfinued operations
xıx. Expenses trom discontinued operations (-) . (174.034)
19.1 Expenses tor non-currenf assets held for resale ‘ <174.034>
19.2 Loss trom sales of associafes. subsidiaries and joinl venfures
19.3 Other expenses from discontinued operations
XX. Profit jlosses before taaes from dfscontinued operations (XVIII-XIX) IV-ğ . 1.407.797
XXI. Tax provision for dlsconfinued operations (t) IV-ii . (81.785)
21.1 Currenl tax provision . (81.785)
21.2 Deferred fax provision
xxıı. Net profitlıoss from discontinued operations (XXsXXI) - 1.326.012
xxııı. Net profiuıoss (xvıı+xxıı) ıv- 2.056.182 3.659.189

23.1 Gmup’s profMoss 2.056.015 3.658.952
23.2 Minoıity inferesf profiUlosses (-) IV-i 167 237

Eamingsl(Ioss> per share (in TL tuh> 0.0047 0,0084

The accompanyıng explanatıons and notes fomı an ıntegral part of these consolıdated fınancıaistatements
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(Convenience translation ol pubiiciy announced consolidated financial statementa originalıy issued
in Turkish, see in note of section Ihrec)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
(Unless otherwlse stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

IV. Consolidated statement of income and expense items accounted under shareholders’
equity

Current Period Prior Period
ıncome and expense ltems accounted under sharehoıders eguity (31fl212014) (31fl212013)

1. Transfers to marketable securitles valuation difterences from financiai
assets avalıabıe for sale 626.802 (2.289.674)

Il. Property and equipment revaluation difterences 18.485 -

111. ıntangible assets revaluation difterences -

IV. Currencytransiation differences for foreign currencytransactions <101.956) 411.320
V. Profitfloss on cash flow hedges (eftectlve part of the fair value

changes) <208.019) 661.738
yı. ProfMoss on foreign net investment hedges(effectlve part of the fair

vaıue changes) 31.833 <180.485)
yıl. Eftects of changes in accounting poılcy and adjustment of errors
yılı. Other income and ezpense ltems accounted under shareholders equity

according to TAS (20.813) 26.201
IX. Deferred tax on valuation difterences (84.087) 320.866
X. Net profit or Ioss accounted direotiy under sharehoıders’ equity

(ı+ıı+...÷ıx> 262.245 <1.051.034)
XI. Current yaar proflUıoss 2.056.182 3.659.189
11.1 Net change in fair value of maıRetable securitios (recycled ta profit-Ioss) 154.765 449.939
11.2 Pad of cash t Iow hedge derivative financial instruments reclassified and

presented on the income statement (15B.005) (247.017)
11.3 Pan of foreign net investment hedges reclassifıed and presented on the

income statement - -

11.4 Other 2.059.422 3.456.267

XII. Totai incomefloss accounted for the period (X+XI) 2.318.427 2.608.155

The accompanying explanations and notes form an integral pan of these consolidated financiai sttıiiWht
4—
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(Convenience translatlon of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turkish, see in nato 1. af section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Vi. Consolidated statement of cash flows
Nato

(SatIlan Current Periad Priar Periad
Five) (3111212014) (31/12/2013)

K Caah tlaws (rum banking aperatians

1,1 Operating protil betore ehanges in operating assets and tiabilities 3.902.923 3.224.212

1.1.1 tnterest received 11.821.448 10.959.486
1.1.2 Interest paid (6.725.995) (4,869.308)
1.1.3 Dividend received 9.351 11.002
1.1.4 Fees and commissions received 2.960.372 2.548.931
1.1.5 Other income 192,922 1.466.475
1.1.6 Collections frompreviously writlen-oft loans and other receivables 1.021.124 1,226.236
1,1.7 Payments to personnet and service supptiers (4.276.835) (2.812.384)
1.1.8 Taxes paid (784.504) (522,041)
1.1.9 Other Vt-c (314.960) (4.784.185)

1,2 Changes in operating asseis and liabilities (5.028.550) (7.195.796)

1.2.1 Net (increase)!decrease in trading secuflties 27.626 438.112
Net (increase)Jdecrease in (air vatue through profitiloss linancial

1.2.2 assets -

1.2.3 Net (increase)/decmase in banks (2.200.700) (6.676.502)
1.2.4 Net (increase)/decrease in toans (29.857.757) (23.798.054)
1.2.5 Net {increase)/decmase in other assets (441.458) 599.076
1.2.6 Net increase /(decrease) in bank depcsits 180.337 923.320
1.2.7 Net increase /(decrease) in other deposits 18.910.521 16.354.669
1.2.8 Net increase /(decrease) in funds borrowed 5.360.725 4.126.020
1.2.9 Net increase ?(decrease) in payables
1.2.10 Net increase /(decrease) in other liabihties Vt.c 2.992.156 837.563

ı. Net cash flaws ham banking aperations (1.125.627) (3.971.584)

B. Caah (town 1mm investing activities

ıı. Net cash fıaws (rum investing activities (3.051.911) (392.363)

2.1 Cash paid for acquisition of investments in associates subsidiades
and joint ventures (52) (259.237)

2.2 Cash obtained (ron disposat of investments in associates
subsidiaries and jointventures 44.433 1.358.266

2.3 Purchases ot property and equipment (474.913) (305.050)
2.4 Disposais of propefly and equipment 84.204 61.846
2.5 Purchase of investments avaitabIe-forsale (12.605.606) (11.273.077)
2.6 Sate of investments avaitabte-for -sate 8.357.086 10.402.960
2.7 Purchase of investment secudties (834.017) (504.486)
2.8 Sato ol investment securities 2.376.954 126.415
2.9 Other

e. Caah fiows from financing actlvltlen

ıtı. Net caah tıaws trom financing activitios 4.602.499 3.175.953

3.1 Cash obtained (rom tunds borrnwed and secudties issued 15.527.348 11.659.816
3.2 Cash used tor repayment of tunds borrowed and securities issued (10.536 802) (8.183.185)
3.3 Issuad capital instrumerils
3.4 Dividends paid (388.047) (300.678)
3.5 Payments for finance teases
3.6 Other

Effect af change in foreign exchange rates an caah and cash
ıv. equivatents yı-t 121.307 836.133

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivatents
V. (ı+ıkıtı+ıv) 546268 (351861)

yı. Caah and cash equivatents et beginning of the pariad vı-a 10.480.428 10.832.289

vıi. Cash and cash equivatents at end of the period vı-a 11.026.696 10,480,428

The accompanying explanations and notes form an integral part of these consolidated fjnanj,.şgteepts;. MUHğSEiECİ
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(Convenience translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued

in Turkish, see in note 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Profit appropriation statements as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Vii. Profit appropriation statement (1),(2)

Current Poriod Prior Pariod

(31/12/2014) (31/12/2013)

ı. Distribulion of current yaar “cama

1.1 Curreni yaar arama 2369625 3.783.595

l.2Tatesanaaut.ts payab!e (-) (524.659) 580.623)

1.2.1 Carparate az came laz) 650515) flCL 221)

1.2.2 tarama mfthhalding tas -
1.2.3 Cİhat tazes and dutiod” 155 556 374 402)

A. Net Income for the yaar (11-1.2) 1.644.968 3,202.875

1.3 Priar yaar lasses (-)
1.4 First legal reserves .) . 177.214

1.5 Other statutary ratorves (-) -

6. Net incomo available for distribution f(A.(13÷1.4.1.s)) 1.844.966 3.025761

1.6 First d.v)dona la sharehalaars <-1 . 388 OCO

1.6.1 To aanors af ard,nary ahares . 388.000

1.6.2 Ta ownars af privleted aMma

1.6.3 Ta awnars af prelered ahares
1.6.4 Ta prai aiıarng bonda

16.5 Ta haiders aiprafit and tass sharng certıSraros

1.7 Divrdends ta personnel t.)
1.8 Oividends ta baard ot direatars (-) -
1.9 Ssaand dividend ta ahareha)ders (-)
1.9.1 Ta awners af ardinary shares

1.9.2 Ta aeners af privileged shares . -
1.9.3 Ta amasra ot preferred atarsa - -
1.94 Ta prafit staring banda -
1 .9 5 Ta haldera af prafit and tass aharing aaflifıtates -
1 10 Seacad legal resensa NI - -
1 11 Statufarj reserves (-) - -
1 12 Ealraariinary resarves . 1.763 811

1.13 Otlerresenas
1.14 Spocial funds . 873 950

Il. Disftibulion ol reserves

2.1 Apprapriafed reservos - -
2.2 Seaand legal resarvas (.) - -
2,3 Dividenda ta aharehaldera (-t
2.3.1 Ta awnera ot ardinary ahares

2.3.2 Ta amasra ot privileged atarsa

2.3 3 Ta amasra af prafened atarsa

2 3 4 Ta prafit aharing bands

2.3.5 Ta haldera af pratit and tass aharing ashificates -
2 4 Dividends ta peraannet

2 5 Dividenos ta baard af dirsiara (-1 -

ili. Eemings per start

3 1 Ta amasra at ardtnary sharsa a.a042 a,aa7a
3 2 Ta amasra al arnary shaıea { ) -
3.3 Ta amasra of prtaiegsd aharos

3.4 Ta amasra af priviteged atarsa

P/. Dividond por atsare

4.1 Ta amasra al ardinary sharss - 0,0009

4,2 Ta amasra af ardinary atarsa t
4.3 Ta amnsrs af privilsged atarsa
4 4 Ta amaera al privilepad shares 1

(1) Pratit Apprapriatian Statement has been prepare acaarding ta uncansaiidated finanaiat slatements af the Parent Bank.

(2) Autharized body for pratit apprapriafion af the current pedad is General Assembty. As af the proparation dale af these finanaiat
sfafements, yeady ardinary mesling ot the General Assembfy has not been hetd yet. Sinae the pratit appraphatian prapasal for the yaar
2014 has nal boen prepared by the Basrd af D)reafars, anty net pratit retated ta the yaar 2013. which is basa lar the pratit apprapriatian
calcutatian. has beon disciased. The afarementianed amount alsa inatudes 75% ot gains an sates ot pmpedy and equipment, and share
aenifiaaf es amaunting ta TL 1,486 mhich ara not gaing ta be distributed and ara gaing ta be hetd in reserves aacarding ta the anlata 5/1-e
af Carparate Tax Law Na. 5520.

(3) As per the SBSA, inaame assaaiated with deferred tas asssts shat not be aansidered as caah ot intemaliy ganerated saurce and
aaaardingly suah amaunts taking patl af net pariad prof it shatl not be inaluded in praf it distdbutian and aapitat inarease. As af Deaember
31, 2014 the Bank has deterred tas incame amaunfing ta TL 155.586 assaaiated with the deferred fax assaf whiah witi not be distribufed.

The accompanying explanations and notes form an integral part of these consoiidateğ4jpnciaLsttenentş..
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(Convenlence translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turklsh, see in note 1. of sectlon three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consolidated financial statements December 31,2014
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Section Three

Accounting policies

Explanations an basis of presentation:

The Parent Bank maintains its boaks af accounts in Turkish Lira in accardance with the Banking Act
Na. 5411 (“Banking Act”), which is etfective from Navember 1, 2005, the Turkish Commercial Code
(‘1CC”) and Turkish Tax Legislation.

The consalidated financial statements are prepared in acoordance with the “Regulatian on the
Principles and Pracedures Regarding Banks’ Accounting Applications and Safeguarding of
Dacuments” published in the Ofticial Gazette Na. 26333 dated November 1, 2006 by the Banking
Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA”) which refers ta “Turkish Accounting Standards” (“TAS’)
and “Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) issued by the Public Oversight Accounting and
Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”) and ather decrees, notes and explanatians related to the
accounting and financial reparting principles (alI “Turkish Accounting Standards’ or “TAS”) published
by the BRSA. The format and the details af the publicly annaunced financial statements and related
disclasures ta these statements have been prepared in accordance with the “CommuniquĞ Related to
Publiciy Announced Financial Statements of Banks and Explanatians and Notes Related to these
Financial Statements” and changes and nates to this cammuniqu published in the Official Gazette
Na. 28337 dated June 28, 2012.

The financial statements af subsidiaries operating abraad have been prepared in accardance with
legislatians and regulations of the country in which they are operating, however in arder ta provide fair
presentatian accarding tü TAS, necessary adjustments and reclassificatians are reflected ta thase
financial statements,

The accompanying cansolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical
cast basis (restated lar the changes in the general purchasing power af TL until December 31, 2004),
except for financial assets at fair value through prafit ar Ioss, financial assets available lar sale,
trading derivative financial Iiabilities and hedging derivative financial assets/Iiabilities. Besides, the
carrying values af assets carried at amadised cost but subject ta fair value hedge are adjusted ta
reflect the fair value ohanges related ta the hedged risks.

The preparation af cansolidated financial statements in conformity with TAS requires the use of certain
accaunting estimates by the Group management ta exercise its judgment on the assets and liabilities
an the balance sheet and cantingent assets and Iiabilities as af the balance sheet date. These
estimates are being reviewed regulariy and, when necessary, suitable carreatians are made and the
effects af these carrectians are explained in the related nates and reflected ta the incame statement.

The accaunting palicies and valuatian principles applied in the preparatian af tinancial statements are
defined and applied in accardance with TAS and are consistent with the accaunting policies apptied
for the year ended December 31, 2013, except lar changes an accaunting policies fram histarical cost
basis ta revaluatian basis lar art abjects and paintings in tangible assets. TAS/TFRS changes which
are effective fram January 1, 2014 (TAS 32 Financial lnstruments: Presentatian - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial iabilities (Amended), TRFS lnterpretatian 21 Levies, Amendments ta TAS 36 -

(Recaverable Amaunt Disclasures for Nan-Financial assets), Amendments ta TAS 39 - Navation af
Derivatives and Cantinuatian af Hedge Accaunting, TFRS 10 Cansalidated Financial Statements
(Amendment)) da nat have a significant effect an the Graup’s accaunting palicies, financial pasitian ar
perfarmance. Thase accaunting palicies and valuatian principles are explained in Nates Il. ta XXVII.
belaw.
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(Convenlence translation of pubilciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turkish, see in note 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Accounting policies (cantinued)

The effects of TFRS 9, “Financial lnstruments” which has not been implemented yet, are under
evaluation by the Group. The standard which the Group did not early adopt wiil primariiy have an effect
on the ciassification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of adopting TFRS 9. However, as the impact of adoption depends on the assets heid by the
Group at the date of adoption itseif, it is not practical or possible to quantify the effect at this stage. As of
the date of these financial statements, the other TASITFRS standards announced but not yet effective
are not expected to have significant impaat on the Group’s accounting policies, financial position and
pedormance.

Additional paragraph lar convenience translation into English:

The differences between accounting principles, as described in the preceding paragraphs and
accounting principles generally accepted in countries in which the aceompanying consolidated financial
statemenis are to be distributed and international Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) have not been
quantified in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Acoordingiy, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position, results of operations
and changes in financial position and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles generaliy
accepted in such countries and IFRS.

Il. Explanations on strategy of using financiai instruments and foreign currency transactions:

The general strategy of the Group in using financial instruments is to sustain an optimal balance
between the yield of the instruments and their risks. The most important funding source of the Group is
deposits. The Group can also sustain a lengthened liability structure by using Iong-term foreign currency
borrowings from foreign financial institutions, Funds obtained from deposits and other sources are
invested in quality financial assets in order to keep currency, interest rate and liquidity risks within the
limits determined by the asset-rability strategy. The currency, interest and liquidity risks of on-balance
sheet and off-balance sheet assets and liabilities are managed accordingly within the risk limits
accepted by the Group and the related legal limits. Derivative instruments are mainiy utihsed for liquidity
needs and for mitigating currency and interest rate risks. The position of the Group as a resuit of foreign
currency activities is being heid at minimum Ievels and the currency risk exposure is followed within the
determined leveis by the Board of Directors by considering the limits specified by the Banking Act.

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabiiities are translated with the Parent Bank
exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date gains and losses arising from such valuations are
recognised in the income statement under the account of “Foreign exchange gains or losses”, except for
valuation differences arising from foreign currency participations, subsidiaries and foreign currency non
pedorming loans. Foreign currency non-pedorming loans are translated with the exchange rates at the
date of transfer to non-performing loans accounts.

The Group hedges part of the currency translation risk of net investments in foreign operations through
currency borrowings. The efteotive portion of the foreign exchange difterence of these financial liabilities
is recognised in “Hedging funds” in equity.

The Group, classifies its financial liabilities as the financial liabilities classified at fair value through
profitlioss in order to eiiminate the accounting mismatch at the initial recognition.

GÜNEY EÜMS:.Z ii HAEEGEd
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(Convenience translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turkish, see in note 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (‘TL”))

Accounting policies (continued)

ili. Information on consolidation principles:

a. Consolidation principtes applied:

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the procedures
listed in the “CommuniquĞ related to the Regulation on the Preparation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Banks” published in the Official Gazette No. 26340 dated November 8,
2006 and the “Turkish Accounting Standard for Consolidated Financial Statements” (“TFRS 10”).

1. Consolidation principles of subsidiaries:

Subsidiaries are the entities controlled directly or indirectly by the Parent Bank.

Control is defined as the power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect the amount of the Parent Bank’s returns.

Subsidiaries are consolidated with fulI consolidation method by considering the results of
their activities and the size of their assets and shareholders’ equity. Financial statements of
the related subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
control is transferred to the Group and they are taken out of consolidation scope when
control no longer exists. Where necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

in acoordance with the fuli consolidation method, baiance sheet, income statement and off
balance sheet items of the subsidiaries have been consolidated line by ine with the
balance sheet, income statement and off balance sheet of the Parent Bank. The book
value of the investments of the Group in each subsidiary has been netted off with the
portion of each subsidiary’s capital that beiongs to the Group. Unrealized gains and losses
and balances resulting from the transactions among the entities included in consolidation
have been eliminated. in the consoiidated balance sheet and income statement, minority
interest has been presented separately from the shares of the Group shareholders

Yapı Kredi Sigorta A.Ş. (YKS”) and Yapı Kredi Emeklilik A.Ş. (“YKE”) owned by YKS
which were in the consolidation scope of the Group as of December 31, 2012, are sold to
Aliianz SE on Juiy 12, 2013; resulting in loss of control over these subsidiaries however,
with reinvesting to YKE (the new name üAllianz Yaşam ve Emeklilik A.Ş.” (“Aliianz”)) with
20% share, the Group gained a significant influence on YKE.

Until the date of the sale both YKS and YKE are consolidated and their operating resuits
and the prof it from the sale are presented under the discontinued operations in the
acoompanying consolidated financial statements.

The share in Aiiianz is accounted with ta fair value at the date the controi is lost.

in the Extraordinary end of liguidation General Assembly ot Tasfiye Halinde Yapı Kredi 8
Tipi Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş. (YKYO”) held on July 8, 2014, it was decided to conclude the
liquidation process and to pay the remaining liquidation liabiiities to the shareholders. in
addition, it was decided to delist the official name, information and registry record of the
YKYO from the trade registry records and other governmental agencies’ records.
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(Convenience transiation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements ariginaliy issuad
in Turkleh, see in note of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated arnounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Accounting policies (continued)

Yapı Kredi Bank Malta Ltd (“Yapı Kredi Malta”) has been effectively established as a
subsidiaıy of Yapı Kredi Holding 8V, which is fuliy owned and controlled by the Bank, after
the receipt of an approval from Maltese legal authority on October 23, 2014, on the top of
other approvals of BRSA and decisions taken by the Board of the Bank. Yapı Kredi Malta is
fuliy consolidated in the consolidated financial statements of the Bank.

The subsidiaries included in consolidation, their title, their place of incorporation, their main
activities and their effective shareholding rates ara as foflows:

Olrcct and
Effectlve indirect rates
rates (%) (%)

ıncorporatlon Main December al, December 31,
Title (City? Country) actlvitles 2014 2014

Yapı Kredi Leasing lsıanbul[Furkey Leasing 99,99 99,99
Yapı Kredi Faktodng lstanbulfturkey Faclohng 99,96 99,96
Yapı Kredi Menkul lslanbul[Furkey lnvestmenl Management 99,9e 99.95
Yapı Kredi Portlöy lslanbulfl’urkey Poflfolio Management 99,96 99,97
Yapı Kredi Holding 8V. AmslerdamiNethedands Financial Holding 100.00 100.00
Yapı Kredi Bank N.V. Amslerdam/Nethedands Banking 100,00 100,00
Yapı Kredi flank Moscow MoscowtRussia Banking 100.00 100.00
Yapı Kredi Azerbaijan Baku ?Azerbaijan Banking 100.00 100,00
Stiching Custody SeMces YKB AmsleıarTı?Nelhedands Cuslody sewices 100.00 100.00
Yapı Kredi lnvest LLC BakuiAzerbaijan Portlolio Management 100,00 100.00
Yapı Kredi Malta St.Julian/Malla Banking 100,00 100.00
Yapı Kredi Diversilied Paymenl George Town?
Righls Finance Company 1 Cayman lslands Special Purpose Company -

(1) it is a special purpose enliiy estabıished for securitization transactions and is included in the consolidation
aithough it is nota subsidiary of the Parent Bank.

2. Consolidation principles of associates:

The associates are entities in which the Parent Bank participates in their capital and has
significant influence on thern, although the Parent Bank has no capital or management
control, is established in dornestic and abroad. The related associates are consolidated
with equity method.

Significant influence refers to the participation power on the constitution of the financial and
management policies of the participated associate.

Equity method is an accounting method which foresees the increase or decrease of the
book value of capital share in an associate from the changes in the participated associate’s
shareholders’ equity during the period attributable to the portion of the inVestor and the
deduction of the dividend received frorn the associate frorn the revised value of the
associate amount.

The associates included in consolidation, their title, their place of incorporation, their main
activities and their effective shareholding rates are as follows:

Direct and
(City! Main Effective rates % lndlrect rates %

Titıe Country) activities December 31, 2014 December 31 ı 2014

Banque de Commerce et de
Pıacements S.A. Geneva/Switzerland Banking 30,67 30,67

Allianz Yaşam ve Emeklilik A.Ş. lstanbuvTürkiye Insurance 20.00 20,00
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(Convenience translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turkish, see in note 1. of section Ihres)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Accounting policies (continued)

3. Consolidation principles of joint ventures:

The joint venture is an entity in which the Parent Bank participates in its capital and has
joint control and whose main operation is real estate investment trust (“REİT”) and
operates according to special legislation with permission and license and is established in
Turkey. The related joint venture is consolidated with equity method in accordance with
materiality principle.

Equity method is an accounting method which foresees the increase or decrease of the
book value of capital share in a joint venture trom the changes in the participated joint
venture’s shareholders’ equity during the period attributable to the portion of the investor
and the deduction of the dividend received from the associate from the revised value of the
associate amount.

Yapı Kredi Koray Gayrimenku! Yatırım Ortaktığı A.Ş. stonbuı[fu,kov

4. Transactions with minority shareholders:

The Group applies a policy ot treating transactions with minority interests as transactions
within the Group. The ditterence between the acquisition cost and net asset acquired is
recognised under equity. Disposais from minority interests are also considered as equity
transactions and result in changes in the equity of the Group.

b. Presentation of unconsolidated subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures in
consolidated financial statements:

Turkish Lira denominated investments in unconsolidated associates, subsidiaries and joint
ventures are accounted at cost value, Iess any impairment, in accordance with “Turkish
Accounting Standards for Individual Financial Statemenis” (‘TAS 27”) in the consolidated financial
statements.

Foreign currency denominated investments in unconsolidated associates, subsidiaries and joint
ventures are accounted at their original foreign currency costs translated into Turkish Lira using
the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date Iess impairment, it any.

When the cost of associates, subsidiaries and joint ventures is higher than the net realizable
value, the carrying amount is reduced to the net realizable or fair value considering whether the
value decrease is temporary or permanent and the ratio of the value decrease,
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The joint venture included in consolidation, its title, its place of incorporation, main activities
and effective shareholding rates are as follows:

Direct and
Eftective rates indirect rates %

(City? Main December al, Docember 31,
TtıIe Country) activities 2014 2014

REİT 30,45 30.45



(Convenience translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turkish, sea in nota 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Accounting policies (continued)

IV. Explanations on forward and options contracts and derivative instruments:

The Groups derivative transactions mostiy inolude foreign currenoy money and interest rate swaps,
forward foreign exchange purohase and sale transactions and options.

Derivative instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition and subsequently re-measured
at their fair values. As a result, the fair value of derivatives is reflected as net Iiability or net asset on a
contract by contract basis. The accounting method of the income or Ioss arising from derivative
instruments depends on whether the derivative is being used for hedging purposes or not and depends
on the type of item being hedged.

At the transaction date, the Group documents the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, together with the risk management policies and the strategies on hedging transactions.
Besides, the Group regulariy documents the effectiveness of the hedging instruments in offsetting the
changes in the fair value of the hedged items.

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments subject to fair value hedges are recognized under
profit or Ioss accounts together with the variation in the fair value of hedged items. The changes of fair
value of derivative transactions for fair value hedge are classified in “Derivative Financial Transactions
Gains/Losses” account. in the balance sheet, changes in the fair value of hedged assets and iiabilities,
during the period in which the hedge is effective, are shown with the related assets and Iiabilities. The
ineffective portion of the mentioned hedging transactions is reflected to the income statement. If the
underiying hedge does not conform to the hedge accounting requirements, according to the
adjustments made to the carrying vaiue (amoılised cost) of the hedged item, for which the risk is
hedged by a portfolio hedge, are amortized with the straight ine method within the time to matuflty and
recognized under the prof it and Ioss accounts. Fair vaiue adjustments are recognized directly in the
income statement in an event of repayment and/or unwinding and/or the recognition of the hedged item.

The Parent Bank hedges its cash flow risk arising from foreign currency and Turkish Lira floating interest
rate iiabilities by using interest rate swaps. The effective portion of the fair value changes of the hedging
instruments are recorded in “Hedging funds” under shareholders’ equity. These funds are transferred to
profit or ioss from equity when the cash flows of the hedged items (interest expense) impact the income
statement.

in case the cash fiow hedge accounting is discontinued due to the expiry, realization for sale of the
hedging instrument, termination of the hedged risk or due to the results of the effectiveness test the
amounts accounted under shareholders’ equity are transferred to the profit and Ioss accounts as these
cash flows of the hedged item are realized.

Some of the trading purpose derivative transactions, even though they provide effective economic
hedges under the Group’s risk management policy, do not qualify for hedge accounting under the
specific rules in “Turkish Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
(“TAS 39”)” and are therefore treated as “financial instruments at fairvaiue through profit or loss”.

“Financial instruments at fair value through profit or ioss” are measured al fair vaiue. If the tair vaiue of
derivative financial instruments is positive, it is disclosed under the main account “financial assets af fair
value through profit or Ioss” in “derivative financial assets heid for trading” and if the fair value difterence
is negative, it is disniosed under “derivative financial Iiabiiities heid for trading”. Fair value changes are
recorded under “Derivative Financial Transactions Gains/(Lossesy’ in the income statement.

The fair vaiues of the derivative financial instruments are caicuiated using quoted market prices or by
using discounted cash fiow modeis.
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(Convenıence translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issuad
in Turkish, sec in note 1. of section tbree)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (‘TL’))

Accounting policies (continued)

Parameters used for the valuation of the option portfolio of the Parent Bank are delermined by market
risk management and the confirmation of the accuracy of fair value calculations are monitored
periodicaliy by market risk management.

Liabilities and receivables arising from the derivative instruments are followed in the off-balance sheet
accounts as their contractual values. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and
accounted as derivative instruments according to TAS 39; in case, (1) the related embedded derivative’s
economic features and risks are not cioseiy related to the host contract, (0) another instrument that has
the same contract conditions with the embedded derivative satisfies the definition of a derivative
instrument and (Hi) the hybrid instmment is not carried al fair value through profit or Ioss.

Credit derivatives are capital market tools designed to transfer credit risk from one party to another.

As of December 31, 2014, the Parent Bank’s credit derivatives portfolio included in the off-balance
sheet accounts is composed of credit linked notes (embedded derivatives are separated from host
contract in line with TAS 39 and recorded as credit default swaps) and credit default swaps.

Credit linked notes are bonds that have repayments depending on a credit event or the credit risk
evaluation of a reference asset or asset p001. Depending on whether the reference assets are included
in the balance sheet of the issuer or the owner of the assets, these transactions can be accounted by
the party assuming the credit risk as insurance or as an embedded derivalive. As per the Bank’s
management evaluation, the embedded derivatives included in the credit linked notes are separated
from the host contracts in accordance with TAS 39 and recorded and evalualed as credit default swaps.
The bond itself (host contract) is valued in accordance with the valuation principles of the category it is
classified.

Credit default swaps are contracts, in which the seller commits to pay the conlract value to the buyer in
case of certain credit risk events in return for the premium paid by the buyer for the contract.Credit
default swaps are valued daily by the valuation model of the Parent Bank and then accounted over their
fair values; while credit linked notes are valued and accounted monthly.

Market risks of these products are monitored using the Parent Bank’s internal modeling system for the
Value-at-Risk and basis points sensitivity analysis; the liquidity risks are monitored using the short lerm
liquidity report on daily and the long term liquidity report on monthly basis.

According to the regulations of BRSA, those currency exchange transaclions realized al value date in
the initial phase of currency swaps are recorded and followed as irrevocable commitments in oli
balance sheet accounts until the value date.

A Credit Valuation Adjustment (CVA) is applied to the Bank’s over-the-counter derivative exposures to
take into account the counterparty’s risk of default when measuring the fair value of the derivative. CVA
is the mark-to-market cost of protection required to hedge credit risk from counterparties in the Bank’s
over-the-counler derivatives podfolio. The Bank calculates CVA based on colleclive provisioning
methodology calculated in accordance with international financial reporting standards, TAS 39,
comprising the product of Exposure, Probability of Detaull (PD) and Loss Giyen Default (LGD). CVA is
calculated based on the exposure of each counter party.

iş.’
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(Convenlence translation ot publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy lssued
in Turkish, see in note 1. of sectlon three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta cansalidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (cantinued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts ara expressed in thousands of Turkisb Lira (“TL”))

Accounting policies (continued)

V. Explanatians an interest income and expense:

Interest income and expenses are reoognised in the income statement on an acorual basis by using the
effective interest method periodically. The Group ceases accruing interest income on non-performing
Ioans and, any interest income accruals from such receivables are reversed and no income is
accounted until colleotion is made according to the related regulation.

Vi. Expianatians on fee and commission income and expenses:

Fees and commissions received as a resuit of the service agreements or arising t rom negotiating or
participating in the negotiation of a transaction on behaif of a third party are recognized either in the
period when the transaction is realized or deferred based on the type of the underiying transaction.
Other commission income and fees from various banking services are recorded as income at the time of
realization.

Vii. Explanations on financial assets:

The Group ciassifies and accounts its financial assets as “Fair value through profit or ioss”, “Available
for-sale”, “Loans and receivables” or “Held-to-maturity”. The appropriate ciassification of financial assets
of the Bank is determined at the time of purchase by the Group management, taking into consideration
the purpose of holding the investment. Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recorded
based on settlement date. Settlement date of a financial asset is the date that the asset is received or
delivered by the Group. Settlement date accounting requires; (a) accounting for the financial asset when
the asset is received and (b) accounting of disposal of the financial asset and recording the related profit
and loss when the asset is delivered. The fair vaiue ohanges of an asset to be acquired between the
trade date and settlement date is accounted in accordance with the basis of valuation of assets.

a. Financial assets at fair vaiue thraugh profit or ioss:

Financiai assets, which are ciassified as ‘Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’, are
trading financial assets and are either acquired for generating profit from short-term fluctuations in
the price or dealer’s margin, or are the financial assets included in a portfolio in which a pattern of
short-term profit making exists independent from the acquisition purpose.

Trading financial assets are initialiy recognized at fair value and are subsequently re-measured at
their fair vaiue. However, if fair vaiues cannot be obtained from active market transactions, it is
assumed that the fair vaiue cannot be measured reliabiy and fair vaiues are caicuiated by
alternative modeis. Ali gains and losses arising from these vaiuations are recognized in the
income statement. interest earned while holding financial assets is reported as interest income
and dividends received are inciuded separateiy in dividend income.

Derivative financial instruments are treated as trading financiai assets unless they are designated
as hedge instruments. The principles regarding the accounting of derivative financial instruments
are explained in detail in Note IV. of this section.

GON-EY EAğMEZ DE ETE-1 ve SEEEE.ST MUHAEEEEC
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{Convenience translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turklsh, sec in note 1. of seotlon three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL’))

Accounting policies (continued)

b. HeId4o-maturity financial assets:

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets other than loans and
receivables, with fixed maturities and fixed or determinable payments where management has
the intent and ability to hold the financial assets to maturity and that are not initialiy classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit/Ioss or available for sale. HeId-to-maturity financial
assets are initially recognized at total of acquisition and transaction cost. HeId-to-maturity
securities are carhed at “Amotlized cosr using the “Effective interest method” after İheir initial
recognition. Interest income related with held-to-maturity securities is recorded in “Interest
income” and impairment arising from a decrease in cost or revalued amounts is recorded in
“Provision for impairment of loans and other receivables” accounts.

There are no financial assets that were previously classified as held-to-maturity but cannot be
subject to this ciassification for two years due to breach of classification principles. in accordance
with TAS 39, sales or reciassification to available for sale portfolio of insignificant amount of
financial assets, sale or reciassification to available for sale portfolio of financial assets which are
ciose to maturity iess than three months, or sale or reciassification to available for sale portfolio of
assets as a result of significant increase in the risk weights of held-to-maturity investments used
for reguiatory risk-based capital purposes wili not resuit in tainting.

c. Loans and receivables:

Loans and receivables are financial assets raised through lending without having the intention to
trade in the short term. Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable paymenis and fixed maturities that ara not quoted on active market. Loans and
receivables are recognized initialiy st cost including transaction costs (which reflect fair values)
and subsequently carried at the amortized cost using the “effective interest method”. The
expenses incurred for the assets received as collateral are not considered as transaction costs
and are recognized in the expense accounts.

Retail, commercial and corporate loans included in cash oans are accounted for with Iheir
original maturities in accounts which are mentioned in the Uniform Chafl of Accounts (‘UCA’).
Foreign currency indexed ioans are initialiy measured at local currency accounts with the foreign
exchange rate prevailing at date of the initial recognition and re-vaiued with the reievant foreign
currency rates prevailing at the date of the financial statements. Increase or decrease in the value
of the principal amount of the ban due to changes in foreign exchange rates is accounted in the
related income and expense accounts. Repayment amounts are translated with the foreign
exchange rates prevailing at the repayment dates and the valuation differences is accounted for
in foreign exchange gainiloss accounts.

The Parent Bank provides general and specific provisions based on the assessments and
estimates of the management, by considering the “Communiquö Related to Principies and
Procedures on Determining the Ouabfications of Banks’ Loans and Other Receivabies and the
Provision for These Loans and Other Receivabies” (“Provisioning Regulation”) published in the
Officiai Gazette No. 26333 dated November 1, 2006. bn this context, the management estimates
are determined, on the basis of the prudence principle and the Parent Bank credit risk poiicies,
considering the general structure of the ban portfolio, the financial conditions of the customers,
non-financial information and the economic conjuncture.
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(Convenience translahon of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originally issued
in Turkish, see in foto 1. af section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turklsh Lira (“TL”))

Accounting policies (continued)

Provision expenses are realized at the same period when they are provided. If there is a
subsequent collection from a receivable that was already provisioned in previous years, the
recovery amount is classified under uOther operating income”. Uncollectible receivables are
written-off after alI the legal procedures are finalized.

d. Available-for-sale financial assets:

Available-for-sale financial assets are defined as financial assets other than the ones classified as
“Loans and receivables”, “Held-to-maturity assets” or “Financial assets at fair value through prof it
or loss”.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently re-measured at fair value. When fair values
based on market prices cannot be obtained reliabiy, the available-for-sale financial assets are
carried at fair values determined by using alternative models. Available for sale equity securities
which are not quoted on a market and the fair values of which can not be determined reliably, are
carried at cost Iess any impairment. “Unrealized gains and losses” arising from changes in the fair
value of financial assets classified as available-for-sale are recognized in the shareholders’ equity
as “Marketable securities valuation differences”, until the related assets are impaired or disposed.
When these financial assets are disposed or impaired, the related fair value differences
accumulated in the shareholders’ equity are transferred to the income statement. Interest and
dividends received from available for sale assets are recorded in interest income and dividend
income as appropriate.

Interest income on available for sale financial assets are calculated by effective interest rate
method and are accounted for in interest income account. At the time of sale of an available for
sale financial assets before the maturity, the difference between the profit, which is the difference
between the cost and sales price of the financial assets, and the interest income accrual are
accounted under “Trading gainsİ(losses) on securities” according to the UCA.

yIlI. Explanations on impairment of financial assets:

The existence of objective evidence whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired, is
assessed at each balance sheet date. If such evidence exists, impairment provision is provided based
on the financial assets classification.

Impairment for held to maturity financial assets carried at amortized cost is calculated as the difference
between the expected future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate method and the
carrying value.The impairment amount transferred from shareholders’ equity to profit or loss for
available for sale securities 18 calculated as the difference between the purchase cost (after deduction of
phncipal repayments and redemption) and the fair value Iess any impairment that was previously
recorded in profit or bas. This amount is recorded in expense accounts in accordance with the UCA.

The principles for the accounting of provisions for Ioans and receivables are explained in Note yIl, of
this section.
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(Convenlence translation of pubilciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turklsh, see in nota 1. of sectian thrce)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Uniess otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Accounting policies (continued)

IX. Explanations on offsetting financial assets:

Financial assets and Iiabiiities are affset and the net amaunt is reported in the balance sheet when the
Group has a legaliy enforceable right ta offset the recognised amounts and there iş an intention to
collectlpay related financial assets and liabilities on a net basis, or ta realise the asset and settle the
Iiability simuitaneousiy.

X. Explanations on sales and repurchase agreements and securitles lending transactions;

Securities subject to repurchase agreements (‘Repos”) are classified as üAt fair value through profit or
iass”, “Available-for-sale” and “Heid-to-matudty” according ta the investment purposes of the Group and
measured according to the partfalio ta which they belong. Funds abtained fram repurchase agreements
are accounted under “Funds provided under repurchase agreements” in liabiiities and the difference
between the sale and repurchase price is accrued over the life af the repurchase agreements using the
‘Effective interest method”. Interest expense on repo transactions are recorded under “Interest expense
on maney market transaations” in the incame statement.

Funds giyen against securities purohased under agreements to reseil (“reverse repo’) are accounted
under “Receivables t ram reverse repurchase agreements” an the balance sheet. The difterence
between the purchase and determined resefl price is accrued over the life of repurchase agreements
using the effective interest method.

The Group has no securities lending transactions.

Xl. Information on assets held for resale and related to discontinued operations and explanations
on Iiabiiities related with these assets:

According to the TFRS 5, a tangible asset (ar a graup of assets to be disposed) classified as “Asset
heid for resale” is measured at Iower of carrying value and fair vaiue less costs to seli. An asset (or a
group of assets to be dispased) is regarded as “Asset heid for resale” oniy when the sale is highly
probable and the asset (or a group af assets to be disposed) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. For e highiy probable sale, there must be a vahd plan prepared by the management
for the sale of asset inoluding identification of possible buyers and compielion of sale process.
Furthermore, the asset should be actively in the market at a price consistent with its fair value.

Additianaily, assets that were acquired due ta non-performing receivables are accounted in the financiai
statements in accordance with the “Communiqu6 Regarding the Principies and Procedures for the
Dispasais of lmmovabies and Commodities Acquired due ta Receivabies and for Trading of Precious
Metal” published in the Official Gazette dated Navember 1, 2006, No. 26333 and classified as assets
heid for resale.

A discontinued aperation is a part of the Graup’s business classified as sold or heid for sale, The
operating results af the discontinued operatians are disclosed separateiy in the income statement.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Accounting policies (continued)

XlI. Explanations on goodwill and other intangible assets:

a. Goodwill:

The excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, Iiabihties or contingent liabiities ot the acquired subsidiary at the dale of acquisition of the
control is recorded as goodwill and represents a payment made by the acquirer in anticipation of
future economic benefits from assets that are not capable of being individualiy identified and
separateiy recognised. The acquirer aiso recognises assets that are capable of being individualiy
identified and separateiy recognised, intangible assets (e.g. credit card brand value, deposit base
and customer portfolio) and contingent Iiabilities at fair value, irrespective of whether the asset
had been recognised by the acquiree before the business combination, if il can be distinguished
from the goodwill and if the asset’s fair value can be measured reliabiy.

in line with “Turkish Financial Reporting Standard for Business Combinations” (ÜTFRS 3”), the
goodwill is not subject to amortisation but is tested annualiy or more frequentiy for impairment
and carried at cost Iess accumuiated impairment losses, if any, in line with “Turkish Accounting
Standard for Impairment on Assets” (‘TAS 36”).

b. Other intangible assets:

intangibie assets are measured at cost on initial recognition and any directly afiributable costs of
setting the asset to work for its intended use are included in the initial measurement.
Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at historical costs after the deduction of accumulated
amortisation and the provision for impairment.

The Group evaluates the possibility of existence of impairment of intangible assets al the end of
each reporting period. If there is an evidence of impairment, the Group estimates a recoverable
amount in acoordance with the Turkish Accounting Standard (TAS 36) “Impairment of
Assets”.The recoverable amount iş the higher of net sales price or the vaiue in use. When the
book value of another intangible asset exceeds the recoverable amount, the related asset is
considered to be impaired. if there iş no evidence of impairment, there is no need to estimate the
recoverable amount.

Intangibles are amortised over their estimated useful lives using the straight-Iine method. The
useful life of the asset is determined by assessing the expected useful life of the asset, technicai,
technological and other kinds of obsolescence and ali required maintenance expenses necessary
to utiiise the economic benefit trom the asset. The rates used are presented beiow:

Credit card brand value, deposit base and customer portfolio 10%
Other intangible assets 20%
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Accaunting policies (continued)

XIII. Explanations on propefly and equipment:

Property and equipment is measured at its cost when initially recognized and any directly attributable
costs of setting the asset in working order for its intended use are included in the initial measurement in
accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standard <TAS 16) “Tangible Assets”. Subsequently, properties
and equipments, except art objects and paintings, are carried at cost Iess accumulated depreciation and
provision for impairment. The Bank adopted a revaluation method for its art objects and paintings in
tangible assets in accordance with TAS 16 in the current period.

Depreciation is calculated over the cost of property and equipment using the straight-Iine method. The
rates used are stated below:

Suildings 2%
Movables, movables acquired underfinancial leasing 20%

The depreciation charge for items remaining in property and equipment for Iess than a fuli accounting
period at the balance sheet date is calculated in proportion to the period the item remained in property
and equipment.

in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standard (TAS 36) “Impairment of Assets”, where the
carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated “recoverabie amount”, it is written down to its
“recoverable amount” and the provision for impairment is charged to the income statement.

Gains and iosses on the disposal of property and equipment are determined by deducting the net book
value of the property and equipment from its sales proceeds.

Expenditures for the repair and maintenance of property and equipment are recognised as expense.
The capital expenditures made in order to increase the capacity of the tangible asset or to increase its
future benefits are capitalised on the cost of the tangibie asset. The capital expenditures include the
cost components which are used either to increase the useful life or the capacity of the asset or the
quality of the product or to decrease the costs.

XIV. Explanatians on leasing transactions:

The Group performs financial and operational ieasing in the capacity of the iessee and lessor.

e. Accounting af leasing aperations accarding ta Iessee:

Financial lease
The Group inciudes the Iower of the market vaiue of the fixed asset subject to financial leasing in
the beginning of the financial leasing period or present vaiue of the iease payments in property
and equipment and records the Iiabilities arising from financial leasing in liabiiities. Financing
costs arising due to ieasing are spread through the lease period forming a fixed interest rate. in
addition, fixed assets that are obtained by the way of financial leasing are subject to depreciation
based on their usefui lives. If a decrease in the value of fixed assets that are subject to financial
leasing is noticed, impairment provision is recognised, The iabihties arising from financial leasing
contracts are accounted under “financiai lease payables”. Expenses arising from interest and
exchange rate changes related to financial leasing iiabilities are charged to the income statement.
Lease payments are deducted from financiai leasing payables.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
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Accounting policies (continued)

Operational lease

Leases, in which the majority of risk and return of property belongs to lessor, are classified as
operational lease. Payments that are made under operational leases are accounted in income
statements on a straight line basis during the lease period.

1,. Accaunting of leasing operations according to lessor:

Assets that are subject to financial leasing are reflected as a receivable equal ta the net leasing
amount in the consolidated financial statements. Interest income is earned to form a fixed
periodical interest rate on net investment amount of the related leased asset by the lessor and the
poflion relating to subsequent periods is followed in the unearned interest income account.

Allowances for impairment ot lease receivables

The lease receivables provision for the impairment ot investments in direct finance leases is established
based on a credit review of the receivables portfolio. The Group has set this provision in accordance
with the Communiqu6 ot BRSA named “The Procedures Regarding the Provisions ta Be Provided for
the Loans ot Leasing, Factoring and Consumer Finance Companies” (“Provisions Communiqu6”) which
was published in the Official Gazette dated December 24. 2013, numbered 28861. According to the
Communiqu6, specific provisions are set in following proportions: minimum 20% for collateralized lease
receivables for which related collections are delayed between 150 and 240 days, minimum 50% for
collateralized lease receivables for which related collections are delayed between 240 and 360 day and
100% for collateralized lease receivables for which related colleotions are delayed more than 1 year.

in accordance with the related Communiquö of Provision, the Group also recognizes specitic provision
even if the overdue days are Iess than the days stated above or receivables are not over due at alI, by
taking into account alI the existing data regarding the oreditor and based on the principais of reliability
and prudence.

in the Communiquö of Provisions, it is stated that although it is not mandatory, a general provision
which is not related to a specitic transaction can be recognised for the losses arising from the principal
or interest ot lease receivables that are not over due or overdue less than 150 days but the amount of
loss is not certain. in accordance with the CommuniquĞ of Provisions, the Group sets a general
provision for the lease receivables that have not been considered as doubtful yet.

Finance lease receivables and accounts receivables that cannot be recovered are written off and
charged against the allowance for the impairment of lease and accounts receivables. Such receivables
are written off after alI the necessary legal proceedings have been completed and the amount of bas is
finally determined. Recoveries of amounts previousiy provided for are treated as a reduction trom the
provision for the impairment of the iease receivable and are recognized as income.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
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Accounting policies (continued)

XV. Explanations on provisions and contingent assets and liabilities:

Provisions and contingent Iiabilities, except for the specific and general provisions recognised for bana
and other receivables, are accounted in accordance with the ‘Turkish Accounting Standard for
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” (“TAS 379.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions for
contingent Iiabilities arisen from past events are recognised in the period of occurrence in acoordance
with the “Matching principle”. A provision is recognised when it is probable that the contingent event wibi
occur and a reliable estimate can be made. When a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot
be made, or it is not probable that an outfbow of resources wili be required tü settle the obligation, it is
considered that a “contingent” Iiability exists and it is disclosed in the related notes to the financial
statements.

Contingent assets usualiy arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the
possibility of an infbow of economic benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized in
financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realized.
Contingent assets are disclosed where an infbow of economic benefits is probable. Contingent assets
are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial
statements. If it has become virtually certain that an ini Iow of economic benefits wiil arise, the asset and
the related income are recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.

XVI. Explanations on obligations related to employee rights:

a. Employee termination benefits

Obligations related to empboyee termination and vacation rights are accounted for in accordance
with “Turkish Accounting Standard for Empboyee Rights” (“TAS 19”) and are classified under
“Reserve for employee rights” account in the balance sheet.

Under the Turkish Labour Law, the Group is required to pay a specific amount to the employees
who have retired or whose employment is terminated other than for the reasons specified in the
Turkish Labour Law. The reserve for employment termination benefits represents the present
value of the estimated total liability for the future probable obligation of the Group determined by
using certain actuarial assumptions. Actuarial gains and bosses generated after January 1, 2013,
are accounted for under equity in accordance with the revised bAS 19 standard.

b. Pension rights

The Parent Bank’s personnel are members of the Yapı ve Kredi Bankası Anonim Şirketi
Mensupları Yardım ve Emekli Sandığı Vakfı (“the Fund”) which was established in accordance
with the 2Oth temporary artiole of the Social Security Law No. 506. The technical financial
statements of the Fund are audited in accordance with the Article 38 of the Insurance Supervision
Law and the “Regulation Regarding the Actuaries” by a registered independent actuary.

Temporary artiole 23th paragraph 1 of the Banking Act published in the Official Gazette No 25983
dated November 1, 2005 stated that foundations like the Fund are to be transferred to the Social
Security Institution (“SSI”) within three years beginning from the publication date of the article.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (‘TL”))

Accounting policies (continued)

The arlicle of the Law related ta the transfer was canceHed (pursuant to the application by the
President on November 2, 2005) by the decision of Constitutional Court (decision na: E.2005/39,
K. 2007/33 dated March 22, 2007) published in the 0ff icial Gazette Na. 26479 dated March 31,
2007, and the effect of the law article was suspended from the date of the publication of the
decision.

The reasoning ot the Canstitutional Court regarding the abrogation ot the corresponding article
was published in the Official Gazette dated December 15, 2007, No 26372. With the publication
of the reasoning af the decision, the Grand National Assembiy of Turkey (“GNAT”) started to work
on new legal arrangements regarding the transfer ot the fund members ta SSI and the related
articles of the “Law Regarding the Changes in Social Insurance and General Health Insurance
Law and Other Related Laws and Regulations” No 5754 (“the New Law”) regulating the transfer
of the tunds were approved by the GNAT on April 17, 2008. The New Law was published in the
Ofticial Gazette No. 26870 dated May 8, 2008. With the new law, the banks’ pension funds wilI be
transferred to 551 within three years from the date ot publication of the decree and this period can
be extended for a maximum af two years with the decision of the Council ot Ministers. The
transfer period was extended for another two years with the decision of the Cauncil ot Ministers
Na. 2011/1559 published in the Official Gazette dated April 9, 2011. Accarding ta the
“Amendment af Social Insurance and General Health Insurance Law Na. 6283m published in the
Ofticial Gazette dated March 8, 2012, Cauncil of Ministers was authorized ta increase the two
year extensian periad mentianed abave ta faur years. Accarding ta the decisian af The Cauncil af
Ministers dated Febmary 24, 2014, the transfer date is set as May 2015.

A commission (whose members are the representatives of the SSI, the Ministry of Finance,
Turkish Treasury, State Planning Organizatian, ERSA, Saving Deposit Insurance Fund (“SDIF”),
ane member representing the Fund and ane member representing the Fund members) is in
charge af the calculatian af the value of the payment that would need ta be made ta 551 ta settle
the abligatian using a technical interest rate ot 9,8% by Iaw taking into cansideration income and
expenses by insurance branches af the funds and the excess af salaries and incame paid by the
funds aver the salaries and incame ta be paid in accardance with the 551 arrangements which
shauld nat be less than 551 arrangements, related ta the members af the Fund as af the date ot
the transfer including the members wha have lett the scheme.

in accardance with the New Law, after the transfer ta 551, any sacial rights and payments ta
Fund members and their beneficiaries which are not pravided althaugh they are included in the
Fund Title Deed wilI cantinue ta be pravided by the Fund and the emplayers af the Fund
members.

The Parent Bank accaunts for a provision for the technical deficit based on the repart prepared by
a registered actuary in accardance with the rates determined by the New Law.

c. Defined contribution plans:

The Bank is required ta pay certain contributians ta the Sacial Security Institutian on behalf af
their emplayees. Other than these payments, the Graup daes nat have any further abligation in
this respect. Such premiums are charged ta personnel expenses when incurred.

d. Short term benefits of empioyee:

Within the scape af TAS 19, the Graup measures the expected casts of accumulated paid leaves
as expected payments it wilI make due ta unused leave rights as at the end of the reparting date.
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Accounting policies (continued)

XVII. Ezplanations on taxation:

a. Current tax:

The Corporate Tax rate is 20% in accordance with the article number 32 of the New Corporate
Tax Law no.5520 which is published in the official Gazette dated June 21, 2006 and numbered
26205. This tax rate is applied ta accounting income modified for certain exemptions and
deductions, and additions for certain non-tax deductable expenses and allowances for tax
purposes.No further tax iş payable unless the profit is distributed.

Turkish tax egislation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiaries to file a
consolidated tax return. Therefore, provisions for taxes, as reflected in these consolidated
financial statements, have been calculated on a separate-entity basis.

Dividends paid to non-resident corporations, which have a place of business in Turkey or to
resident corporations are not subject to withholding tax. Otherwise, dividends paid are subject to
withholding tax at the rate of 15%. An increase in capital via issuing bonus shares iş not
considered as profit distribution and no withholding tax incurs in such a case.

Corporations are required to pay advance corporate tax quarterly et a rate of 20% on their
corporate income. Advance tax is deciared by the 1 4th and paid by the 1 7th day of the second
month following each calendar quarter end. Advance tax paid by corporations for the current
period is credited against the annual corporation tax calculated on the annual corporate income in
the following year. Despite the offset, if there is temporary prepaid tax remaining, this balance can
be refunded or used to offset any other financial Iiabilities to the government.

A 75% portion of the capital gains derived from the sale of equity investments and immovable
properties heid for at least two years iş tax exempt, if such gains are added to paid-in capital or
heid in a special account under shareholder’s equity for five years.

Under the Turkish Corporate Tax Law, losses can be carried forward to offset against future
taxable income for up to t iva years. Losses cannot be carried back to offset profits from previous
periods.

Under the Turkish Corporate Tax Law, effective from April 24, 2003, investment allowances had
provided a deduction from the corporate tax base of 40% of the purchase price of purchases of
the brand new fixed assets having economic useful life and exceeding TL 10 and directly related
with the production of goods and services and investment allowance that arose prior to April 24,
2003 had been taxed at 19,8% (withholding tax) unless they had been converted ta new type at
companies’ wiil. Eftective from January 1, 2006, Turkish government had ceased ta offer
investment incentives for capital investments and companies having unused qualifying capital
investment amounts as of June 30, 2006 would be able ta deduct such amounts from corporate
income for the following years.

in Turkey, there is na procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Tax
returns are required ta be filled and delivered to the related tax office until the evening of the 25th
of the fourth month following the balance sheet date and the accrued tax e paid unlu the end of
the same month. Tax returns are open for 5 years from the beginning of the year following the
balance sheet date and during this period the tax authorities have the right to audit tax returns,
and the related accounting records on which they are based, and may issue re-assessments
based on their findings.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Tax rates that ara used in tax calculations before the exemptions by foreign subsidiaries by taking
current tax regulations in their countries nto cansideration as of December 31 • 2014 are as
fallows:

Netherlands 25,00%
Russia 20,00%
Azerbaijan 20,00%
Malta 35,00%

b. Deferredtax:

The Group calculates and accounts for deferred income taxes for temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in these financial
statements in accardance with “Turkish Accounting Standard for Income Taxes” (“TAS 12’) and in
accordance with BRSA’s explanations and circulars and the tax legislation, the Group calculates
deferred tax on deductible temporary differences except for general ban boss provisions, to the
extent that future taxable income is estimated ta be available. in the deferred tax calculation, the
enacted tax rate, in accordance with the tax legislation, is used as of the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax iiabilities ara recognized for alI resulting temporary differences whereas deferred tax
assets resulting from temporary differences ara recognized to the extent that future taxable profit
wili be available against which the deferred tax asset can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities of subsidiarias subject ta consolidation hava been netted of in
their standalone financial statements in accordance with TAS 12. The calculated deferred tax
asset and deferred tax liability are presented as net in these financial statements.

Tax effects of the transactions that are directly accounted under equity are alsa reflected ta
equity.

Additionaliy, in accordance with the related legislation of BRSA, deferred tax effect, if income, is
not eligible for dividend distribution and share capital increase.

c. Transfer pricing:

The article no.13 af the Corporate Tax Law Na.5520 describes the issue af transfer pricing under
the title of “Disguised profit distribution” by way of transfer pricing (previously included as
“Disguised profit” in the Carporate Tax Law No.5422). “The General Communiquö on Disguised
Prof it Distribution by Way of Transfer Pricing” published at November 18, 2007/26704, explains
the applicatian related issues an this topic effective fram January 1, 2007, alsa taking into
account the regulations in Article 41 af the Income Tax Law.

“Arm’s length principle”, which is the basis for the transfer pricing rule, is the pricing system ta be
fallowed for purchase or sale activities between related parties for any product or seMce
transactians as if the transaction is realized with any ather third pariy. According to this
cammuniquĞ, if the taxpayers canduct transactians like purchase and sale of goods or services
with the related parties where the prices are not determined accarding ta the arm’s length
principle, then it wiil be concluded that there is a disguised profit distribution by way of transfer
pricing. Such disguised profit distributians wilI not be deducted fram the corporate tax base for tax
purposes.

As discussed in the relevant sectian af this communiquĞ, the taxpayers ara required to filI aut the
“Transfer Pricing, Contralled Foreign Entities and Thin Capitalizatian” form for the purchase and
sale af goads or seMces canducted with their related parties in a taxation period, attach these
farms ta their corparate tax returns and submit ta the tax offices.
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Accounting policies (continued)

XVIII. Explanations on borrowings:

The financial Iiabilities classified at fair value through profit/loss, trading and derivative financial liabilities
are valued with theirfairvalues and the otherfinancial Iiabilities are carried at “amortised cost” including
costa of transactions using the “effective interest method”.

The Group classifies some of its financial liabilities as the financial liabilities classified at fair value
thraugh profiVloss in order to eliminate the accounting mismatch at the initial recognition. For the related
liabilities until the maturity, the Bank presents interest expenses paid and the difference between
amortized cost and acquisition cost in the interest expense, the difference between the fair value af the
financial liabilities and amortized cost presents under the trading gainİQoss) in the income statement.

The Group utilises various hedging techniques ta minimise the currency, interest rate and liquidity risks
of ha financial Iiabilities. Na convertible bonds have been issued.

Also, Group obtains funds by issuing bonds and bilis.

XIX. Explanations on issuance of share certificates:

When ahares are issued above their nominal value, the excess over the nominal value is accounted
under shareholders’ equity as “Share premlum”.

Na dividend payments of the Parent Bank were announced after the balance sheet date.

XX. Explanations on avalized drafts and letter of acceptances:

Avalized drafts and acceptances are included in the “off-balance sheet commitments”.

XXI. Explanations on government grants:

In accordance with the related articles of the “Law Regarding the Supporting af Research and
Development Activities” numbered 5746, until balance sheet date, the Group received government grant
from TÜBITAK amaunting ta TL 1.585 (December 31, 2013 - TL 1.203).

XXII. Prof it reserves and profit distribution:

Retained earnings as per the statutory financial statements ather than legal reserves are available for
distributian, subject ta the legal reserve requirement referred ta below. Legal reserves consist of first
and second reserves as foreseen in the TCC. The TCC specifies that the first legal reserve is
apprapriated at the rate of 5% until the total reserve is equal ta 20% af paid-in capital and that the
secand legal reserve is appropriated at the rate af 10% of distributians in excess of 5% of paid-in
capital; however holding campanies are not subject ta this application. Accarding ta the Turkish
Cammercial Cade, legal reserves can anly be used ta compensate for accumulated lasses and cannat
be used for ather purpases unless they exceed 50% ot paid-in capital.

GÜN:
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Accounting poiicies (continued)

XXIII. Earnings per share:

Earnings per share disciosed in the income statement are caiculated by dividing net protiVloss for the
year tü the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period concerned.

Current Period Prior Period

Net income/Ooss) from continuing operations to be appropriated
to ordinary sharehoiders 2.056,015 2.333.177
Weighted average number of issued ordinary shares(thousand) 434.705.128 434.705.128
Earnings per share from continued operations (tuh TL) 0,0047 0,0054

Current Period Prior Period

Net hncome/(Ioss) frorn discontinued operations to be
appropriated to ordinary shareholders - 1.326.012
Weighted average number of issued ordinary shares(thousand) - 434.705.128
Earnings per share trom discontinued aperations (tuh TL) - 0,0030

in Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution ot shares
(“bonus shares”) to existing sharehoiders frorn retained earnings. These bonus shares are treated as
issued shares in earnings per share computations. For the purpose of earnings per share computations,
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted in respeat of bonus
shares issued without a corresponding change in resources by giving thern a retroactive effect. in case
bonus shares are distributed after the balance sheet date but before the preparation of the financial
statements, earnings per share is calculated considering the new nurnber of shares,

in 2014 no bonus shares were issued bythe Parent Bank (December 31, 2013- no bonus shares were
issued).

XXIV. Related parties:

For the purpose of these financial statements, sharehoiders having control shares ot the Bank, key
management personnel and board members together with their families and companies controlied
byİaffiliated with thern, associated companies and joint ventures and the Fund providing post
employment benefits are considered and referred to as rehated parties in accordance with “Turkish
Accounting Standard for Related Parties” (“TAS 24”). The transactions with related parties are disciosed
in detaH in Note VUh. of Section Five.

XXV. Explanations on operating segments:

information about operating segrnents which are determined in hne with ‘Turkish Financial Reporting
Standard about Operating Segments” (“TFRS 8”) together with organizational and internah reporting
structure of the Bank, are disciosed in Note XV ot Section Four.

XXVI. Expianations on other mallers:

None.

)y;:. . . . . .
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Accounting policies (continued)

XXVII. Legal mergers under common control:

As in TFRS 3 or in another standard in TFRS there is an absence of treatment that specifically applies
ta business combinations involving entities under common control, by examining the practices included
in the generaliy accepted global accounting standards the Group decided ta apply an accounting polioy
in parauel with the “pooling ot interests’ methad in view af its judgement that the economic substance of
the relevant transaction will be most reliabiy and accurately reflected in this manner. in the accounting
of business cambinations which occur under comman cantrol, assets and liabilities, subject ta business
combinations, are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements at their carrying values.
Income statements are consolidated as of the beginning of the financial year in which the business
combinations occurred. Financial statements belonging to previous periods also are adjusted in the
same way in order ta ensure the comparability. As a result of those transactions, any goodwill or
negative goodwill is not calculated. The difference between the investment amount and the share in
capital in the acquired company is directly accounted under equity as “the effect of legal mergers under
common control”.

POA has issued a policy decision in July, 2013 regarding “Accounting for business combinations
Subject ta Joint Control Group” which is effective for annual periods beginning on December 31, 2012.
Based on this decision, 1) rights in business combinations under common control combinations should
be accounted for by the method of pooling of interest, ii) due ta that goodwill should not be included in
the financial statements, Hi) while poohng of interest method is applied, at the beginning of the reporting
period where the common control occurs, corrections should be made in the financial statements as if
the combination has been completed and this common control should be represented comparatively.
The accounting polioy applied by the group is consistent with the decision of principle.

GOt MUHASE2EC;
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Section bur

Information related ta financial position af the Graup

Explanations on cansolidated capital adequacy ratio:

a. The consolidated capital adequacy ratio of the Group is 14,36% (December 31, 2013— 15,32%)
and the Parent Bank is 15,03% (December 31, 2013— 16,00%).

b. The capital adequacy ratio is calculated in accordance with the “Regulation Regarding the
Measurement and Evaluation of Banks’ Capital Adequacy Ratio, “Regulation Credit Risk
Mitigation Techniques”, “Regulation on calculation of Risk-Weighted Amounts of Securitizations”
published in the 0ff icial Gazette No. 28337 dated June 28, 2012 (“Regulation”) and “Regulation
Regarding Banks’ Shareholders’ Equity” published in the Official Gazette No. 28756 as of
September 5, 2013”.

For the calcuJation of amounts subject to credit risk, the Bank classifies the Ioans in the related
risk weight taking into consideration the risk ciasses, ratings and the risk mitigating factors.
“Comprehensive collateral method” is used in considering the risk mitigating factors for the
banking and trading book.

For the calculation of capital adequacy ratio; financial information, which is prepared in
accordance with the current regulations, is used. Within the scope of this Regulation, trading
books and banking books are defined and they become subject to credit risk and market risk
calculations. in addition, market risk and operational risk caiculations are included in the
calculation of the capital adequacy ratio, in accordance with the existing regulation.

Amounts taken into consideration as deduction items are subject to credit risk calculations.
Assets subject to amortization or impairment are taken into consideration after relevant nettings
over their net book values for the caiculation of risk-weighted assets.

in the calculation of the vaJue at credit risk for non-cash loans and commitments, the receivables
from counterparties in such transactions are weighted after netting with specific provisions that
are classified under liabihties and calculated based on the Provisioning Regulation. The net
amounts are then multipiied by the rates stated in the Article 5 of the Regulation and inciuded in
the relevant exposure category defined in the Regulation.

in accordance with Articie 5 of the Regulation, counterparty credit risk is calculated for repo
transactions, securities and commodities. The “Fair Vaiue Valuation Method” mentioned in the
communiquĞ is used for the counterparty credit risk caicuiation.

in the caiculation of the value at credit risk for the derivative financial instruments which are in
banking books, the receivables from counterparties are multipiied by the rates stated in the
Regulation, reduced as per the “Regulation on Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques” and then
inciuded in the reievant exposure category defined in Regulation.

BIĞ1J7 D7 5rr:r7M.1J1s7sEC
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Information related ta financial positian af the Graup (cantinued)

c. Infarmatian related ta capital adequacy ratla:

Risk Weights
Psrena Bank

0% 20% 50% 75% 100% 150% 200% 250% Talat

ğmaunts subjeot la credit risk 41210040 6.206.895 25.726.733 39.453.298 85.215.409 3.496.976 8.330.515 702.203 210.350.077

Risk classdicaliona:
Oondocnal and urcond:l’onal r000:vaOea
trom centra govemmenis or cenira; banka 38 562.292 . 4761 155 - - - - 43.623,460

Condıtiona! and uncond lional receivables
ham regional Or locai governrnenıs 143 - . - - - - 149

Condıt;onai and uncond4ionai recervatles
trom adma:siratıve un;ts and non
commeraja: enisrprisoa - . . 1.067 . - 1.067

Ccnd;i:onal and unconditional recaivablea
trom mutlaaleral development banka 4.553 . . . . . 4.853
Condıtronal and uncondilional raceivables
trom international organizaliona . - . . . . - -

Condilionar and unconditional raceivablas
‘am banka and brokerage houses - 6 202 643 5 225 344 - 704.230 - . . 12.132.217

Conditıonai and uncondliona! raceivablas
tam corpcmiea . . . . 74.798,145 . . . 74.798.145

Conoitiona[ and uncondiuonal retait
recarvablaa - 39 375.736 4.343.363 - . . 43.719.765
Cond.tıonal and uncondit:onal race:vaOiea
se:’.ıred by mongagea . . 15.738.760 . . . - 15.738.768
Paat dua iacorvabiea . . 77 502 705.16.3 470,164 . - 1.255.849
Paceiv,blea dal;nad as h:1 rak caleg:-nj
by ha Reşutalor . . 1.453 49 220 3 025.792 8 330 515 702.203 12.110,183
Sacuredbymodgages . . . .

Securitızatıon posilions . . . .

Shorl-ierm receivables trom banka.
brokerage housea and corporates . - .

lnveatmenta aimitar 0 cotleative inveatmant
lunda . . . .

Other raceıvabtea 2,350,903 4.103 . . 4.610,615 6,965.621

Credtt Risk Weighled Amounts - 1.241.378 12,863.366 29.509,973 85.215.409 5.245.453 16,661.029 1.755.507 152.572.125

Risk Weighls
Cansolidated

0% 20% 50% 75% 100% 150% 200% 250% Total

Amounts subject ta credil risk 41.553.931 6.398.004 26.072.492 39.697.741 96.910.766 3.624.311 9.330.515 702.203 223.289.983

Risk classitications:
Conditional and unconditionat receivablea trom
central govarnrnenas or central banka 39.431,856 5.601 4 795.633 . 24.270 . - - 44,257,562
Condıtional and unconditionat receivables trom
re9ionat ör iocei governmanta ‘ 149 104 . , 253
Condıtiansi and unconditionat receivabtes trom
admintatraiıve unita and non-commerciat
enlerprıses . . . . 1.067 ‘ . 1.067
Condıtionap and uncandilionat receivabtes trom
mullıtatarat development banka 4.653 . . . . ‘ 4,853
Condılional and uncondıtionat receivabtea trom
international organizatıons - - - . .

Condittonat and uncondıtionat receivabtea trom
banka and brokerage houaas . 6 367.951 5 536 534 951.135 . . . 12.075.620
Cond’iionat and unoondıtionat receivabtaa trom
corporates . . . - 55.265 663 121 791 . 90.387.454
Condıtona: and unonndıiicnai rerait ‘eoevaea . 39.620 239 4.342.969 . . 43.984.200

Ccnditonai and uncondilionai recaivables saajrsd
Oy morıgagea . - 15.736.755 - - . . - 15.738.769
Paaa dua recovables . - 77 502 719 a12 475.726 - . 1.273.042
Receivab!aa detined as htgh risk category by ha
Regutator . - 1.453 - 49020 3 026.792 6 330.515 702.203 12.110.183
Secured ay rnorigagea . - . . . .

Secuni:zation POa:riOnS . . . . .

St’on-term recewabea 1,0m banka. brokeraga
houaes ard corporates - . .

lnveatmenta aimıtar 1° coltective ınvestmena tunda - - - - . .

Olharreoeıvabtea 2.117.220 4.103 . - 2.555 630 - . - 4.676.953

Crsdit Risk Weighted Amaunts - 1.279.601 13.036,246 29.773.306 96.910.766 5.436.468 16.661.030 1.755.508 164.852.925
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(Convenience translatlon of publiciy annaunced cansolidated tinancial statements originally issued
in Turklah, sea in nota 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta cansalidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts ara expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Information related ta financial position af the Graup (cantinued)

d. Summary information abaut capital adequacy ratlo:

The Parent Bank Consolidated The Perent Bank Consolidated
Current Perlod Current Period Prior Period Prior Period

Capdal Requiremenl lorCredit Risk (Value al Credit Risk’O,OB) (CRCR) 12205.710 13,188.234 10.042.902 10.664.694
Capital requiremenl tor market dsk (MRCR) 130.250 131.992 197.468 310.892
Capital requirement for operational ,isk {ORCR) 817.197 920.434 802.350 910.611
Shareholders’ equity 24.705.420 25.558.364 22.084.113 23.141.967
Shareholders’ equity/ (CRCR+ MRCR+OflCOfl)’ 12,5’100 15,03 14,36 1600 15,32
Common Equlty/(CRCR. MflCR+ORCOR) 115900 10,94 10,58 - -
teri Capitaı ı(( CRCR+ MRCR, ORCOR) ‘12,5’lOO) 11,52 11,23 - -

e. Infarmation abaut shareholders’ equity items:

December 31,
2014

Common Equity Tler 1 Capltal
Paid-in Capital to be Entilled for Compensaflon after Ali Creditors 4.347.051
Share Premlum 543.881
Share Cancellation Protits -
Legal Resewes 10.807.976
Other Comprehensive Income according to TAS 1.582.517
Profit 3.439.976

Net Current Period Profit 2.056.015
Pdor Period Profit 1.383.961

Provisions for Possible Losses 180,211
Bonus Shares trom Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint-Ventures not Accounted in Current Period’s Profit 4.503
Minority shares 462
Common Eguity Tler 1 capltal betore reguıatory adjustments 20.906.517
Common Equlty Tier 1 capital: reguiatory adjustments
Current and prior periods’ losses not covered by reserves, and losses accounted under equity according to

TAS (-)
Leasehold lmprovements on operational leases (-) 157.347
Goodwill and intangible assets and related deferred tax liabilities (-) 286.987
Net daferred tax assets / liabilities (-)
Shares Obtained against Article 56, Paragraph 4 of the Banking Law (-)
lnvestments in own common eguity (-)
Totat of Net Long Positions of the Investments in Equity Items of Consolidated Banka and Financial lnstitutions

where the Bank does not own 10% or less of the Issued Share Capital Exceeding the 10% Threshold of above
Tier 1 Capital (-)

Total of Net Long Positions of the fnvestments in Equity Itema of Consolidated Banks and Financial lnstitutions
where the Bank owns 10% or iess of the Issuad Share Capital Exceeding the 10% Threshold of above Tier 1
Capital (.)

Mortgage seMcing rights (amount above 10°?, lhreshold) (-)
bel erred tax assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax ıiabiıity) (-) -
Amount Exceeding the 15% Threshold of Tier 1 Capital as per the Articie 2, Cfause 2 of the Regulation on

Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banka (-)
The Portion of Net Long Posibon of the Investments in Equity ltems of Consotidated Banka and Financiaı

institutions where the Bank owns 10% Dr mete of the lssued Share Capitaf not deducled Irom Tier 1 Capital ()
Mortgage servicing rights (amount above 10% threshold) (-) -
Excess Amount arising from Deferred Tax Assets from Temporary Difterences (-) -
Other ilems to be defined by the regulator (-) -
Reguiatory adjustments applied to Common Equity Tier 1 due to insufficient Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 to cover

deductions (-) 475.638
Total regulatory adjustments ta Common eguity Tier 1 919.972
Common Eguity Tier 1 capital 19.986.605
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(Convenience translatlon of publiciy annaunced consolidated financlaı statements originaliy issuad
in Turkish, sea in nota 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amaunts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (‘TL”))

Information related to financial position of the Group (continued)

December 31,
2014

Additional Tier 1 capital: instruments
Previıaged stocks which ara not included in common equity and share premiums
Directly issued quaiifying Additional Tier 1 instruments (approved by the reguiators) plus related stock surpius

(Issued or Obtained atlar 1.1.2014)
Directly issued quaiifying Additional Tier 1 instruments (approved by the regulators) plus related stock surplus

(Issued or Obtained after 1.1.2014)

Minority shares
Additional Tiar 1 capitaı before reguıatory adjustments
Additional Tiar 1 capitaı: reguıatory adjustments
Direct and indirect Investments of the Bank on its own Additional Gore Gapital (-)
Total of Net Long Positions of the lnvestments in Equity tenis of Gonsolidated Banks and Financial Institutions

where the Bank does not own 10% or Iess of the ıssued Share Gapital Exceeding the 10% Threshold of
above Tier ı Gapital (-)

The Total of Net Long Position of the Direct or Indirect investments in Additionai Tier 1 Gapital of GonsoOdated
Banks and Financial institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% of the issued Share Gapital (-)

Other items to be Defined by the regulator (-)
Regulatoıy adjustments applied to Additionai Tier 1 dua to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions (-)
Total reguıatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 capital
Additionaı Tier 1 capital
Regulatary adjustments ta Common Equity
Goodwill and Other ıntangibıe Assets and Related Deferred Taxes not deducted trom Tier i Gapital as per the

Temporary Articıe 2, Glause 1 of the Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Gapitaı Adequacy
Ratios of Banks (-)

Net Deferred Tax AsseVLiabihty not deducted from Tier ı Gapital as per the Temporary Arlicle 2, Glause 1 of the
Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Gapital Adequacy Ratios of Banks (-

Tier 1 capital
Tier 2 capltaı
Directiy issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments (that ara approved by the regülatör) plus reiated stock surplus

(lssued orObtained after 1.1.2014)
Directiy issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments (that are approved by the regüiatör) plus related stock surplus

(Issued orObtained before 1.1.2014)
Pıedged sources on behaif of the Bank for the use of committed share capital increase by sharehoiders
Generic Provisions
Minority shares
Tler 2 capltal before regulatory adjustments
Tier 2 capital: regulatary adjustments
Direct and Indirect investments of the Bank on its own Tier ii Gapital (-)
Total of Net Long Positions of the Investments in Equity tenis of Consohdated Banks and Financial institutions

where the Bank does not own 10% or ıess of the issued Share Gapital Exceeding the 10% Threshold of
above Tier i Gapital (-)

The Total of Net Long Position of the Direct or Indirect nvestments in Additional Gore Capital and Tier ıi Gapitai
of Gonsolidated Banks and Financial Institutions where the Bank Owns 10% or more of the lssued
Share Gapitai Exceeding the 10% Threshold of Tier 1 Gapitai (-)

Other items to be Defined by the regulator (-)
reulatory adjustments ta Tier 2 capitaı

Tler 2 capital
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(Convenjence translation of pubilciy announced consolidated financial statements originatiy lssued
in Turkish, see in note 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless atherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turklsh Lira (“TL”))

Information related to financial position of the Group (continued)

December 31,
2014

Totat capitaı 25.886.926
Loans Granted against the Articles 50 and 51 of the Banking Law (-) 23512
Net Book Values of Movables and Immovabtes Exceeding the Limit Defined in the Articte 57, Clause 1 of the

Banking Law and the Assets Acguired against Overdue Receivables and Hetd for Sale but Retained more
than Five Years () 7,900

Loans to Banks, Financial Insütutions (domesticlforeign) ot Oualifıed Shareholders in the fon of Subondinated
Debts or Debı tnstruments Purchaşed fmm Such Parlies and Oualified as Subordinated Debts () 159.277

Deductions as per the Article 20, Clause 2 of the Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital
Adeguacy Ratios of Banks ()

Other items to be Defined by the negutator (-) 137.865
The Portion of Total of Net Long Positions of the lnvestments in Equity ltems of Consofidated Banks and

Financial Institutjons where the Bank does not own 10% or less of the Issued Share Capitaf Exceeding the
10% Threshold of above Tier 1 Capital not deducted from Tier ı Capital, Additional Core Capital orTier ıı
Capital as per the Temporary Article 2, Clause 1 of the Regulation (-) -

The Podion of Totat of Net Long Positions of the ınvestments in Equity tenis of Consolidated Banks and
Financial ınstitutions whene the Bank owns mone than 10% of the Issued Share Capitai Exceeding the 10%
Threshoıd of above Tier ı Capitat not deducted from Additional Gore Capitat on Tier t Capital as per the
Temporary Anticle 2, Ctause 1 of the Regufation (->

The Pontion of Totat of Net Long PosiUons of the tnvestments in Equity tenis of Consolidated Banks and
Financiat Institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% of the Issued Share Capital Exceeding the 10%
Threshofd of above Tier f Capitaf not deducted from Additionaf Gore Gapitaf on Tier tl Gapital as per the
Temporary Article 2, Clause 1 of the Regulation (-) -

Sharehoıders’s eguity 25.558.364
Amounts beıow the thneshoıds for deduction 860.094
Remaining Total of Net Long Positions of the Investments in Own Fund Items of Consotidated Banks and

Financiaf Institutions where the Bank owns 10% er tess of the Issued Shane Capital
Remaining total of net tong positions of the ınvestments in Tier ı capitat of Gonsofidated banks and Financiat

tnstitutions where the Bank owns more than 10% Ot Less of the Tier t Capital
Remaining montgage seMcing nights
Net deferred tax assets anising koni temporary differences 860.094

GÜNEY



(Convenience translation of publicly announced consolidated financlal statements originaliy issued
in Turkish, see in nate 1. of seotion three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Nates ta consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otheıwise stated amaunts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Information related ta financial position of the Group (continued)

December 31,
2013

Core capital
Paid-in capital 4.347.051

Nominal capital 4.347.051
Capital commitments (-> -

Adjustment to paid in capital
Share premium 543.881
Share repeal
Legal reserves 8.976.351
Adjustment to legal reserves
Profit 4.586.935

Net Current pedod prof it 3.658.952
Prior period profit 927.984

Provisions for possible losses up ta 25% of core capilal 209.470
Prolit on sale of associates, subsidiaries and buildings 298.614
Primaiy subordinated loans -
Minority shares 2.527
Loss that is not covered with reserves (-) -

Net current period loss
Prior period loss -

Development cost of operating lease (-) 101.133
Intangible assets (-) 1.393.590
Deferred- assets for tax which exceeds 10% of core capital (.)
Excess amount expressed in the Law (Article 56, Srd paragraph) (-)
Goodwill (Net> -

Total core capital 17.470,1 07

Supplementary capital
General provisions 1.520.873
45% of increase in revaluation fund of movables -
45% of increase in revaluation fund of fixed assets -

Bonus Shares from Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint-Ventures not Accounted in Current Periods
Profit 4.503
Primary Subordinated Debts excluding the portion included in Core Capital -

Secondary subordinated loans 5.078.223
45% of value increase fund of financial assets available for sale and associates and subsidiaries (172.325>
Adjustment to paid-in capital, profit reserves and previous years losses(except adjustment to legal
reselves)
Minority share -
Total supplementary capital 6.431.274
Capital 23.901.381
Deductions from the capital 759.414
Partnership share on non-consolidated banks and financial institutions. -

Laans extended ta banks, financial institutions (domestic and abroad) and qualified shareholders,
like secondary subordinated oan and debt instwmenls purchased from these institutions issued,
like primary and secondaiy subordinated oan 162.443
Banks and financial institutions to which equity method is applied, however, assets and liabilities
are not consolidated 457.337
Loans extended being noncompliant with articles 50 and 51 of the Law 3.221
Net book value of properties owned, exceeding 50% banks equity and properties, and trade goods
ovedaken in exchange for bana and receivables that should be disposed within five years in
accordance with article 57 of the Law, but not yet disposed 5.638
Securitisations posilions that la deducted-preferably-from the shareholders’ equity -
Other 129.775
Total shareholders’ eguity 23.141.967
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(Convenience translation of pubilciy announced consolidated financial statements orlginaliy Issued
in Turkish, sea in nota 1. of sectlon three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consalidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otheıwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Information related ta financial position af the Group (continued)

Details on caiculation in accordance with the temporary calculations on equity:

Adjustments 10 Common equity Tier 1 are pedormed acoording to the Temporary Article 2, Clause 1 of
the Regulation on Measurement and Assessmenl of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks.

Information on debt instruments included in the calculation of equity:

• 1 2 3 4 5

Insoor 1 UN:CflE0I BAlIK BANK AUSTAlA MEPmU. Lyrcn CITiBANK YKB

Un:qaa dantrflor 09 CUSiP, SN Dr hiDOrtelg XS086l 979440:
,da%{io, lo’ pıvata plaramenli - - - US984946A573

BHSA 1 CMOİ
LONOON 5100K

Ücaamırp iam<sl ot the inaammenl BRSA BaSA BPSA ORSA EXCMANGE

Ragutalory Irnatmenl - Supçiarranlary Capılat Suyalcmantary Capitat Supptamanlary Capilal Süpptcmsnlsry Caplal Suppiamnnlary Capilal

Transiaıonai Basat it] mtas Yas Yas Yas Yas Yas

Sland atona
- Stand sona SlaM 510.10 - Stano aiono - Sland atona -

Eiiqıttta al alana-alana consowıalmı Censoldated Conso:aaıed Consohdatad Cunso]]oatad Corsoidatad

]nslmmant yıla ytypns lo ha sonatad by 6500
sr.Sdctcn] Loan Loan Laan Loan Bond

Amounl ra:ognsad n ragulatoıy saneat
Curenay n alan, as ot most m<1

mrort:n3 dala] 1.269 1 096 223 220 2.310

P5, satu€ ot pnstnjmonl ıcullanry ir m-man’ 1.357 096 1.410 564 2.319

bas-ıly
—

Liab.i:]y — hat-La1 — haost;ty — Lab:Lly
Sooronatod anna- Ssoorj,naloa Laans- Sübamlısred LDana- Susordinatao Laans- Su5sosnataJ Loans

Accounhing olüssiticatian amonisad <sat amonisad cost amonsad 0051 amonsed rool amotisod <sat

Orlginal dala ot osuanca Janaary 9, 2013 Novambar 21 2013 Marah 31, 2006 duna 25, 2067 Oecombtr 6. 2012

Pamatuaı ot datad OaIad Datad Oatsd Datod Datas

Origiral malurIy dala 10 yaal 10 yaars jfly__ 0 sara 0 yaam

lasLaar cali subad lo prior ORSA aroval Yas Yas Yas Yas Yol

Oplaana] asil dala, canlLngant tmil daNs and
rademplion amani Atlar Sth yaar Atlar SIti yaar - Atlar SIr yaar

Ssbaegsont çat dama. it applicabla Atlar 511, yaar Atlar Stı yaar - - Atlar SIr yaar

Coupon. t dividanda 3 monlha 3 mnnths 6 monlhs 6 monlfla 6 monlha

Faad nr ilosling div[dondiOOupOn Esad Pl,ad Fioaiing Raad

Caupnn ‘alo and any raalad indas 5.5 6.35 EUR]B0P • 3% EURIBOR 2,78’ 5,5

Eaiatance ot ü dIvdand stoppar - , , , -

Polly dscratlonaş, panalty discratonaty ot
rnandaiory ‘ , - - -

Esatonca ot atap il 0< otaar oranIna ta
radnan . , -

Nontumalativa 0< cumulatsa Noncumutalva Noncumts]ativa Nonaimulatira Noncamulatlva Noncumutativa

Conteflibis or non-convoflibio Nona Nona Nona Nona Nona

it corvanıbla. conraralon trigqar (al , - -

il tonranıb]a, lady ur aarsia]ly -

tl conronıb]n, 000varson mla - ,

tl conranıbta. ntandatory ur optanai conraralon , -

9 convanıbta. spacı?y nstmnani lypa
cansanihta inlo . . . - -

Il conrunıbta. spacily Lasuar ot lnalrumanl t
corrana Into . ,

Wrils-dswn leslum <lora hans - Nona yjona Nona

it wrla-doan. anıta down 11906<5 . -

it mala-down. oli ot paniat , - -

tl nato-donn, psrmanant ur tamporary - , -

it tamporsry mntadoaMı. doac151ü1 tl
mottansn ,

Alia, tb.a ser-ur Atlar la sanıor Atlar <m sorar Atlar ha sarar ANar 11m san-ot
Position in subordinton hiarsrchy in and-lars, betam 95 cmdiio,5. bolom mü oranlara. selam tas red-ton. botora sis craditors. baicra ha

liquidation (spccity instrumenl type TERİ ada dm1. asma T!CR 1 am dost. sana ER 1 suS dabl, sana T]ER t soN dost, asma tER 1 tuh doSt, sama
immedistety sınior ta insmamsntj asla 11CR 2 nmln TER 2 aM 11Cm 2 slth T:Efl 2 ‘nıN 115112

intompiiance ita arada number 7 and 8 ot
“Cnn taand reguiation Yas Yas Yas Yne Yas

0013,5 al .ısorn$imnnes salih anida rambo, 7
andt ol ‘Dar hurd moulatiorÇ 8 ağ 5 2-ğ 8-2-d 8-2-d a-2-ğ
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(Convenience translatlon of publiciy announced consolidated financial statemenis originafiy lssued
in Turkish, sea in nota t. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consalidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otheıwise stated amounts ara expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

information related ta financial positian of the Group (continued)

t. Approaches for assessment of adequacy of internal capital requirements for current and
future activities

Internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) is carried out by continuous assessment
ot the risks to which the bank is or might be exposed and it is aimed to identify and maintain
sufticient capital to cover these risks. Within this scope relevant policies and procedures were
prepared, systems and methods were developed. The Bank documented its approaches on the
process of assessing the internai capital requirements in YKB ICAAP Policy and YKB Risk
Appetite Framework documents which were approved by its Board of Directors. The target capital
adequacy ratio set within the scope of this process is a significant determining factor of the
Bank’s risk appetite.

in accordance with this approach, risk types for which economic capital is caiculated were defined
and necessary procedures were started to perform calculations. This assessment includes the
credit risk, market risk, operational risk, financiai investment risk, reai estate risk, iiquidity risk,
reputational risk, strategic risk, counterparty oredit risk, concentration risk and interest rate risk.
The Bank regulariy reports ICAAP documentations to BRSA approved by the Board of the
Directors.

ii. Explanations on consolidated credit risk:

a. Credit risk is the ioss or the risk of the Parent Bank in case a counterparty can not fulfill its
obiigations stated in agreements where the Bank is at a side. The Parent Bank identities ban
hmits for each customer considering statutory regulations, the internal scoring system, financial
anaiysis reports and geographical and industry concentration and considering credit pohcies
determined by Board of the Directors each year. The hmits defined by the Board of Directors for
each correspondent bank are foIIowedup daily by Treasury Management for the transactions
related with placements with domestic and correspondent banks or treasury operations such as
forward buy and seli transactions. Moreover, daily positions and limit controls of each Treasury
Management empboyee who is authorised for transactions in the market are controlled by the
system. During the ban granting process, hquid coiiaterais are preferred to the greatest extent
possibie. While granting of long term project finance loans, iong term projections ot the companies
are anaiyzed both by financial analysis speciahsts and head office. Aiso the pricing of these
commitments are decided by coordination with Treasury Management.

The Parent Bank aiso monitors limitations on singie borrower and group ot borrowers in
accordance with the reguiations. Loans and other receivables are monitored in terms of the credit
worthiness of borrowers in accordance with the relevant begislation. in addition, the account status
documents for new boans is controHed, and updated where it necessary.

Different rating systems are used for SmaH and Medium Sized Entities (SME) and
Corporate/Commercial customers during the underwriting process ot the Parent Bank. A separate
rating model is used for the customers which operate in construction industry. The Bank uses
scorecard system for its retail and credit card customers for the underwriting and limit
management processes. The scorecard system was internaliy deveboped, and being updated and
approved regularly.

Credit granting authorization leveis are also determined in accordance with the rating of the
customer in SME segment. By using this methodoiogy; it is aimed to estabbish risk based
optimization of credit processes through assigning the iower rated customer to higher authority
levels whereas assigning higher rated customer to bower authority ievels.
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(Convenlence translatlon of publiciy annaunced consolidated financial statements originaliy lssued
in Turkish, sea in nota 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thausands of Turkish Lira (‘TL”))

Information related to financial position of the Group (continued)

Probability of default of a customer 5 calculated through this internaliy developed rating system.
The rating concentration of Corporate/Commercial customers is as follows:

Current Period Prior Period

Above average (1-4) 44,7% 41,3%
Average (5+ -6) 47,1% 51,7%
Below average (7+ -9) 8,2% 7,0%

The Parent Bank takes the tollowing criteria into consideration for the accounting of impaired and
past due loans:

The ban is overdue more than 90 days.

The borrower is not abla to pay at least one of the loans he received from the Bank (cross
defau t)

Having a negative intelligence and bad-record for the borrower in the market.

Deterioration of the creditworthiness of the borrower.

The Parent Bank sets aside specific and general provisions with respect to “value adjustments”
procedures in accordance with the Provisioning Regulation.

Total amount of exposures after offsetting transactions but before applying credit risk
mitigations and the average exposure amounts that are classified in different risk groups
and types, are disclosed below for the relevant period:

Current Period Average
Risk ciassificatlons: Risk Amount< Risk Amount

Conditional and unconditional receivabies trom central govemments 46.429.829 36,179.090

Conditional and unconditionai receivables from regional or locai 253 703governments
Conditional and unconditional receivables Irom administrative units 1 067 994and non-commerciai enterprises
Conditional and unconditional receivabies from multiiateral 4 853 4 795development banks
Conditional and unconditional receivables trom international

organizations
Cond Wonal and unconditional receivables from banks and brokerage 12,620,765 13.173.540

Conditional and unconditional receivables from corporates 92.013.803 77.621.535
Conditional and unconditional retail receivables 44.237.200 44.749.607

Conditional and unconditional receivables secured by modgages 15.738.768 13.028.634
Past due receivables 1.273,042 1,330.238
Receivables defined as high risk category by the Regulator 12.148.089 10.866.631
Secured by morigages
Securitization positions
Short-term receivables trom banks, brokerage houses and

corporates
Investments similar to collective investment funds
Other receivables 4.676.953 6.978.217

Total 229.344.622 203.933.984

(1) Represents amounts before taking risk mitigating factors into considerations.



(Convenience translatlon of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy lssued
in Turklsh, sec in note 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amaunts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Information related ta financial position of the Group (continued)

b. The Parent Bank has control limits over the positions of forwards, options and similar agreements.
These positions are measured and managed by following their market values and by taking
potential risk into considerations throughout their maturities, in accordance with Caunterparty
Credit Risk management. Limits ara also calculated and dynamically managed by taking these
potential risks into considerations. Daily market value calculations, limit controls, collateral
assessments ara performed and reported to the relevant departments within the Bank.

The Group may use its rights, as stated in the derivative agreements based on which the Bank
realizes derivative transactions, in order to eliminate the oredit risks that may arise due to being
exposed to severe credit risk levels arising trom fluctuations in the market.

c. in line with the Provisioning Regulation, ii the cash risk of a customer is classified as
nonperforming, the non-cash risk is alsa classified as nonperforming under the same group where
the cash risks were already followed and specific provision is reserved.

Restructured Ioans are alsa classified and followed up according ta the regulation an provisions
considering the Bank’s credit risk policies. Accordingly, the financial position and commercial
aperations of related customers ara monitored, their principal and interest payments are follawed
up with the restructured repayment schedule and the necessary precautions are taken.

d. The Group’s banking activities in foreign countries and credit transactions are subject ta periodical
follow-up in terms of the econamic canditions af the related country and the evaluation af the
creditworthiness of the customers and financial institutians. Na material risks have been observed
in scope of these operations.

e. 1. The proportion of the Parent Bank’s top 100 and 200 cash oan balances in total cash loans
is 21% and 28%.

2. The proportion of the Parent Bank’s top 100 and 200 non-cash oan balances in total non
cash laans is 47% and 58%.

3. The proportion of the Parent Bank’s cash and non-cash oan balances with the first 100 and
200 customers comprises of 23% and 30% of total cash laans and non-cash loans.

f. The Group provided a general oan loss pravision amounting to TL 1.927.821 (December 31,
2013- TL 1.520.873).

GÜNEY r1EZ nEN EViv.n EEEE NUN/EEEEEG



(Convenience translatlon of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy lssued
in Turkish, see in note 1. of sectlon three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta cansalidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (cantinued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Information related to financial pasition af the Group (continued)

g. Risk prafile accarding ta the geagraphical cancentratian:

Risk Classiticalions”
1 2 3 4 5 5 7 6 9 10 11 Totel

Current Period
Oomestic 45.926.022 253 1.067 5,116.932 37.196.149 44.056.273 15.734.972 1.226.622 12.147.933 4.305.654 215.701.761
EU counlries 397.290 - - 1.712 5.484.390 1.716.537 19.193 2,148 1,467 108 249.101 7.871926
0ECD countrias’ - - - 200.701 65.196 473 744 13.033 - . 280.137
Otf-shore banking regions - - - - 390 - 18.603 - . - - 18.993
USA. Canada 50.650 - - 3,141 1.124,156 316,335 3,745 - - - - 1.498.027
Otlıer countries 55.867 - - - 994.306 2.729.596 138.923 904 31.920 48 1 15.385 3966.949
lnvestment and associates,

subsidiaries and joint ventures . . . . . . . 6.803 6.803
Undistributed Assets / Liabilities’4’ . . . . . . . . . -

Total 46.429829 253 1.067 4.853 12.620.765 92.0l3.803 44.237.200 15.730.786 1.273.042 12.148.089 4.576.953 229.344.622

Risk Ctassiticationsmfl im

1 2 3 4 5 8 7 6 9 10 11 Tabi
Priorperiod

Oomestic 35.023.621 299 694 5.586.595 62.207.225 43.065,060 10.910.834 1.429.909 10.395.996 4,100,088 172.720.621
EU couniries 305.868 . . 2,302 5,353.676 1.577,994 23,484 2.505 4.216 84 . 7281,249
OECD countrias°1 .. . . 251,656 62.117 835 . 24.640 . . 339.448
Ctt-shore banking regions . - - ‘ 259 . 21.055 . . . . 21.314
USA, Cansda . . - 909 1.061.249 405,618 6,305 187 1.679 . . 1475.947
Olber countries 61.656 1,584 - - 472,116 2.789.8V 17,487 22.759 44,702 29 141.955 3.552.165
lnvesiment and associales,

subsidiaries and oini venturas - . - - . - - - - - 6,803 6.883
Undistributed Assais / Lisbilities4’ - - . - - . - —

Totai 35392.165 1,883 894 3.211 l2.735.851 67.042,831 43.134,228 10,936,385 1,505.146 10,395.109 4,240,846 185,397,547

(1) Risk ctassifications in the ‘Regulation on Measuremani and Evaluation ot Capiisl Adequacy ot Banks’ wili be used.

(2) lncludes credit risk amounis of otal esposure betore oredit risk mitigation.

(3) OECD Countrias other han EU countries, USA and Canada.

(4) Asseis and liabilities ara not atlocated on a consistent basis.

1-Conditional and unoonditional receivables 1mm central govemments or central banks
2-Conditional and unoonditional receivables trom regional or local governments
3-Condrtional and unconditional recaivables trom administraiive unita and non-commercial enterprises
4-Conditional and uncondisional receivsbles trom multilateral development banka
5-Conditional and uncondilional receivables 1mm banks and brokerage houses
6-Conditional and unconditional recaivables Irom corporates
7-Condıtional and unconditional retail receivables
8-Conditional and uncondilional receivables secured by mortgages
9-Past dua recaivables
1 0-Recelvables detined as high risk category by the Regutator
1 1-Other receivables

GoEY3;.G.ir;iZ D[oi’iET”.’1
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(Convenlence translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turkish, sea in note 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Informatian related ta financial position of the Group (continued)

h. Risk profile according to remaining maturities:

642 1 yaar and
Risk classifications<11’<’> 1 month 1-3 month 3-6 month month over Totat

Condilional and unconditionat receivables trom
central govemments orcentral banks 21660728 1.120789 1.254410 2.481.776 19.820.664 46.339.367

Conditionat and unconditionat receivables from
regionat er tocat govemments - . 177 . 76 253

Conditionat and unconditionat receivables frorn
administrative units and non-commerciat
enteıpdses 451 - 535 . 81 1067

Conditionat and unconditionat receivables trom
multitaterat development banks 2.008 554 1.153 1.138 . 4.853

Conditionat and unconditionat receivabtes trom
international organizations - - - - -

Conditionat and unconditionat receivabtes trom banks
and brokerage houses 2.492.672 1.602.969 4.294.835 940.049 3.430.240 12.820,765

Conditional and unconditionat receivables trom
coıporates 12.165.795 7.366.241 12.060.008 11.827.218 48.594.541 92.013.803

Conditional and unconditionat retait receivabtes 1.098.436 2.316.762 12.308.438 5.099.874 23.413.689 44.237.199
Conditional and unconditionat receivables secured by

mongages 261.088 1.300.545 1,261.959 894.535 12.020.641 15.738.768
Past due receivables - - - . -

Receivables defined as high risk categoş by the
Regulalor 21.924 273 23.756 1.029 12.101.107 12.148.089

Secured by morigages - . - - - -

Securitization positions - - - -

Shofl-term receivables frorn banks, brokerage houses
and coıporates - - - . . -

tnvestrnents sirnitar to collective investrnent funds . - .

Other receivables . . . . -

Generaı Total 37.703.102 13.708.133 31.205.271 21.245.619 119.441.039 223.303.164

(1> Includes credit risk amounts of totat exposure before credit risk mitigation
<2) The tablo above does not include iferns without maturity.

ı. An international rating firm, Fitch Ratings’ external risk ratings are used to determine the risk
weights of the risk categories as per the Article 6 of the “Regulation on Measurement and
Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks. The international risk ratings are used for the
exposures to central governments/central banks and for asset classes for which the counterparty
resides in foreign countries.

Exposures to central governments and central banks which are not rated by Fitch Ratings are
included in the calculation of capital adequacy as unrated. Receivables from residents in Turkey
are classified as unrated. Risk weights ot accounts which are not included in the trading accounts
are classified by issuers credit rating.
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(Convenience transiation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issuad
in Turkish, sea in nota 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta cansolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (‘TL”))

Information related to financial positian af the Graup (continued)

Fitch Ratings’ risk ratings as per the credil quality grades and the risk weights acoording to
exposure categories are presented below:

Risk Ciassifications

Claims on banks and

Credlt ouaılty CIaims on intermediary institutions

Orada Fitch Ratings administrative Remaining Remaining
Claims on bodies and other maturity of maturity of

sovereigns and non-commercial claims under claims over Claims on
Centraı Banks undertakings 3 months 3 months

AAA

1
AA+

0% 20% 20% 20% 20%
AA

AA

A+
A 20% 50% 20% 50% 50%

2

BBB÷

666 50% 100% 20% 50% 100%

3 636-
BB+

36 100% 100% 50% 100% 100%

4 68-

6+
6 100% 100% 50% 100% 150%

6-

CCC+

Ccc

150% 150% 150% 150% 150%6 cc
e
D

T
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(Convenience translation of publiciy announced consolidated tinancial statements originaliy lssued
in Turklsh, sea in nota 1. af section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Information related to financial position of the Group (continued)

Risk balances according to risk weights:

Total exposure amount before and after applying risk mitigation techniques and total amounts
deducted trom the capital which are calculated in accordance with the Appendix-1 of the
“Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks” are
presented below:

0edui!t-ns

Risk Wo!g.ts 0’, 20% 50% 75% 100% 1 50% 200% %250 Talal

eouW
Tcıa exposure
boftre rediİ nak
miligaton 41.456 812 6404054 28278335 39970731 100 515 545 3 655247 5346.715 702.203 225.344622 328.562

2 Totar owosuro
aher credit risk
m1Loai[cn 41.553.931 6398004 26072.492 39.697.741 96.910766 3.624.311 8.330.515 702.203 223.2D9.963 328.562

j. Information according to sectors and counterparties:

For loans which are classified as impaired loans due to delay of collection of principal or interest
by 90 days and above and/or negative risk assessments of creditworthiness of the debtor;
“Specific Provision” is set aside in the accompanying financial statements as of December 31,
2014.

For loans which are classified as past due but not impaired loans due ta delay of collection of
principal or interest up to 90 days; “General Provision” is set aside in the accompanying
financial statements as of December 31, 2014.

Sectars ! Caunterparties Loans
General

Impaired Loans Past dua Provisions Specific Pravislons

Agrlcultural 119.043 213.130 9.660 86.632
Farming and raising Iivestock 108.502 200.964 8.909 79.383
Forestry 7.073 6.913 408 5.046
Fishing 3.468 5.253 343 2.203

Manufacturlng 1.653.443 1.515.422 260.573 1.155.778
Mining 150.274 147.851 5.720 134.937
Production 1.478.299 1.352.196 252.328 1.005.438
Electric, gas and water 24.870 15.375 2.525 15.403

Construction 478.408 491.961 106.011 240.103
Services 749.095 1.006.579 84.982 515.539

Wholesale and retail trade 353.170 327.656 40.971 232.882
Hotel, bad and beverage

services 66.952 87.170 5.132 43.786
Transportation and

telecommunication 145.816 275.275 10.398 117.279
Financial jnstitutjons 67.894 164.435 23,898 40.819
Real estate and renting

seMces 42.484 25.116 879 26.324
Self-employment seMces . - - -

Education seMces 7.286 6.820 324 5.232
Health and social seMces 65.493 120.107 3.380 49.217

Other 1.760.844 1.302.559 39.301 1.190.653

Total 4.760.833 4.529.651 500.527 3.188.705
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(Convenlence translation of publiciy announced consofidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turkish, sec in note 1. of sectlon three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (cantinued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Information related to financial position af the Graup (continued)

k. Information about value adjustments and changes in the ban impairment:

The Group provides specif ic provisions for Ioans which are overdue for 90 days or more by taking into
account the collaterais received from customers in accordance with the Provisioning Regulation.

The Group provides general ban loss provision for Ioans classified as first and second group ban
portfolio. This provision is calculated in ancordance with the Provisioning Regulation.

Opening Provision amounts set Reversal of Other Close out
balance aside during the pefiod provisions adjustmentst1 balance

1 Specific provisions 2.445.001 1.321.488 (200.564) (459.644) 3,106.281
2 General provisions 1.520.873 467.753 (46.837) <13.968) 1.927.821

(1) The figure represents the written off hans, foreign exchange difterences and also includes non performing ban seles.

ili. Explanations on consolidated market risk:

Risk management activities of the Parent Bank are carried out under the responsibility of Board of
Directors in aceordance with “Regubation on the Internal Systems and Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process of Banks” and “Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy
Ratios of Banks”.

bn order to comply with the regubations, the Parent Bank set its activities related with market risk
management in accordance with “Regulation on the bnternab Systems and bnternal Capitab Adequacy
Assessment Process of Banks” and “Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy
Ratios of Banks” published in the Official Gazette no. 29057 dated July 11,2014.

Market risk pobieies, whieh are approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank and updated annuably, if
needed; inebude limit, methodobogies, processes and responsibibities. Market risk calculations for the
trading portfolio are performed by using standard method and Value at Risk (VaR) method. VaR is
cabcubated using historicab simubation method and reported to the management on a daily basis and
Executive Committee on a monthly basis. bn order to keep the effect of interest rate and foreign
currency fluctuations at minimum, the Bank enters into derivative transactions of which some of the
derivative transactions are subject to hedge accounting applications.

The tabbe bebow shows details of the market risk as of December 31, 2013 in accordance with
“Regubation on Banks’ bnternab Controb and Risk Management Systems” and “Regubation on
Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks” published in the 0ff icial Gazette
no. 28337 dated June 28, 2012.
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(Convenlence translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy lssued
in Turklsh, see in note 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to cansalidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

iniarmation related ta financial pasition of the Group (continued)

(1) Expianatians on consolidated market risk:

a. Informatian an market risk:

Current Prior
Period Period

(1) Capital requirement against general market risk standard method 59.260 65.237
(Il) Capital requirement against specific risks - standard method 3.137 40,521

Capital requirement against specific risks of securitization positions—
standard method - -

(111) Capital requirement against currenoy exchange risk - standard method 22.927 120.679
(IV) Capital requirement against commodity risks - standard method 133 667
(V) Capital requirement against exchange risks standard method -

(Vi) Capital requirement against market risks of options - standard method 1.718 6.306
(Vii) Capital requirement against counterparty credit risks - standard method 44.817 77.480
(ViB) Capital requirement against market risks of banks applying risk

measurement model -

(IX) Total capital requirement against market risk (I+il+lll+iV+V÷Vl+Vll÷Vlil) 131.992 310.892

(X) Vaiue-at-market risk (12,5V111) or (12,5*lX) 1.649.900 3.886.150

b. Average market risk table af calculated market risk at month ends:

Current Period Prior Period

Average Maximum Minimum Average Maximum Minimum

interest rate risk 98.833 137.772 59.688 53.268 66,725 35.987
Share price risk 9.797 24.106 2.141 43.410 71.561 22.150
Currency risk 58.824 137.927 22.927 157.521 215.201 120.679
Commodity risk 191 316 49 1,354 2.565 667
Settlement risk . . .

Option risk 1.620 3.935 389 2.049 6.308 318
Counterpaıly credit risk 58.826 115.087 27.853 46,576 77.480 16,702

Total amount subject ta risk 228.091 419,143 113.047 304.178 439.840 196.503

(2) Guantitative infarmatian an caunterparty risk:

The ücounterparty oredit risk” is calculated for repurchase transactions and derivative transactions. in
counterparty credit risk calculations, the fair value methodoiogy is used according to the Appendix-2 of
the “Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banka’. in case of
derivative transactions, the total of repiacement costs and potentiai credit risks is considered as the
exposure amount. The total of volatihty, currency, credit quality levels and holding periods for
marketable securities subject to repurchase and funding through repurohases are considered during the
calculation of risk amount for repurchase transactions.

in counterparty credit risk calculations, credit limits are set by internal methods and fair value
methodology is used for capital allocation caiculations.
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(Convenience translatlon of publiciy annaunced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turkish, see in nde 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta cansalidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts ara expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL’))

Informatian related to financial position af the Group (continued)

The Bank uses the same polioy and procedures applicable to oredit collateral and provisioning for
counterparty credit risk.

in accordance with the counterparty risk policies the Bank does not have the risk of the opposite
tendency.

Risk and coliateral amounts are calculated daily. Changes appiicabie to market vaiues are also revised
using daily actuals.

Total counterparty credit risk from trading activities is TL 560.213 for the year ended December 31,
2014.

Current Period Prior Period

Interest rate contracts 134.142 182.300
Foreign exchange rate contracts 926.494 3.082.637
Commodity contracts 5.062 3.708
Equity shares related contracts - 52.943
Other 1.159 2.080
Gross Positive FairValue 197.416 998.783
Netting benefits - -

Net current exposure amount - -

Collateral received - -

Net derivative position 197.416 998.783

(3) Explanations on calculation af capital requirements through a risk measurement model
which is permilled ta be used by the autharities;
Market risk is measured for trading portfoiio and standard method and value at risk method are
used.

IV. Explanations an operational risk:

The Bank calculates the amount subject to operational risk based on “Basic lndicator Method” by using
2013, 2012 and 2011 year-end gross income balances ot the Bank, in accordance with Section 4 ot the
“Regulation Regarding Measurement and Evaluation ot Banks’ Capital Adequacy Ratio” published in the
Official Gazette No. 28337 dated June 28, 2012, nameiy “The Calculation of the Amount Subject to
Operational Risk”. As of December 31, 2014, the total amount subject ta operational risk is TL
11.505.425 (December 31, 2013 - TL 11.382.718) and the amount of the related capital requirement is
TL 920.434 (December 31, 2013- TL 910.617).

Totaı / Totaı

number of years
for which gross

2 Prior Period 1 Prior Period Current Period income is

vaıue value vaıue positive Rate (%) Totaı

Gross Income 5.863.663 7.048.382 5.496.635 6.136.227 15 920.434
Amount subject to
operational risk (To1a112,5) 11.505.425
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(Convenlence translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy lssued
in Turkish, see in note 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts ara expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Informatian related ta financial position of the Group (continued)

V. Explanations on consolidated currency risk:

The difference between the Group’s foreign curreney denominated and foreign currency indexed on-
and off-balance sheet assets and babilities is defined as the “Net Foreign Currency Position” and it is
the basis of currenoy risk. Cross currenoy risk is also taken into consideration for the currency risk
calculations and measurements.

The Group keeps the amount of currency risk exposure within the related legal limits and follows the
exchange position on a daily/regular basis. in addition, although the internal exchange position limit is
lower when compared to the related legal limit, there has not been any limit exceeding during the
period. As an instrument of currency risk management, derivatives such as swap and forwards are used
to reduce risk whenever needed. In order to guard against extreme volatility during the year stress tests
are applied. Value at risk method is used for the measurement of foreign exchange risk.

The details of hedging of the foreign currency debt instruments and net foreign currency investment risk
with derivative instruments are disclosed in section four Note Xlll.

The Parent Bank’s publicly announced foreign exchange bid rates as of the date of the financial
statements and for the last five days prior to that date are as follows:

(Exchange rates presented as fulI TL)

USD EUR

Balance sheet evaluation rate TL 2,31 890 TL 2,82070

First day current bid rate TL 2,32350 TL 2,83390
Second day current bid rate TL 2,31820 TL 2,82550
Third day current bid rate TL 2,31770 TL 2,83680
Fourth day current bid rate TL 2,32090 TL 2,83120
Fifth day current bid rate TL 2,31 650 TL 2,83170

Arithmetic average of the last 31 days: TL 2,28790 TL 2,82070
Balance sheet evaluation rate as of
Prior Period: TL 2,13430 TL 2,93650
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(Convenience translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements ariginaliy issued
in Turklsh, see in note 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Informatian related ta financial position of the Group (cantinued)

Information on currency risk af the Group:

EUR USD Other FC’4’ Total

Current perlod
Assets
Cash (cash in vault, eftectives, cash in transit,
chegues purchased)
and balances with the Central Basık of the
Republic of Turkey 3206.803 13.601.768 3.415.412 20.223.983
Banks 1249224 1.562.328 129.818 2.941.370
Financial assets et fair value through prof it or
loss 22.159 141.494 1.651 165.304
Money market placements - - . -

Available4or-sale financial assets 337.519 2.837,533 177.206 3.352.258
Loans 13.253.753 32.770.407 1.173.273 47.197.433
ınvestments in associates, subsidiaries and
joint ventures - 260.370 260.370
Heıd-to-maturity investments 488.213 3.130.433 - 3.61 8.646
Hedging derivative financial assets . . - -

Tangibıeassets 1.873 - 46.228 48.101
Intangible assets - . . -

Other assets LZ 3,219.273 2.417.882 239.186 5.876,341

Total assets 21.778.817 56.461.845 5.443,1 44 83.653.806

Liabilities
Bank deposits 364.814 1.207.246 109.256 1.681,316
Foreign currency deposits 16.037.788 25.016.814 1.990,719 43.045.321
Funds from money market - 2.365.914 - 2.365.914
Funds borrowed trom other financial
institutions 8.197,968 10.755,354 392.087 19,345.409
Marketable securities lssued 1.931.361 7.965.033 172,479 10.068.873
Miscellaneous payables 847.768 810.712 21.882 1.680.362
Hedging derivative financial liabilities 56.238 155,110 1 211.349
Other liabilitiesıa 2.754,667 5.809,155 29.063 8,592.885

Total ılabiıities 30.190,604 54.085.338 2.715.481 86.991.429

Net on balance sheet posltlon (8.411.767) 2,376.507 2.727.657 (3.307.623)
Net off balance sheet posltlon” 8.411.045 (2.572.236) (2.136.115) 3.702.694
Financial derivative assetş 11.067,319 21,481.098 1.063,123 33.611.540
Financial derivative liabilities 2.656.274 24.053.334 3.199.238 29.908.846
Net position (742) (195.729) 591.542 395.071
Non-cash loans 11.008.161 20.171.147 1.594.308 32.773.616

December 31, 2013
Total assets 24.124.237 43.499.837 5.128.667 72.752.741
Total iiabiiities 30.281.374 47.804.855 2.389.806 80.476.035
Net on-balance sheet posltion (6.157.137) (4.305.018) 2.738.861 (7.723.294>
Net off-balance sheet posltion 6.679.854 4.310.856 (2.254.260) 8.736.450
Financial dedvative assets 9.972.379 19,485.667 1.599,119 31.057.165
Financial dedvative liabilities 3.292.525 15.174.811 3.853.379 22.320.715
Net posltion 522.717 5.838 484.601 1.013.156
Non-cash Ioans 9.460.517 13.877.395 1.850.746 25.188.958

(1) ınciudes FX indexed Ioans amounting toTL 5.103.401 (Oecember3l, 2013 .TL4714 007) which have been disclosed as
TL in the financial statements.

(2) Does not include foreign cuuency prepaid expenses amounting to TL 76.011 (December 31, 2013 - TL 60.634).
(3) Does not inçlude foreign currency denominated general provisions for foreign currencies, hedged funds and marketable

securities valuation differences under equity.
(4) Other FC column aiso includes gold balance.
(5) Forward transactions classWıed as commitrnents are aiso inciuded.
(6) in accordance with the principles of the Regulation on the calculation and impiementation of foreign currency net general

position/equity standard ratio by banks on consolidated and non-consolidated basis’ foreign currency intangible assets
amounted TL 22.547 is not considered in the calcuiation.
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(Convenience translatlon ot pubilciy announced consolidated tinancial statements originaliy issued
in Turklsh, sea in nota 1. ot sectlon three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts ara expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL’))

Information related to financial position of the Group (continued)

Currency risk sensitivity anaiysis (1>:

The table below represents the sensitivity of the Parent Bank to 15% change of currency exchange
rates (USD and EUR).

15% change is the assumption of parity change that may be faced in a possible fluctuation used in the
Bank’s stress test scenarios.

Current Pedod Prior Period
Change in currency exchange ratest1 Protluloss eftect ‘ Profitlloss etfect ‘

(+) 15% (144.811) (67.460)

e> 15% 144.811 67.460

(1) Disclosed above is that of the Parent Bank.
(2) Excluding tax effect,

Vi. Explanations on consolidated interest rate risk:

The monitoring of interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities of the Parent Bank, including sensitivity
analysis regarding the effect of interest rate fluctuations on the tinancial statements, is pertormed by
the risk management department for alI interest sensitive instruments over carrying values. The results
are presented monthly to the Asset and Liability Management function of the Executive Committee. By
using sensitivity and scenario anaiyses, the possible effects by interest rate volatility are analyzed. in
these analyses possible losses are calculated for the change in fair value of interest sensitive products
by applying shock tests to interest rates.

Sensitivity anaiyses are also calculated daily within Market Risk reporting on the basis of rnaturity and
foreign exchange types and reported to Senior Management by checking thern against the determined
limits.

The Parent Bank utilizes TUforeign currency and TLITL interest rate swap transactions in order to limit
the interest and foreign currenoy risk arising from short-term deposit and long-term consumer loans
within the TL balance sheet. Furthermore, in order to reduce the repricing mismatch in the foreign
currency balance sheet, foreign currency/foreign currency interest rate swaps are utilized.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Nates ta cansolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (cantinued)
(Unless atherwise stated amounts ara expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Information related ta financial position af the Group (continued)

a, Interest rate sensitivity of assets, Iiabilities and aff-balance sheet items based on
repricing dates:

Non
Uptol 1-5 5vears interest

Current Perlod Month 1-3 Months 3-12 Months Yeers end Over bearing Total

ABsets
Caah (cash in vault, elleotives, cash in transit,
cheques purchased) and batances with the
Central Bank ofthe Repubüc ot Turkey 1299884 - - - 21914781 23.214.655
Banks 1110996 550.000 111.757 48.172 - 2.070.950 3.891.975
Financiat assets et tak vatue through proflUloss 314.255 235,234 530835 72,393 52.955 4,120 1209.792
Money market placements 1568750 - . . -

- 1.558.750
Avaitabte-tor-sate tinanciat assets 1.047.104 3.378.655 7.682.621 3.630.719 2.821,837 113.161 18.674-097
Loans 27.855.780 28.760.233 34,506,942 26.280.409 8.128.703 1,273.042 126.807.109
Hetd-to-matudly investments 46.660 427,237 1.074,105 769.647 3.218.720 - 5.555.359
Other assets 2.516,136 844,399 1,609.333 2.852,046 516.122 5,696.012 14.036.048

Total assets 35,759,555 34.195.158 45.517.593 33.673.385 14.738.337 31.074.066 194,958.705

Liabitities -

Bank deposits 1.457.118 161.294 487.965 31.301 - 406,111 2,543.809
Other deposits 56.203,929 27.010.539 4.620.103 814,992 207.116 16.230.143 105.088.822
Funds from money market 7.737.585 725,194 116.054 195,919 - - 8.774.752
Miscetlaneous payablos - - - - - 8.738.336 8.738.335
Marketabte secudties issued 420,397 4.587.074 3 391,721 3,845.451 1,11 1.294 - 13,355.937
Funds borrowod trom other fınanciat institutions 5.372.903 6,630,970 7,953.400 970.563 489.120 - 21.415.956
Other tiabitties and sharehotders’ equity 317.984 1.916.550 996.160 73.707 4.794.907 26.940.785 35.042.093

Totet Iiabiltties 11,509.916 41.033621 17,565.423 5,931.933 6.502.437 52.315.375 194.958.705

Balance eheot tong position - - 27.952.170 27.741.453 8.135.900 - 63.829.523
Balance sheet ühort posltion (35.750.351) (6.837.863) - - - (21.241.309) (63.829.523)
OtPbalance sheet tong position 3.363.730 13,286.633 1,540,302 - - - 18.190.665
Off-balance sheet short position - - (18,176.694) <408.169) - 118.566.863)

Total position (32.385.521) 5,445-770 29.492.472 9.562.759 7-727.731 (21.241.309) <395.198)

Non
Upto 1-5 SYears interest

Prior Period 1 Month 1-3 Months 3-12 Months Years and Over bearin Total

Assets
Cash (cash in vautt, effectives, cash in transit,
cheques purchased) and batances with the
Centrat Bank ot the Repubtic ot Turkey - - - . - 16.990,749 18.990.749
Banks 1.576.200 595 363 160.720 268.580 - 1,408.263 4.009.126
Financiat assets at fair vatue through protibloss 606.910 302.170 646.595 78.505 16,094 70.890 1.723.154
Money market ptacements 2.928.447 - - - - - 2.928.447
Available-for-sate financiat assets 1,460.255 1.812.665 3.020,550 3.394.855 3,376,746 124.291 13.209.362
Loans 21,973,749 23,795,066 27,746.986 19.201,312 6.716.765 1.188.072 100.623,930
Hetd-to-maturity investments 426,297 1.658.200 1.379,856 213.437 3,009.813 - 6.589.503
Other assets 1.858.357 866.024 1.674,061 2,093.455 291.986 5,149,560 11.935,453

Totat assets 30.854.215 29,231,488 34.630.768 25.250,144 13.411.404 26.931.825 160,309.844

Liabitities -

Bank deposits 593.418 668,674 436.095 134.031 540,702 t372.920
Other deposits 51,418.875 13,295.777 6.169,525 964.820 333.389 13.926,475 86.108.851
Funds trom money market 3,085,947 1.558.317 673.882 287,140 - - 5.605,286
Miscetleneous payables . - . . - 7.268.299 7.255.299
Ma,ketabto securities issued 42.903 914,694 2,459.188 3.649.025 1.357.033 - 5.422.843
Funds borrowed trom other financiat inslitulions 4.382.703 8,251.969 5,071,658 1.361.128 224.109 - 19.291.557
Other tiabtities and shareholders’ equity 307,644 1,871.236 1.131.914 35,018 4.406.619 23,487.637 31.240.058

Totat liabititios 59.831.490 26.560.667 15.942.252 6,431,162 5.321.150 45.223.113 160.309.844

Batance sheet tong position - 2.570.821 18.558.505 18.818.982 7.090.254 - 47.258,553
Batance sheet shofl position <28.977.275) - - - - (18.291.288) (47.268.563)
Off-balance sheet tong position 5.300.906 10.419.510 424.881 - - - 16.145.297
OH-batance sheet shrnt position - ‘ - (14.324.820) (1,247.341) - (15.572.161)

Totat posttion <23.676.359) 13.090.331 19.113.387 4.494.162 5.842.913 (18.291.288) 573.135

-56- -



(Convenience translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Nates ta cansalidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Infarmation related ta financial pasiüan af the Graup (cantinued)

b. Average interest rates for monetary financial instruments:

The following average interest rates of the Group are calculated by weighting the rates with their
principal amounts outstanding as of the balance sheet date.

Current Period EUR USD Yen TL
% %

Assets”
Cash (cash in vault, effectives, cash in transit, cheques purchased)
and balances with the Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey - - - 130
Banks 1,06 1,90 - 10,75
Financial asseta at fair value through profiVloss 1,97 4,41 - 827
Money market placements - - - 11,73
Available-for-sale financial assets 5,49 6,28 - 9,98
Loans 4,55 5,00 5,20 13,50
HeId-to-matudty investments 3,77 5,51 - 9,81

Liabilities “>

Bank deposits 1,42 0,47 - 10,34
Other deposits 1,95 2,11 182 10,74
Funds from money market - 0,85 - 9,47
Miscellaneous payables - - - -

Markelable securitias issued 2,12 3,57 - 7,85
Funds borrowed t rom otherfinancial lnstitutions 1,58 3,33 3,02 9,48

(1) Ooes not include demand/non-interest transactions.

Prior Period EURO USU Yen TL
% %

Assets”>
Cash (cash in vault, effectives, cash in transit, cheques purchased)
and balances with the Central Sank of the Republic of Turkey 0,01 - -

Banks 2,43 1,22 - 8,18
Financial assets al fair value through profiUloss 2,34 4,59 - 8,53
Money market placements 0,50 - - 8,48
Available-tor-sale financial assets 5,41 6,75 - 9,36
Loans 4,88 4,97 4,93 12,35
Held-to-maturity investments 4,26 5,47 8,93

Liabilities (1>

Bank deposits 1,38 2,03 - 8,02
Other deposits 2,76 2,86 2,72 9,05
Funds from money market - 0,89 - 9,01
Mlscellaneous payables - - - -

Marketable securitles issued 1,50 4,55 - 8,13
Funds borrowed from other financial institutions 2,05 3,38 2,99 8,90

(1) Does not include demand/non-interest transactions.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Information related to financial position of the Group (continued)

t. Interest rate risk arising from banking accounts:

The sensitivity anaiysis regarding the effect of interest rate fluctuations on the financial
statements is performed for alI interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities.

Interest rate risk resulting from banking books comprise of repricing risk, yield curve risk, and
basis risk.

Interest rate risk arising from banking book is measured in accordance with “The regulation of
measurement and assessment of interest rate risk by standard shock method arising from
banking accounts”, pubbshed in the 0ff icial Gazette No. 28034 dated August 23, 2011 and legal
limit of this measurement is monitored and reported monthly. Proportional amount of capital is
provided in line with the same level of Interest rate risk arising from banking accounts.

lnterest rate risk is measured and monitored monthly by market risk management. Duration
analysis, gap analysis, basis points value anaiysis, scenario analysis and simulation of net
interest income are performed and reported monthly to Asset Liability Management function of
the Executive Committee. Interest sensitivity is measured most appropriately using the duration
distribution map for every type of product. lnvestment decisions are done by taking into account
the interest rate measurements. The maturity and interest risk for products with uncertain
maturities is effectively measured using the behavioral analysis.

Economic value differences resulting from interest rate fluctuations of the Parent Bank as of
December 31, 2014 are presented in the table below in accordance with the uRegulation of
measurement and assessment of interest rate risk by standard shock method arising from
banking accounts”.

Applied shock
(+1- x basis Gains/SE

currency<” points) GainslLosses LosseslSE

TAY (+)SOObp (1.859.156) (7,53)%
TAY (-)400 bp 1.777.453 7,19%
EUR (+)200 bp (108.509) (0,44) %
EUR (-)200 bp 146.928 0,59%
USD (+)200 bp 18.473 0,07%
USD (-)200 bp 1 15.327 0,47%
Total (for negative shock) 2.039.708 8,26%
Total (for positive shock) (1.949.192) (7,89)%

(1) The interest rate risk discosed above iş that of the Parent Bank.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
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Information related to financial position of the Group (continued)

Vii. Explanation on share certificates position risk from banking book:

1. Comparison of the carrying, fair and market values of equity shares:

Group has no unconsolidated subsidiaries and joint venture quoted in Borsa Istanbul as of
December 31, 2014.

2. information on realised gains!losses, revaluation surpluses and unrealised gains/losses
on equity securities and results inaluded in core and supplementary capitais:

None.

yIlI. Explanations on consolidated liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk covers the inability to fund increases in assets or to meet liabilities when they are due
and other risks arising from transactions undertaken in illiquid markets. These risks contain maturity
mismatch risk, emergency risk and market liquidity risk.

The main objective of the Parent Bank’s overali Iiquidity management is to ensure the continuity of the
Bank’s payment obligations and sustain the level of payments availability in crisis time without risking
the value and the brand name of the Bank. For this reason, two different models are defined: the
current situation liquidity management and emergency situation liquidity management.

The current situation liquidity risk is monitored by the reports of short and long term liquidity. Short
term liquidity position is monitored on a daily basis including the legal Liquidity Adequacy Reports as
to whether the position is within legal limits. Long-term Iiquidity position aims to ensure the financial
stability of the balance sheet and is monitored on a monthly basis. On a monthly basis, the Asset and
Liability Management function within the scope of the meetings of the Executive Board evaluates the
Parent Banks liquidity position and actions are taken when necessary.

in cases when the future financial events require more liquidity than the Bank’s daily liquidity needs,
“Emergency Situation Liquidity Plan” is considered where duties and responsibilities are defined in
detail. Liquidity stress test scenarios are used to measure the Bank’s resistance to unexpected
situations.

The Parent Bank issues bonds and obtains long-term bank loans to overcome the current short-term
funding of the banking sector.

in accordance with the “Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Liquidity Adequacy of the
Banks” published in the Official gazette numbered 26333 dated November 1,2006 by BRSA, effective
from June 1, 2007, liquidity ratio, calculated weekly and monthly, have to be at least 80% for the
foreign currency asset / liability and 100% for the total asset / liability. Liquidity ratios realized in 2014
and 2013 are disclosed below.

,r,3rrt.r.S1 J.*l1..i
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Informatian related ta financial position of the Group (cantinued)

First-term period (Weekly) Second-term period (Monthly)
Current Period’” FC Total FC Total

Average % 176,78 148,55 129,41 108,89
Highest% 252,17 164,87 158,85 114,85
Lowest % 132,76 135,78 107,44 102,67

First-term period (Weekly) Second-term period (Monthly)
Prior Periodt> FC Total FC Total

Average % 178,20 151,90 123,96 111,46
Highest% 236,28 173,32 163,48 124,31
Lowest% 128,64 133,90 102,19 101,56

(1) The tablo disolosed abovo is that of the Parent Bank.

Breakdown of assets and Iiabilities according ta their remaining maturities:

Up to 1 1-3 3-12 1-5 5 years Uncıassified
Demand Month months months years and over Total

Current Period
Assete
Cash (cash in vault, efteotivos,

cash in transit, cheques
purchased) and Balances
with the Central Bank of the
Ropublic of Turkey 5.794.005 11420660 . - . - - 23214665

Banks 2.070.950 1.105.351 534.862 122.668 58.044 - 3.891.875
Financial assets at fair value

through profit orloss 83 175.398 175.560 479.366 276,271 99.077 4.037 1.209.792
Money market ptacements - 1 .568.750 - - - - - 1.568.750
Available-tor-sale financial

assets 69.551 274 992.520 3.345.796 5.292.982 8.929,364 43.610 18.674.097
Loans - 20.004.603 12.380.436 26.926.042 39.570,094 26.652.892 1.273.042 126.807.109
Held-to-maturity lnvestments - 46.660 82.744 60.395 1,803,357 3.563.213 ‘ 5.556.369
Othor assets11 2.507.330 2.059.337 870.641 1.627.618 3.147,921 557.056 3.266.145 14.036.048

Total assets 10.441919 42.351,033 15.035.163 32561.885 50148669 39,801602 4.586834 194958.705

Liablılties -

Bank deposits 406,111 1,457,118 161.294 487.985 31.301 - ‘ 2.543.809

Otherdeposits 16.230.143 56.203.929 27.010.539 4,620.103 814.992 207.116 - 105,086.822
Funds borrowed Irom other - 1.786.742 1.991.449 11.622.321 3.589.937 2.426.507 - 21.416.956

financial institutions
Funds ham money market - 7.737.585 725.194 116.054 195.919 - - 8.774.752
Marketable socurities issuad ‘ 97.556 1.351.038 4.057.358 5.733.957 2.116.028 - 13.355.937
Miscellaneous payables 7.574.394 962.465 99.120 98.025 372 3 3.957 8.738.336
Other liabilities[2> 400.466 509.024 412,717 832.301 3.805.710 5.466.710 23.615.165 35.042.093

Totat iablılties 24,511114 50.754,419 31.751.351 21.534.147 14.172.188 10,216.364 23.619,122 194.958.705

Net ılguidity gap (14.169.195> (26.373.386> (16.714,588> 10.727.738 35.976.481 29.585.238 (19.032.288)

Prior Period
Total assets 7.481.529 37.574.592 14.713.967 25.471.860 39.058.746 31.719.917 4.289.233 180.309.844
Total liabilities 16.247.289 62.486.139 17.470.562 20,867.130 14.352.892 8.253.890 20.631.942 160,309.844

Net ıiguidity gap (8.765.760) (24.911.547) (2.755.595> 4.604.730 24.705.854 23.466.027 (15.342.709)

<1) Assets that are necessary for continuance of banking activities and that cannot be Iiquidated in the short-term, such as
fixed and intangible assets, investments in associates, subsidiaries, assets heid for sale stationary stocks, prepaid
expenses and loans under follow-up, are dassified in this column.

<2) Shareholders’ equity is presented under the Other habilities” item in the Unctassified column.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
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Information related to financial position of the Group (continued)

Breakdown of financial Iiabilities according to their remaining contractual maturitles:

The maturity distribution of values af contracted maturity date of non-derivative financial liabilities is
presented below. Maturity segments also include the interests of related assets and liabilities.

Oemand and tıp 1-3 Above 5
Current ta 1 month months 3-12 months 1-5 years yeara Total

Liabiiities
Deposits 74661.139 27.538,017 5,241.649 902.827 258.342 108.601.974
Funds borrowed trom othertinancial

institutions 1.804779 2.073,840 12,262.271 4.724.601 2.839.650 23.705.141
Funds trom money market 7.754.623 727017 119.420 205.234 - 8.806.294
Subordinatedtoans - 58.857 279.392 3.058.077 5.591.020 8.987.346
Marketable securities issued 121.481 1,396.802 4.264.818 6.518.278 2.149.795 14.451.174

Totaı 54.342.022 31.794.533 22.167.550 15.409.017 10.835.807 164.551.929

(1) Maturities ot non-cash Ioans ara describad in Nota 3 (iv) ot Section V.

Demand and up 1-3 Abave 5
Prior Period ta 1 month months 3-12 montha 1-5 yearo yeara Total

Llabilitiea
Deposits 68.537.766 14,643.476 6.818,324 1.363,732 421.669 91.784.967
Funds borrowed trom other tinanciat

inatitutions 1.576.953 680.871 10.768.294 4.998,264 1.655.275 19.679.657
Fundstrom money market 3.096.150 1.567.308 678,563 298,811 5.640.832
Subordinaled loans - 75.410 287.226 3.277.800 5.465.517 9.105.953
Marketable securities issued 64.493 919.819 2.115.859 4.722.781 1.421.062 9,244.014

Totat 73.275.362 17.886.854 20.665.266 14.661.355 5.963.523 135.455.423

(1) Maturitias ot noncash loans ara described in Nota 3(1v) ot Section V.

IX. Explanations on securitization positions:

None.

X. Credit risk mitigation techniques:

The Group does not use on-balance and off-balance sheet netting for the calculation of credit risk
mitigation factors.

The Group applies credit risk mitigation according to the comprehensive method in compliance with
the article 34 of the “Regulation on Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques”. OnIy cash and cash equivalent
collaterals are taken into account for the purpose of credit risk migration.

Credit derivatives are not taken into consideration for credit risk mitigation techniques.

Cash and cash equivalent collaterais considered for the mitigating the credit risk, are taken into
account at their nominal values. Standard margin is applied where currencies of exposure and the
collateral are different.

Mortgage collaterals considered for mitigating the credit risk are taken into account with the expertise
value (which are also reviewed by the expert group of the Bank) determined by CMB licensed experts.
Based on these values of the collaterais, total amount of credit risk is determined in accordance with
the maximum Loan-to-Value ratio set by BASA. For the guarantees that are taken to mitigate the
credit risk, credit worthiness of the guarantor is measured.
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Information related to financial position of the Group (continued)

The Parent Bank carries mit its activities in aceordance with the BRSA Communiquö for the valuation
of the loans granted for financing of a real estate.

Cheques and notes in connection with a real business transaction are taken into consideration to
mitigate the credit risk.

in order to use bank guarantee as collateral for a credit risk; it is required to hava a counterparty limit
on behalf of the guarantor bank and not ta have mismatoh of the maturity and the amount of the
guarantee and the credit risk.

in the process of credit allocation, cash blockage guarantees, pledges, mortgages, guarantees and
warranties are considered as risk-reducing collaterals.

The Group’s exposure to risks is measured and monitored periodically by using internationaliy
recognized methods, in accordance with international and local regulations and internal policies. With
regards ta the limitation of risks, alsa internal limits are employed besides regulatory limits. Possible
changes that may occur in the economic environment are takan into account for determining these
limits.

Information about guarantees according to risk classifications:

Financlaı Other 1 Physlcaı Guarantoes and
Risk cıassifications Amount ‘> guarrantees<2> guarranteeW> credit dorlvativeW’>

Conditional and unconditional receivables from central
govemments Dr central hanks 47.824642 2.363879 -

Condilional and unconditional receivables Irom regional or local
governmenls 850 -

Condilional and unconditional receivables from administrative
unils and non-commercial enterprises 13935 - -

Conditional and unconditional receivables from multilateral
development banks 190.172 -

Conditional and unconditional receivables trom international
organizations

Conditional and unconditional receivables Irom hanks and
brokerage houses 39,612.259 11.723 -

Conditional and unconditional receivables from corporales 250.345.367 4.498.706 53.910
Conditional and unconditional retail receivables 111.311.495 342,916 - 20.332
Conditional and unconditional receivables secured by

mongages 16.094.730
Past due receivables 1.273.042
Receivables defined in high risk calegory by the Regulator 12.247.440 44,349 - 26
Secudties collateralized by mortgages -

Securitization positions . . -

Shofl-term receivables lrom banks, brokerage houses and
corporates - . .

lnveslments similar 10 collective investment funds - - -

Olher Receivables 4.676.956 -

Totsı 483,590,888 7.261.573 . 74.268

(1) Figures represent the tolal amount of oredit risks prior to the risk mitigating calculations as per the “Regulation on Gredit
Risk Mitigation Teohniques”.

(2) Figures represent the total amount of collaterals which are taken into consideration for the risk mitigating calculations.
Other risk reducing items are not included in this tablo such as; modgages, pledges, guarantees and warranties.

- 62 -



(Convenlence transation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy lssued
in Turkish, sea in nota 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Information related to financial position of the Group (continued)

Xl. Strategies and palicies of the risk management system:

Risk management strategy of the Parent Bank includes measurement and monitoring of the risks with
the methods that are defined in ancordance with the international standards and local regulations. Also
it includes having a sustainable growth in the framework of optimized capital use in accordance with
the principle of keeping a balanced risk and return approach.

Risk Management Department including the sub-departments of “Credit Risk Control and Operational
Risk Management”, ‘Market Risk Management” and “Credit Risk Management”, reports to the Board
of Directors through the Audit Committee.

Credit risk rating modeis are mainiy used to measure and monitor the credit risk. The rating model is
used in day to day activfties of the Bank such as; for the evaluation of new oredit applications,
determination of credit approval authority leveis and monitoring the performance of the existing
customer poılfolio. Performance of the rating model is monitored by a validation team on a regular
basis.

Reports related to the ban portfolio of the Bank are distributed to the relevant departments within the
Bank, on a regular basis. Expected loss calculations for the Bank’s ban portfolio are periormed and
used for determining the objectives and policies of the Bank.

Market Risk Anaiysis unit is responsible for measuring, monitoring and distributing the results of the
market risk to the relevant departments within the Bank, as weli as reviewing the valuation calculations
of financial instruments, which are subject to market risk, in accordance with accounting standards.

The Parent Bank’s exposure to risks is measured and monitored periodicaliy by using internationally
recognized methods, in accordance with international regulations, local regulations and internal
pobicies. bn addition to the regulatory limits, there are also internab Iimits set to measure and monitor
the risk. Possible changes that may occur in the economic environment are taken into account for
determining these limits.

Xll. Explanations on the presentation of financial assets and biabilitles at fair values:

The foblowing table summarises the carrying values and fair values of some financial assets and
liabilities of the Group. The carrying value represents the acquisition costs and accumulated interest
accruals of corresponding financial assets or liabilities.

Carrying vaıue Fair vaıue
Current Period Prior Period Curreni perlod Prior period

Financlaı assets 156.498.200 127.660.468 160.077.923 129.086.493
Dua t ron money market 1.568.750 2.928.447 1.568.750 2.928.447
Banks 3.891.875 4.009.126 3.895.771 4.017.743
Available-for-sale tinanciaı assets 18.674.097 13.209.362 16,674.097 13.209.362
Heıd-to-maturity investments 5.556.369 6.889.603 5.818.301 6.888.193
Loans 126.807.109 100.623.930 130.121.004 102.042.748

Flnanciaı Iiabiıities 157.912.409 129.945.471 158.543.370 130.146.903
Bank deposits 2.543.809 2.372.920 2.540.157 2.378.151
Other deposits 105.086.822 86.108.861 105.304.517 86.180.373
Funds borrowed kem otherfinancial institutions 21.416.956 19.291.567 21,513.899 19.307.177
Subordinated Ioans 6.770.549 6.480.981 6.855.936 6.556.485
Marketable securities issuad 13.355.937 8.422.843 13.590.525 8.456.418
Miscetıaneous payables 8.738.336 7.268.299 8.738.336 7.268.299
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Information related to financial position of the Group (continued)

The fair values of deposits, banks, securities issued and funds borrowed from other financial
institutions are determined by calculating the discounted cash flows using the current market interest
rates.

The fair value of held-to-maturity assets is determined based on market prices or when this price is not
available, based on market prices quoted for other securities subject ta the same redemption
qualifications in terms of interest, maturity and other similar conditions.

The expected fair value of Ioans and receivables is determined by calcutating the discounted cash
flows using the current market interest rates for the Ioans with fixed interest rates. For the Ioans with
floating interest rates (such as overdrafts and credit card receivables), it is assumed that the carrying
value approaches to the fair value.

TFRS 7, “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”, requires ciassification of line items at fair value
presented at the financial statements according ta the defined leveis. These leveis depend on the
observability of data used for fair value calculations. Ciassification for fair value is generated as
followed below:

Level 1: Assets or Iiabilities with prices recorded (unadjusted) in active markets

Level 2: Assets or Iiabilities that are excluded in the Level 1 of recorded prices directly observable by
prices or indirectly observable derived through prices observable from similar assets or Iiabilities

Level 3: Assets and Iiabilities where no obseıvable market data can be used for valuation

According ta these ciassification principles stated,
Iiabilities carried at their fair value ara as foilows:

the Group’s ciassification of financial assets and

Current Period Level 1 Level 2 Leveı 3 Total

Financial assets M fair value through
profit or (Ioss) 99.271 1.110.521 . 1.209.792
Government debt securitios 95.151 - - 95.151
Share certificates 4.037 . - 4.037
Trading derivative financial assets - 1.110.521 - 1.110.521
0111cr marketable securities 83 - - 83
Avaiiable-for-sale financiaı assets 16.375.461 2.291.442 . 18.667.903
Governmentdebtsecurities 16.284.654 - - 16.284.654
Other marketable securities<1> 91.807 2.291.442 - 2.383.249
Hedging derivative financial assets - 256.146 . 256.146

Total assets 16.475.732 3.658.109 - 20.133.841

Trading derivative financial habilities - 860.326 - 860.326
Marketable securities issued (net) - 1.163.996 . 1.163.996
Hedging derivative financial Iiabilities - 440.448 . 440.448

Total Iiabilities . 2.464.770 - 2.464.770

(1> As of December 31, 2014, non-listed share certificates accounted at cost in accordance with TAS 39 amounting ta TL
6.194 is not included.

- 64 -



(Convenience translation ot publicly announced consolidated tinancial statements originaliy issued
in Turkleh, see in note 1. ot section three>

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts am expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (‘TL”))

Information related to financial position of the Group (continued)

Prior Period Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Flnanciaı assets et tair value through profit or
(ıoss> 125.857 1.597.307 - 1.723.164
Government debt securitios 54.967 . ‘ 54.967
Share certificates 20.719 . . 20,719
Trading derivative financial assets . 1.596.112 . 1.596.112
Other marketable securities 50.171 1.195 ‘ 51.366
Availabıe4or-saie financial assets 11.309.340 1.013.832 . 13.203.172
Government debt securities 11.278.626 - . 11.278.626
Other markefable securities<” 110.714 1.813.832 . 1.924.546
Hedging derivative financial assets - 467.627 - 467.627

Total assets 11.515.197 3.878.166 . 15.393.963

Trading derivative financial habilities 863.633 863.633
Hedging derivative financial liabilitios 386.395 386,395

Total ıiabiıltıes - 1.250.028 - 1.250.028

(1) As of December 31, 2013, non-listed share certificates accounted et cost in accordance with TAS 39 amounting ta TL
6,190 is not included.

in the current year, there is no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2.

XIlI. Explanations on hedge accounting:

The Group applies the following hedge accounting modeis as of December 31,2014:

- Fair value Hedge (“FVH”)
- Cash FIow Hedge (“CFH”)

Cross currency interest rate swaps are used as hedging instrument in FVH. Interest rate swaps and
cross currency swaps are used as hedging instrument in CFH. Contractual amounts and the fair
values as at December 31, 2014 of these hedging instruments are presented in the table below:

Current Perlod Prior Perlod
Notlonaıtt Asset LlablIlty Notional”> Asset Llablılty

Hedging lnstrument
Interest rate swap / cr055
currency swap (CFH) 20.360.998 78.251 439.791 17.508.859 160.252 386.395
Cross currency inlerest rate swap
(FVH) 481.084 177.895 657 1.104.763 307.375

Total 20.842.082 256.146 440.448 18.613.622 467.627 386.395

(1) OnIy the set’ Iegs of the related dedvatives are presented with the addition of the “buy” ege of these derivatives amounting ta TL
21,105.415 (December 31, 2013 ‘TL 19.015.071) the total notional of derivative financial assets amounting ta TL 41.947.497 (December
31, 2013 ‘TL 37.628.693) iş accounted for in oft’batance sheet under “Hedging De6vative Financial tnstmments’ ima item.
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Information related to financial position of the Group (continued)

The f air valuation methodology of the derivatives presented in the above table is disclosed in detail in
the aocounting principles section of these financial statements in Section ili. Part IV.

Fair value hedge accounting:

Starting t rom March 1, 2009, the Parent Bank has hedged the possible fair value effects of changes in
market interest rates on part of its fixed interest TL mortgage and car oan portfolios and fair value
effects of ehanges in foreign exchange rates on part of its foreign currency denominated funding by
using cross-currency interest rate swaps. The Bank selected to apply macro FVH accounting for such
relationship in accordance with TAS 39.

The impact of application of FVH accounting is summarized below;

Current Period
Net gaiW(Ioss)

recognlsed in the
Fair vaıue income statement

diflerence / (Derivative
adjustment fınanciat

Type of hedglng Hedged item (asset Nature of ot the hedged transactions
instrument and tiabiıity) hedged riske item> Net fair vaıue of the<’t gainsflosses)°’

Asset Liablıity
Fixed interest

Fixed interest TL and changes in
Cr055 currenoy morigage and Gar ban foreign

interest rate ponfobios and foreign exchange mte
swaps currency funds ,isk (10516) 177895 - <5403)

(t) The amount refers to the fair value of the hedged item calcufaled for the TL fixed interest morigage and Gar boans in accodance with hedge
accounting eftectiveness tests. The foreign exchange rate changes of foreign currency fundings and cross•currency swaps are refbected to
the income statement in foreign exchange gains / losses bine item.

(2) The amounts incbude the foreign exohange difterences and net straight bine interest accruabs of the rebated dehvatives.
(3) The inefiective pohion of the mentioned hedging bransaction is TL 2913.

Prbod Perbod
Net gairtfltoss)

racognised in the
income statement

(Derivative
Fair vaıue of financlaı

Type of hedglng Hedged item (asset Nature of the hedged trensactions
lnstrument and ılablhty> hedged risks 1tem111 Net fair vaıue of the 121 gabnsflosses)13>

Asset Llabiıity
Fixed interest

Fixed interest TL and changes in
morigage and Gar oan foreign

Crass cuuency partfatios and foreign exchange rale
interest rate awacs currency funds risk (5.113) 307375 - (153748)

(1) The amount reters to the fairvalue of the hedged bern cabculated lar the TL fixed interest marigage and Gar Ioans in accardance with hedge
accaunting etfectFweness tests. The foreign exchange rate changes of foreign currency fundings and cross-currency swaps ara reflected ta
the income statement in foreign exchange gains / lasses tine bern.

(2) The amaunts include the foreign exchange ditferences and net stıaight bine interest accruabs ol the rebated dehvatives.
(3) The ineffective pohion ol the mentioned hedging transaction 5 TL 10397.
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Infarmation related ta financial position of the group (continued)

At the inception date, the Parent Bank documents the relationship between the hedging instruments
and hedged items required by the FVH accounting application in accordance with TAS 39 and its own
risk management policies and principles. Every individual relationship is approved and documented in
the same methodology. in accordance with TAS 39, the effectiveness tests of the reiationships are
performed in accordance with the Bank’s risk management policies. in the effectiveness tests, the fair
vaiues of the hedged item are calculated using the same assumptions used in caiculation of fair
vaiues of the derivatives.

The effectiveness tests are performed prospectiveiy and retrospectively on a monthiy basis. At the
inception date the effectiveness tests are performed prospectively. If the underiying hedge does not
conform to the FVH accounting requirements (out of the 80% - 125% effectiveness range) or it the
management voluntariiy decides to discontinue the hedging relation, the adjustments made to the
carrying value (amortized cost) of the hedged item are amortized with the straight ine method and
recognized in the profit and ioss accounts within the remaining maturity. in addition it the hedging
instrument is sold or ciosed before its maturity, the amount of the fair value adjustments of the hedged
items are amortized to profit and Ioss accounts with the straight line method within the remaining
maturity.

Cash fiaw hedge accounting:

The Parent Bank started to appiy macro cash tlow hedge accounting trom Januaıy 1,2010 onwards in
order to hedge its cash tlow risk from fioating interest rate iiabiiities. The hedging instruments are
USD, EUR and TL interest rate swaps and cr055 currency swaps with fioating receive, fixed pay Iegs,
and the hedged item is the cash outflows due to tinancing of interests ot repricing USD, EUR and TL
deposits, borrowings and repos.

The impact of appiication of CFH accounting is summarized below:

Current Periad
Net

gain/( la as)
recognized in Net galnİoss)

Type of hedging Hedged hem ( asset Nature of hedged Net fair vaıue of the hedgin9 reclassified ta
Instrument and iabiiity) riske hedglng lnstrument fundst eguity12’>

Asset Liabifity
Cash flow risk dua

Customer deposits, to the changes in
Interest rate swaps borrowings and repos the Interest rates 78,251 439.791 (297.009) (181.892)

<1) tncludes deferred tax impact.
(2) lncludes tax and foreign exchange differences.
(3) The ineffecfive ponion of the mentioned hedging transaction 5 TL 12.225.

Priod Period
Net

gain!(ioss)
recagnized in Net gaiıü(ioss)

Type af hedging Hedged tam (asset Nature of hedged Net fair vafue of the hedgin9 recıassified ta
instrument and fiabiflty> riske hedglng Instrument fundet 1 eguity<t3l

Asset Llabiılty
Cash flow risk due

Customer deposits and to the changes in
Interest rate swaps repos the interesf rates 160.252 386.395 (115.117) 445.696

(1> Includes deferred tax impact.
(2) Inetudes tax and foreign exchange differences.
(3) The ineffective porfion of the menfioned hedging transacfion is TL 434.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Information related to financial position of the group (continued)

At the inception date, the Parent Bank documents the relationship between the hedging instruments
and hedged items required by the CFH accounting application in accordance with TAS 39 and its own
risk management pohcies and principles. Every individual relationship is approved and documented in
the same way. in accordance with TAS 39, the effectiveness tests of the relationships are performed
in accordance with the Bank’s risk management policies.

The effectiveness tests are performed on a monthiy basis. If the underiying hedge does not conform to
the CFH accounting requirements (out of the 80%-125% effectiveness range) or if the management
voluntarily decides tü discontinue the hedging relation or the hedging instrument is soid or ciosed
before its maturity, the cumulative gam or loss on the hedging instrument that has been recognised in
other comprehensive income from the period when the hedge was effective shall remain separateiy in
equity until the forecast transaction occurs or is no longer expected to occur. When the hedged
forecasted transactions are no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gam or loss is reciassified
from other comprehensive income tü profit and loss.

Net lnvestment Hedge

The Group hedges part of the currency translation risk of net investments in foreign operations
through foreign currency borrowings. The Group’s Euro denominated borrowing is designated as a
hedge of the net investment in the Group’s certain EUR denominated subsidiaries. The total amount of
the borrowing designated as a hedge of the net investment at December 31, 2014 is EUR 275 million
<December 31, 2013 - EUR 275 million). The foreign exchange Ioss of TL 215.653 net-off tax
(December 31, 2013- TL 241.119 foreign exchange loss), on transiation of the borrowing to TL at the
statement of financial position date is recognized in “hedging reserves” in equity.

XIV. Expianations on the activities carried out on behaif of others and fiduciary transactions:

The Group carries out trading, custody, management and consulting seMces on behaif of customers
and on their account. The Group has no fiduciary transactions.

XV. Expianations on consolidated operating segments:

The Group carries out its banking operations through three main business units:

<1) Retail Banking
<2) Corporate and Commercial Banking
(3) Private Banking and Wealth Management.

The Parent Bank’s Retail Banking activities include card payment systems, SME (small medium size
enterprises) banking and individual banking. Retail Banking products and services offered tü
customers include card payment systems, consumer loans (including general purpose loans, auto
ioans, mortgages), commercial mnstailment loans, SME loans, time and demand deposits, gold
banking, investment accounts, life and non-life insurance products and payroli seMces. Card payment
systems cover the management of products, services, campaigns for member merchants as weli as
the sales and activities for a variety of customer types. Crystal, Play, Adios and Taksitçi are the other
card brands providing seMces for the different segments within the World brand, shopping and
marketing platform of the Bank. The Bank also offers debit card and a prepaid card named World
Hediye Card.

Corporate and Commercial Banking segment is organized into three subgroups: Corporate Banking
for iarge-scaie companies, Commercial Banking for medium-sized enterprises and Multinational
Companies Banking for multinational companies. Corporate and Commercial Banking, has a product
range of working capital finance, trade finance, project finance, domestic and international non-cash
loans such as letters of credit and letters of guarantee, cash management and internet banking.

t_çt
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(Convenience translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turkish, sea in nota 1. of sectlan three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

lnformation related ta financial position of the Group (continued)

Through its Private Banking and Wealth Management activities, the Bank serves high net worth
customers and delivers investment products to this customer segment. Among the products and
seMces offered to Private Banking customers are time deposit products, capital guaranteed funds,
mutual funds, Type A Type B funds, derivative products such as forwards, futures and options in
domestic futures exchange (VOB) and international markets, personal loans, foreign exchange, gold
and equity trading, pension plana, insurance products and 7/24 safe deposit boxes and e-banking
services. Also, personal art advisory, inheritance advisory, real estate advisory, tax advisory and
philanthropic advisory are offered within the Private Banking and Wealth Management activities.

The Group’s widespread branch network and alternative distribution channels including ATMs,
telephone banking, internet banking and mobile banking are utilized to serve customers in alI
segments. Foreign operations include the Group’s banking transactions in the Netherlands, Azerbaijan
and Russia. Treasury, Asset — Liability Management and other operations, mainiy consist of treasury
managemet’s results, operations of supporting business units and other unallocated transactions.

The below table is prepared in ancordance with the Management Information System (MIS) data of the
Bank.

Major balance sheet and income statement items based on operating segments:

Treasury,
Private Asset’

Corporate and banking and Other Otiıer Liablilty Talat
Retail commercial weatIh foreign domestic Manegement Consolidatİon operatlans

Current Periad banking banking management operations operallons and Other adjuatmenta of the Group

Cperal(ng ravanua cont(nu(ng 3.154995 1.984.536 193,161 247,469 505.294 2,654.658 38.717) 8.701.395

Cporal(ng axpanses conl(nu(ng (3-Ol 7.768) (595.230) (88.712) (129.605) (202.558) (2.090.124) 39.007 (6.085.010)

Net apemling income continuing 137.201 1.389.306 104.449 117.863 302,736 564.534 290 2.616,385

D)v(dand ‘ ‘

‘ 9.351 ‘ 9.351
(ncomafLoşa Ironı Invaslmants
accounlod based on equ(ty mothod ‘ . . . 42.042 42.842

Profİl baiano taz 137.201 1.389.306 104.449 117.863 302.736 616.127 290 2.668.578

Tax eepense<°’ . . . . . (612.396) . (612.396)
Net period İncoma 4 nam
conllnulng operatlons 131.201 1.389.306 104.449 117.863 302.736 4.331 290 2.056.182

M)non(ty İntorost ).} . .
. (167) . (167)

Not pariod incomo from
d(scontinued oparalions - . . - .

Graup incame/İoss 137,201 1.389.306 104.449 117.863 302,735 4.184 290 2.056,015

Segmont asseİs 56.535.591 50.386.444 170.177 6.463.517 11,404,711 65.569.693 (2.088.869) 194.476.254

lnvostmonls in 65500(5105.
subsid(arias and (Dini vanturas . . . . . 482.441 ‘ 482.441

Tolal sssets 56.570.591 56.386,444 170.177 6.463.517 11.404.711 66.052.134 (2,088.869) 194.958.705

Segmont )iab(I(lias 41,080,689 44.598.409 22.300.352 5.199.806 9.550.610 54.095.433 (2.080.329) 174,745.000

Sharaholdars’ aqu(ty . . . . . 20.213.705 ‘ 20.213.705

Total iİabiiİties 41.080.689 44.598.409 22.300.382 5.199.806 9.550.610 74.309.138 (2,080.329) 194.958.705

(1> Consol(dation adjustmants include transactions with subsidiarias and invostmants consotidated in thasa tinanoial stataments.
(2> D(vidond İncome and tax provision axpenses hava not bean distributed basad on operating segments and hava beon prasented under

‘Treasury, Asset-Liabiİity Management and other.
(> Segmant assat and İiability batances ara axtraoied from Management [nfomıation Systams (MİS).
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Notes ta cansalidated financial statements December 31,2014 (cantinued)
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Information related ta financial position af the Graup (continued)

Treasury,
Private Asset

Corporate and banking and Other Other Liability Total
Retail commercial wealth foreign domestic Mansgement Consolidatlon operations

Prior Period banking bonking ,nanagement operatlons operations and alie, adlustmentş ‘> of the Group

Oparating ravonue contFnuing 3.041.777 1,705.313 1 59.474 194003 790.654 2.331,393 (1 87,099) 8035.515
Oparating espansas conünuing <2.522.807) <470.916) (72.996) 106.292) (160.820) (1.747.698) 6.062 (5.095.467)
Net operating Income continuing 519.970 1.234.397 86.478 97.711 609.834 583.695 (181.031) 2.940.048
Dividend incoma . . . ‘ 15.243 . 55.243
income/Loss frDm lnvestmants
accounlad based on aqu(ly meihod . . ‘ .. ‘ 7.688 ‘ 7,688
Profit before tez 518.970 1.234.397 86.478 87.711 609.834 606.626 (1 81.037) 2.962.979
Toz espense 121 . . ‘

‘ (629.802) ‘ (629.602)
Net perlod Income from continulng
oper8tions 518.970 1.234,397 86.478 87.111 609,834 (23.176) (191.037) 2.333.977
Mincri(y (niarast (.) , . . . ‘ (237) . (237)
Not poriod income tro,,, discont(nuod
operations ‘ ‘ ‘ . ‘ 1.326,012 ‘ 1,326.012

Group lncomefloes 518.970 1.234,397 86.478 87.711 809.834 1.302.519 (181.031) 3.658.952

Sogment assels 47.229,794 41.802.945 177,420 6.151.505 9.992,267 57,237.856 (2.746.083) 1 59.845,704
(nvestments in assoc(ales, subs(diar(es
and (o(nt ventüres . . ‘ ‘ ‘ 464,140 ‘ 464,140

Totsl 888815 47.229.794 41.802.945 177.420 6.151.505 9.992.267 51.101.996 (2.746.083) 160.399.044

Sogment (abilit(os1’1 34,135,357 35,600,735 18,846,849 5,007,946 8,235.977 42.969,422 (2.791.952) 142,024,334
Shareholders’ equisy . . . . . 18,285,518 . 18.285.510

Tabi iiabllltieo 34.135.357 35.600.735 18.846.849 5.007.948 8.235,917 61.214.932 (2.791.952) 1 60.309.844

(1) Consol(dat(on adjus(ments (ncludo ıransactions w(th subs(d(aries and (nvestments consohdafed in these f(nanciai statemenis.
(2) D(v(dend income and taz prov(s(on ezpenses hava not been d(stdbuted based on operat(ng segments and hava beon presented under

‘Treasury, Asset-L(ab(hty Managemeni and Other.
(3) Segmont asset and iiab(hty bafances are ezlracted (rom Management Informat(on Systems (Mis).

GiJr’Y r1,.’ai.c1z .,, Çri’:Rrr: 1’.’’:
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (‘TL”))

Section five

Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements

Explanations and notes related to consolidated assets:

a. Information related to cash and the account of the Central Bank:

1. Information on cash and the account of the Central Bank ot the Republic of Turkey (‘the
CBRT”):

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC

Cash 1.696.981 584.111 1.287.182 519.407
The CBRTt11 1.293.701 19.460.663 43.293 16.984.910
Other - 179.209 - 155.957

Total 2.990.682 20.223.983 1.330.475 17.660.274

(1) The balance of gold amounting to TL 3302,860 iş accounted for under the Central Bank foreign currency
account (December 311 2013— TL 2.923.543>.

2. Information on the account of the CBRT:

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL rc

Demand unrestricted amount 1) (2t 1.293.701 2.046.196 43.293 2.023.825
Time unrestricted amount . . - -

Resetve requirement3> - 17.414.467 - 14.961.085

Total 1,293.701 19.460.663 43.293 16.984.910

(1) According to the letter received from BRSA on Januaıy 3, 2008, average reşewe requirements balances
monitored under CBRT demand deposit account.

(2) In accordance with the announcement of CBAT numbered 2014-72 and dated October 21, 2014 , interest
payment on TL resewe balances (including the average balance) is started on quarleriy basis, starting from
November 2014,

(3) According to the “Required Reserves Communiquö”, numbered 2005/1, Bank is required to maintain reserves
for Iiabilities in TL, USD, EUR and goW currencies.

As of December 31, 2014, the Group’s reserve deposits, including those at foreign banks,
amount to TL 20.785,117 (December 31, 2013- TL 17.068.838).

b. Information on financial assets at fair value thraugh profit and loss:

The Group does not have tinanCial assets at tair value through protit and loss subject to repo
transactions (December 31, 2013 - None) and there is no tinancial assets at fair value through
prof it and loss giyen as collateral/blocked (December 31,2013 - None).

GÜNEY 3/Er:ME.NDrÇN.1v,S.ETNUH*.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

c. Positive differences related to trading derivative financial assets:

ç.

(1) OLCO countries except SU countries, USA and Canada.

- 72 -
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Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC

Forward transaations 48.509 3.088 79.156 19.853
Swap transactions 894.930 118.185 1.188.546 125.987
Futures transaotions - - -

Options 27.400 18.409 160.289 22.281
Other - - - -

Total 970.839 139.682 1.427.991 168.121

Information on banks:

1. Information on banks:

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL

Banks
Domestic 947.196 425.461 474.953 915.461
Foreignt1> 3.309 2.515.909 41.138 2.577.574
Head quarters and branches abroad . . - -

Total 950.505 2.941.370 516.091 3.493.035

(1) The balance of foreign currency account in foreign banks includes the balance of gold amounting to TL 66.936
(Decembersl, 2013- 314.557 TL>.

2. Information on foreign banks account:

Unrestricted amount Restrioted amount
Current Period Prior Period Current Period Prior Period

EU countries 1,151.961 1.130.877 111.270 187.412
USA, Canada 1.089.289 1.063.292 -

OECD countries (1> 23.963 56.753 . -

Off-shore banking regions 123 206
Other 142.588 164.065 24 16.107

Total 2.407.924 2.415.193 111.294 203.519



(Convenlence translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originally issued
in Turklsh, see in note 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consalidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (cantinued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts ara expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Explanations and notes related ta consalidated financial statements (continued)

d. Infarmatian on available-far-sale financial assets which are subject ta repurchase
agreements and giyen as collateral 1 blocked:

Carrying vaiues of available-for-sale financial assets which ara subject ta repurchase
agreements and giyen as collateral / blocked:

Available-for-sale financial assets giyen as collateral/blocked amount ta
(December 31, 2013 . TL 718.291) and available-for-sale financial assets
transactians amounts ta TL 4.607.767 (December 31, 2013 - TL 2.320.047).

e. Information on available-far-sale financial assets:

f.

TL 1.102216
subject ta repa

Current Period Prior Period

Debt securities 18.626.742 13.455,271

Ouoted an stack exchange 17.095.631 11.761.398
Not quoted<» 1,531.111 1.693.873

Share certificates 88.925 87.220
Quated an stack exchanqe 177 163
Not quated 88.748 87.057

Impairrnent provision (.)(2> (114.222) (425.276)
Other >3> 72.652 92.147

Total 18.674.097 13.209.362

(1) lncludes credit linked notes amounflng ta TL 986.135 (December3l, 2013- TL 989.937).

(2) The fıgure includes the negative difterences batween the cost and the market price af the secudties and the
impairment provisions, if any.

(3) Other available-for-sale financial assets inolude mutual funds.

Explanations on bana:

1. Information on ali types of Ioans or advance balances giyen ta shareholders and empioyees
of the Group:

Current Period Prior Period
Cash Non-cash Cash Non-cash

Direct laans granted to shareholders - . - -

Carporate sharehalders - - . -

Real person shareholders - - - -

lndirect Ioans granted to shareholders 29.825 536.763 20.756 450.294
Loans granted to employees 129.610 1.464 110.494 470

Tatal 159.435 538.227 131.250 450.764
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
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Explanations and notes related ta consolidated financial statements (continued)

2. Information an the first and second group laans and other receivables and Ioans and other
receivables that have been restructured or rescheduled:

Loans and othar racelvables under cıose
Standard laans and other receIvabİe monitoring

Laans and Loans and
other other

recelvabıes ot which, terms L receivabies of which, terms 8
Cash Loans (Totaı) conditions ara changed (Totaı) condltlons ara changed

Payment pıan Payment pian
extensions Other extenslons Other

Non-speclaıiaıized laans 121.409.873 1.457.751 . 4.124.194 1.548.463 28.765
Laans giyen ta enterprises 54.567.274 230.384 . 1.175.819 687.276 7.582
Expart laans 5.060.174 83.049 68.834 84.332 -

Impartlaans . - . . -

Laans giyen ta financial
sectar 3.548.044 - . 44 -

Consumerloans 22.640.608 587.348 1.188.105 130.835 13.717
Credit cards 17.104.012 376.372 650.489 275.178 6.572
Other 18.489.761 180.598 - 1.040,903 370.842 894

Specialized lending - . .

Other recelvables . . . . -

Total 121.409.873 1.457.751 - 4.124.194 1.546.463 28.765

(1) Fair value difterences af the hedged item amounting ta TL <10.516> are classified in other laans as explained in
Nota IV, Sectian XIII.

Standard Ioans Loans and other
and other receivables under

Number of modifications made ta extend payment plan<»<2113) receivables ciase monitoring

Extended by 1 or 2 times 1.418.333 1.291.461
Extended by 3,4 or 5 times 22.072 249.326
Extended by more than 5 times 17.346 7.676

Total 1.457.751 1.548.463

Standard laans Loans and other
and ather receivables under

Number of madifications made ta extend payment plan<2>’t3 receivables ciose monitoring

0-6 Manths 754.974 412.524
6-l2Months 156.783 156.100
1 - 2 Years 266.973 236.451
2 - 5 Years 220.868 239.247
SYears and avar 58.153 504.141

Tatal 1.457.751 1.548.463

<1> There iş na oan which iş subject ta the temporary article 5 subsection 2 af the amendrnent af Pravisianing
Regulatian dated an April 09, 2011.

<2) There are twenty seven Ioans restructured in accardance with temparary article 6 subsection 2 af the amendment
of Pravisianing Regulatian dated December3o, 2011 with maturities between Oto 6 month, 6 to 12 rnonth, ıto 2 years,
2 ta 5 years, 5 years and over.Twenty fourth af thern was restructured ance, and rest of the three are restructured three
times.

<3) There is na ban which iş subiect ta the temporary arlicle 7 of the amendment af Pravisianing Regulation dated an
September 21, 2012.
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Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

3. Loans according to their maturity structure:

Standard loans and Loans and other receivables
other receivables under ciose monitoring

Agreement Agreement
Loans and other conditlons Loans and other condltlons

recelvabıes modifled recelvabıes modifled

Short-term ıoans and other
recelvables 47.002.581 583.154 929.235 326.326

Non-spocialised Ioans 47.002.581 583.154 929.235 326.326
Specialised Ioans . . -
Other receivables . - -

Medlum and ıong-term ıoans
and other recelvables 72.949.541 874.597 1.617.131 1.250.902

Non-specialised faans 72.949.541 874.597 1.617.731 1.250.902
Specialised boris
Other receivables . -

4(i) Information on Ioans by types and specific provisions:

Corporate,
commerciaı and Consumer Financial

Current Period other ıoans bana Credit cards Leasing Factorlng Total

Standard bana 81665.253 22640608 17.104.012 4.751.537 2686888 128848298
Walch jet 2.285.600 1.188.105 650.489 199.487 70.543 4.394.224
Loans under legal lolbow-up 2.704.502 1.062.029 612.792 264.424 78,294 4.722.041
Specificprovisions (.) (1.961.533) (762.778) (381.970) (210.198) (67.492) (3.383.971)

Totat 84,693,822 24.127.964 17.985.323 5.005.250 2.768.233 134.580.592

Corporate,
commercial and Consumer Financiat

Prbor Perbod other ıoans bana Credit cards Leasing Factorlng Total

Standard loans 60,910.810 17.618,500 18,488.941 3.813.930 2.091.266 102,923.447
Wafch list 1.236,814 887,111 293.682 92.780 43.659 2,554.046
Loans under legal follow-up 2.356.081 839.916 437.076 240.940 80.419 3.954.432
Specific provisions (-) (1.599.397) (557.204) (288.400) (170.278) (73.009) (2.688.288)

Total 62.904.308 18.788.323 18.931,299 3.977.372 2.142.335 106.743.637

(ii) Fair value of collaterais:

Corporale,
commerciab and Consumer Financlab

Current Period other Ioans bosna Credlt cards Leasing Fnctoring Total

Walch LisI 405.922 768.941 - 91.619 . 1.266.482
Loans under legal follow-up’1 386.126 49.413 - 43.805 - 479.344

Totab 792.048 818.354 - 135.424 . 1.745.826

Corporate,
commerciab and Consumer Financlab

Prior Period other boans bosna Credlt cards Leasing Factoring Total

Walch Lisl 369.311 410.304 . 40.425 820.040
Loans under legal folbow-up 373.350 42.900 - 50.917 . 467.167

Totab 742.651 453,204 . 91.342 - 1.281.207

(1) Fair values of collalemls received for non-pedorming boans are calculaled by using hair-culs over Iheir nominal values in
accordance wilh the “Regulalion ol Procedures for Delerminalion of Gualificalions of Loans and Olher Receivables by Banks
and Provisions 10 be sel aside”.
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Explanations and notes related ta consolidated financial statements (continued)

5. Information on consumer Ioans, individual credit cards, personnel Ioans and personnel
oredit oards:

Medlum
Short- term and Iong4erm Total

Consumer Ioans-TL 203.395 22.684.067 22.887.462
Reel estate Ioans 7.900 10.860.952 10.868.852
Automotive Ioans 4.517 671.636 676,153
Consumer Ioans 1.932 97,707 99.639
Other 189.046 11.053.772 11.242.818

Consumer ioans-FC indexed - 59.126 59.126
Real estate Ioans 58.425 58,425
Automotive Ioans
Consumer Ioans 701 701
Other

Consumer ioans-FC 48.146 221.421 269.567
Reel estate Ioans 464 31.951 32.415
Automotive loans 8.564 31.100 39.664
Consumer Ioans 15.704 114.405 130,109
Other 23.414 43.965 67.379

Individual credit cards-TL 12.694.359 714.918 13.409.277
With installments 6.595.800 709.479 7.305,279
Without installments 6.098.559 5.439 6.103.998

individual credit cards-FC 1.144 76.075 77,219
With installments 1.144 76.075 77.219
Without installments

Personnel ioans-TL 5.651 54.547 60.198
Reel estate Ioans - 1.179 1.179
Automotive loans 526 526
Consumer laans
Other 5.651 52.842 58,493

Personnel Ioans-FC indexed
Reel estate Ioans
Automotive loans
Consumer loans
Other

Personnel ioans-FC 558 956 1.514
Reel estate loans . . -

Automotive ioans . . -

Consumerloans 435 715 1.150
Other 123 241 364

Personneı credit cards-TL 65.357 538 65.905
With installments 29.938 538 30.476
Without instaflments 35.429 . 35.429

Personnel credit cards-FC 6 819 826
With installments 6 819 826
Without instaHments

Credit deposit account-TL (real person)t1> 550.716 550.716
Credit deposit account-FC (real person) 130 130

Total 13.569.472 23.812.467 37.381.940

(1) TL 1.167 of the credil deposit account belongs to the bana used by personnel.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
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Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

6. ntormation on commercial installment loans and corporate credit cards:

Current
Period

Medlum
Short- term and Iong-term Total

Commercial instaliments Ioans-TL 924.361 8.399.319 9.323.680
Business Ioans 3.575 610.039 613.614
Automotive loans 40.627 1.819.332 1.859.959
Consumer bana 2.807 17.257 20.064
Other 877.352 5.952.691 6.830.043

Commercial installments boans-FC indexed 25.484 258.613 284.097
Businessboans - 16.126 16.126
Automotive bana 112 62.857 62.969
Consumerloans 116 116
Other 25.256 179.630 204.886

Commercial installments loans-FC - - -

Business bana
Automotive bana -

Consumer bosna -

Other -

Corporate credit cards-TL 4.194.635 6.639 4.201.274
With installment 2.736.029 6.330 2.742.359
Without instalbment 1.458.606 309 1.458.915

Corporate credit cards-FC - - -

With installment . . -

Without instablment . . -

Credbt deposit account-TL (legal person) 893.675 - 893.675
Credit deposit account-FC (legal person) - - -

Total 6.038.155 8.664.571 14.702.726

7. Loans according to types of borrowers:

Current Period Prior Period

Public 1.698.012 997.751
Private 123.836.055 98.438.107

Total 125.534.067 99.435.858

8. Distribution of domestic and foreign bana: Distribution has been disclosed based on the
bocation where the customers operate.

Current Period Prior Period

Domestic bana 122.057.842 95.921.730
Foreign bana 3.476.225 3.514.128

Total 125.534.067 99.435.858
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
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Explanations and notes retated to consolidated financial statements (continued)

9. Loans granted to associates and subsidiaries:

Current Period Prior Period

Direct laans granted to associates and subsidiades 88,339 88.320
Indirect Ioans granted ta associates and subsidiaries

Total 88.339 88.320

10. Specific provisions provided against Ioans:

Current Period Prior Period

Loans and other receivables with limited collectability 97.558 117.677
Laans and other receivables with doubtful coliectability 484.214 428.790
Uncoılectible Ioans and other receivables 2.524.509 1.898.534

Total 3.106.281 2.445.001

Corporate,
commerciaı and Consumer Credit

Current Period other ıoans Ioans cards Total

January 1 1.599.397 557.204 288.400 2.445.001
Aflowance for impairment 862.763 669.641 432.659 1.965.063
Amount recovered dudng the pedad (352.784) (367.326) (124.029> (844.139)
Loans wdtten otf during the period as

uncoIIectibIe’> (149.174> (97.510) (215.137) (461.821)
Exchangedifference 1.331 769 77 2.177

December 31 1.961.533 762.778 381.970 3.1 06.281

Corporate,
commerciai and Consumer Credit

Priar Perlod other iaans ıoans cards Total

January 1 1.042.729 291.018 264.167 1.597.914
Allowance for lmpairment 781.016 578.849 310.325 1.670,190
Amount recovered during the period (213.101) (313.342) (83.666) (610.109)
Loans written atI during the period as

uncoilectible<” (20.526) <400) <202.472) <223.398)
Exchange difference 9.279 1.079 46 10.404

December 31 1.599.397 557.204 288.400 2.445.001

(1) Alsa includes the eftects of the sales of non-pedorming ban porttolios.
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Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

11. Information on non-performing Ioans (net>:

(i).lnformation on non-pedorming Ioans restructured or rescheduled by the Group, and
other receivables:

ili. Group IV. Group V. Group
Loans and other Loans and other Uncollectible
receivables with receivables with Ioans

Ilmited doubtful and other
collectibility collectibillty receivables

Current Perlod
(Gross amounts before specific reserves) 15.966 42.429 316.142
Restructured laans and other receivables 15.966 42.429 316. 142
Rescheduled Ioans and other recelvables - -
Prior Perlod
(Gross amounts before specific reserves) 8.048 52.709 236.784
Restructured Ioans and other receivables 8.048 52.709 236.784
Resoheduled Ioans and other receivables - -

(ii). Information on the movement of total non-performing bana:

ili. Group IV. Group V. Group
Loans and other

Loans and other receivables with Uncollectible Ioans
receivables with doubtful and other

limited collectability collectability receivables

Prior Period 630.585 929.114 2.073.374
Additions (+) 2.017,354 118,364 102.101
Transfers trom other categories of nen

performing Ioans (+) - 1.760502 1.488.725
Transfer to other categories of nen
performing

hans () (1.760.502) (1.488.725)
Collections (-) (264.442) (263.018> (493.664)
FX valuation differences (1.367) 1,476 (8.733)
Write-offs (-) - (461.821)
Corporate and commercial Ioans . - (149.174)
Consumer Ioans (97.510)
Credit cards . (215.137)
Other -
Current Period 621.628 1.057.713 2.699.982
Specific provision -) (97.558) (484.214> (2,524.509)

Net balance on balance sheet 524.070 573.499 175.473

The Parent Bank sold part of its non-performing oan portfolios to various asset management
companies for a consideration of TL 52.270, in accordance with the Board of Directors’ decisions
during the year 2014.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
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Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

(Hi).Information on non-pertorming Ioans granted as foreign currency Ioans

.. ili. Group IV. Group V. Group
Loans and other Loans and other
receivables with receivables with Uncallectible

limited doubtful loans and other
collectability collectability receivables

Current Period
Period end balance 58.978 25.592 532.229
Specific provision (-) (2.897> (14.493) (385.376)

Net balance on-balance sheet 56.081 11.099 146.853

Prior Period
Period end balance 120.948 22.122 433.876
Specific provision (-) (23.691) (12.633) (289.984)

Net balance on-balance sheet 97.257 9.489 143.892

(iv). Information on the gross and net amounts of the non-performing loans according to types
of borrowers:

ııı. Graup Iv. Group V. Group
Loans and other Loans and other Uncoılectible
recelvables with receivables with ıoans and

ıimited doubtful other
colıectabiılty collectabiılty recelvables

Current Period <net> 524.010 573.499 175.473
Loans granted to real persons and 621.628 1.087.713 2.591386
corporate entities (gross)
Specific provision amount (-) (97.558) (484.214) (2.415.913)

Loans granted to real persons and corporate 524.070 573.499 175.473
entities (net)

Banka (gross) - - 24.600
Specific provision amount (-) . - <24.600)

Banks (net) - -
Other bana and receivables (gross) 83.996
Specific provision amount (-) - - <83.996)

Other hans and receivables (Net)< - - -
Prior Period (net> 512.908 500.324 174.840

Loans granted ta real persons and
corporate entities <gross) 630.585 929.114 1.964.796
Specific provision amount (-) <117.677) (428790) (1.789.956)

Loans granted ta mal persons and corporate
entities (Net) 512.908 500.324 174,840

Banka (gross) - 24.582
Specitic provision amount (-) - - <24.582)

Banks (net) - -
Other bana and receivables (gross) - - 83.996
Specific provision amount (-) - (83.996)

Other Ioans and receivables (Net) (1) - -

(1) The figure represents the total bana and receivables of Agrosan Kimya Sanayi Ticaret A.Ş., Tümteks
Tekstil Sanayi Ticaret A.Ş and balances from Boyasan Tekstil Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. in accordance with
the Article 6 Paragraph 9 of regulation for provisions taken into account ciassification of hans and
receivables.
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Explanations and notes related ta consolidated financial statements (continued)

12. Explanation on liquidation polioy for uncolleotible loans and receivables;

Uncollectible loans and receivables, which are classified in accordance wiih the
Provisioning Regulation, are collected through legal follow-up, voluntary payments
and Iiquidation of collaterals.

13. Explanation on “Write-off” policies:

The Bank’s general policy for write-offs of loans and receivables under follow-up is
to write of such loans and receivables that are proven to be uncollectible in legal
follow-up process.

g. Information on held-to-maturity investments:

1. Characteristics and carrying values of held4o-maturity investments subject to repurchase
agreements giyen as collateral / blocked:

HeId-to-maturity investments giyen as collateral/blocked amounts to TL 1.619.960
(December 31, 2013- TL 1.398.334). Held-to-maturity investments subject to repurchase
agreements amount to TL 2.143.948 (December 31,2013 - TL 1.968.378).

2. Information on government debt securities held-to-maturity:

Current Period Prior Periad

Government bond 5.242.386 6.527.368
Treasurv bill - -

Other debt securities 313.983 362.235

Total 5.556.369 6.889.603

3. Information on investment securities held-to-maturity:

Current Periad Prior Period

Debt securities 5.678.909 7.020.246
Ouoted on stock exchange 5.678.909 7.020.246
Not quoted - -

lmpairment provision ()(1> (122.540) (130.643)

Tatal 5.556.369 6.889.603

(1> Includes amodisation of the premiums paid during the purchase of the securities throughout the maturity of the
securities and the impairment provisions, it any.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
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Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

9.

(1) The other sharehotders represent the consotidated Group companies.
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4. Movement of held-to-maturity investments within the period:
Current Period Prior Period

Beginning balance 6.889.603 5.827.694
Foreign currency difterences on monetary assets(U 201.600 645.086
Purehases during year 834.017 634.403
Disposals through sales and redemptionst3t (2.376.954) (126.415)
Impairmentprovision(-)<> 8.103 (91.165)

Period end balance 5.556.369 6.889.603

(1) Atso inciudes the changes in the interest income accruats.

(2) tnctudes amortisation ot the premiums paid during the purchase of the securities throughout the maturity ot the securities and the
impairment provisions, it any.

(3> in 2013, Yapı Kredi NV has ciassified its USD 63385 thousand and EUR 7.250 Ihousand nominal vatue ot toreign currency
denominated secuhties trom avaitable for sate portfotio ta heid to maturity portfolio in accordance with the TAS 39 reievant
paragraphs.

Information on investments in associates (net>:

1. General information on unconsolidated investments in associates:

The Parent Bank’s Bank’s risk
shareholding percentage group

Address it dlfferent voting shareholdlng
Na Deseription (City! Country) percentage (%) percentage (%)

1 Kredi Kayıt Bürosu1” istanbul/Türkiye 18,18 18,18
2 Bankalararası Kart Merkezi A.Ş.11> istanbul/Türkiye 9,98 9,98

ıncome from Current
marketable perlod

Total Shareholders’ Total fixed Interest securities prof it! Prior period Market
Na assets egulty assets Income porttollo Ioss prof it! oss Value

1 105,453 88.452 52,574 3.178 - 18.547 28.149 -

2 52.777 30.264 32.405 681 7.882 4.171

(1) Financiat statement information disotosed above shows September 30, 2014 results.

2. Consolidated investments in associates:

(i). Intormation on consolidated investments in associates:

Other
The Parent Bank’s Shareholders’

shareholdlng percentage shareholdlng
Address - it different voting percenta9e

No Descriptlon (City! Country) percentage (%)

Geneva/
1 Banque de Commerce et de Placements SA. Switzerland 30,67 -

2 Ailianz Yaşam ve Emeklilik AŞ, Istanbul/Türkiye . 20,00
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Uniess otherwise stated amounts ara expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

(ii). Main financial figures of the consolidated investments in associates in order of the above
table:

Income trom Current
marketabıe period

Total Sharehoıders’ Total f,xed Interest securities profit? Prior period Market
No assets eguity assets Income portlolio Ioss profit! ıoss vaıue

1 6267,421 875.236 5.379 114.242 19.169 50.601 26.162 -

2 1.040.433 254.520 23.379 44.013 18.071 97.058 48.239 -

(ili). Movement of consolidated investments in associates:

Current Period Prior Period

Balance at the beginning of the period 446.961 193,934
Movements during the period 9.623 253.027
Purchases’” - 188.108
Bonus shares obtained - -

Share of current year income 34.164 15.773
Sales - -

Foreign exchange gaint(Ioss) stems from the foreign
subsidiaries . (5.046) 51.729
Impairment provision (19.495) (2.583)
Balance at the end of the period 456.584 446.961
Capital commitments - -

Shareholding percentage at the end of the period (%) - -

(1) ıncıudes repurchase of 19,93% of YKE.
(2) ıncıudes value increase/(decrease) due to aquity pkk tıp

(iv). Information on sectors and the carrying amounts of consolidated investments in
associates:

Current Period Prior Period

Banks 260.370 253.462
Insurance companies 196.214 193.499
Facioring companies - -

Leasing companies - -

Finance companies - -

Other financial investments - -

Total financial investments 456.584 446,961

(v). Investments in associates quoted on stock exchange: None.
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Explanations and nates related ta consolidated financial statements (cantinued)

h. Informatian on shareholders’ equity af the significant subsidiaries (net):

There is no deficit of regulatory Iimits on capital structure of the subsidiaries which are inoluded
in the consolidated capital adequacy ratio calculation in acoordance with the capital adequacy
ratio limits.

1. Information on shareholders’ equity of the significant subsidiaries:
Yapı Kredi

Yatırım Yapı Kredi Yapı Kredi
Menkul Yapı Kredi Finansal Portföy Yapı Kredi

Değerler Faktoring Kiralama Yönetimi Nederland
A.Ş. A.Ş. A.a. A.Ş. N.V.

Core Capital
Paid-in capital 98.918 60714 389.928 5.707 112.442

lnflation adjustment ta
share capital . .

Share premium . . -
Marketable Secudties
Valuation Difterences 13613 . . . (3.887)
Other Capital Reserves 93.423 - (217.104) . -
Legal reserves 70.137 8.034 79.305 18.878
Extraordlnary reservas 193207 10.458 619.019 - 373,243
Other reserves (94> (10> 40 245.472
Profit/loss (678> 153.865 430.606 21.386 50.566
Current period net profit 69268 46.971 152.365 21.386 50.566
Pilot period profit (69.946) 106.894 278,241

Leasehold improvements (-) - .
Intangible assets (-) 2.277 74 3.390 710 522
Total core capital 466.249 232.987 1.298.404 45.261 777.314
Supplementary capital - 10.127 25.523 - 155
Capltal 466.249 243.114 1.323.927 45.261 777.472
Deductions from the capital - - - -

Total sharehoıders’ equity 466.249 243.114 1.323.927 45.261 777.472

The above information is based on the information extracted from the individual financial
statements of subsidiaries, used for consolidated 1 inancial statements of the Bank as of
December3l, 2014.

The internal capital adequacy for the subsidiaries is calculated with the model and approaches
used in the Parent Bank within the scope of the consolidated Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (“ICAAP”) report.

Paid-in capital is a capital which have been disclosed as Turkish Lira in the articles of
incorporation and registered in trade register.

Infiation adjustment to share capital is the adjustment difference arising from infiation
accounting.

Extraordinary Reserves are the reserves which represent the remaining net income of the
previous periods after providing the legal reserves in accordance with the General Assembly of
the Bank.

Legal reserves are the income reserves that are provided according to the first paragraph and
the third subparagraph of the second paragraph of the article na 466 and no 467 of the Turkish
Commercial Code No. 6762 allocated as capital reserves separated from annual prof it
according to the Iaws of foundation.
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Explanatians and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued>

2. Unconsolidated subsidiaries

3.

(i). Information on unconsolidated subsidiaries

Since the subsidiaries below are not financial subsidiaries, the related subsidiaries are
unconsolidated and are carried at restated cost.

Although Yapı Kredi Diversified Payment Rights Finance Company (“Special Purpose Entit’)
which is established for securitisation transactions of Yapı Kredi is not a subsidiary, it is
included in the consolidation as the Bank has a control of 100%.

(1> lncıudes the balances for Sıiching Custody Services YKB.
(2) lncludes the balances for Yapı Kredi lnvest LLC.
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İc_

The Parent
Bank’s

shareholding Banks risk
percentage . if group

Address difterent voting shareholding
Description (City/ Country) percentage (%) percentage (%)

Yapı Kredi-Kültür Sanat Yayıncılık Tic. ve San. A.Ş. Istanbuı[rürkiye 99,99 10000
2 Enternasyonal Turizm Yatırım A.Ş. Istanbul[Türkiye 99,96 99,99

(ii). Main financial figures of the subsidiaries in order of the above table:

income from Current Prior
marketable perlod period

Total Shareholders’ Total flxed Interest securities profit! profit/ Market
assets eguity assets Income portfoilo Ioss Ioss Value

1 21,267 16151 862 5 - 2.436 1.412
2 39.345 26.310 3,799 1.663 8 903 932

Consolidated subsidiaries:

(i). Information on consohdated subsidiaries:
The Parent Bank’s

shareholding Bank’s risk
percentage . it group

difterent voting shareholding
Description Address (City/ Country) percentage (%) percentage (%)

1 Yapı Kredi Holding AV. Amsterdam/Nederlands 100,00 100,00
2 Yapı Kredi Menkul lsıanbulJurkey 99,98 100,00
3 Yapı Kredi Faktoring lstanbulJurkey 99,95 100,00
4 Yapı Kredi Moscow Moscow/Russia 99,84 100,00
5 Yapı Kredi Leasing lstanbulffurkey 99,99 99,99
6 Yapı Kredi Podföy lstanbuırrurkey 12,65 99,99
7 Yapı Kredi NV AmsterdamlNederlands 6724 100,00
8 Yapı Kredi Azerbaycan Bakü/Azerbai]an 99,80 100,00
9 Yapı Kredi Malta St.Julian/Maııa 100,00
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
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Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

(ii). Main financial figures of the consolidated subsidiaries in the order of the below tabIe<:

Income from
Total marketable Current

Total Shareholders’ flxed Interest securities period Prior period Market Required
asseta egulty assets Income portfotio prof iLl Ioss prof it hose value (2) eguity

1 226643 226537 - - 351 (211) -

2 3219331 473.030 10,827 120.215 3.638 69.268 269.067 -

3 2.808850 233.061 596 150.598 - 46.971 147.894 - -

4 487.574 106,623 6.894 31.761 3.455 19.423 20.311 - -

5 5.521.625 1,301,794 4.076 334.592 - 152.365 139.445 - -

6 54.659 45.971 1.645 2.227 209 21.386 23.408 - -

7 4.750.973 777.836 1.684 207.803 11.120 50.566 41.778 - -

8 1.049.870 204.272 59,179 94.366 744 21.004 3.219 - -

9 168.909 168.895 2.891 363 - (357) - - -

<1> The above financial information is extracted t rom the financial statements of companies included in the
preparation of consolidated financial statements are used as of December 31, 2014.

(Ol). Movement schedule of consolidated subsidiaries:

Current Period Prior Period

Balance at the beginning of the periad 2.363.467 3.817.879
Movements during the period 71.083 (1.454.412)
Purchases<” 124.138 71.129
Free shares obtained profit trom current years share - 15.107
Share of current year income - -

Sales , - -

Liquidation> <39.558)
Transfers - (1.410.080)
Revaluation (decrease) / increase (13.497) (130.568)
impairment provision -

Balance at the end of the period 2.434.550 2.363.467

Capital commitments - -

Shareholding percentage at the end of the period (%) - -

(1) in the Extraordinary end of iiquidation General Assembiy of YKYO heid on July 8,2014 it was decided ta conclude
the liquidation process and to pay the remaining hquidation liabilities to the shareholders. in addition, it was
decided ta delist the official name, information and registery record of the YKYO t rom the trade registery records
and other governmental agencies’ records.

(iv). Sectoral information on financial subsidiaries and the related carrying amounts:

Financial Subsidiaries Current Period Priod Period

Banks 525.238 397.955
insurance companies
Factoring companies 328,859 375.349
Leasing companies 908,760 917.855
Finance companies
Other financial subsidiaries 671.693 672,308

Total financial subsidiaries 2.434.550 2.363.467

(v). Subsidiaries quoted on stock exchange:

None (December 31, 2013- None)
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Explanations and notes related ta consolidated financial statements (continued)

ı. Informatian on jaint ventures (net):

1. Unconsolidated joint ventures: None.

2. Consolidated joint ventures:

(1). Information on consohdated Joint Ventures:

(1> Explained in the note XIH of Section IV,
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The Parant Bank’s Group’s Nen
shareholdlng sharehalding Current current Long term

percentage percentage assets assets debts ıncome Expense

Yapı Kredi Koray
Gayrimenkul Yatırım
OflaklığıAŞ. 30,45 30,45 68,332 116.537 - 95,369 (66.412)

Totaı 68.332 116.537 - 95,369 (66.412)

Information on lease receivables (net):

1) Breakdown acoording to maturities:

Current Period Prior Period
Gross Net Gross Net

Less than 1 year 1.906.241 1.577.071 1.895.389 1.618.416
Between 1-4 years 2.780.122 2.273.797 2.452.443 2.120.668
More than 4 years 1.283.932 1.154.382 269.856 238.288

Tatal 5.970.295 5.005.250 4.617.688 3.977.372

2) Information for net investments in finance leases:

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC

Gross lease receivables 1.660.553 4.309.742 1.257.705 3.359.983
Unearned financial income 1 rom
leases (-) (333.304) (631.741) (233.531) (406.785)
Amount of cancelled leases (-) - - - -

Total 1.327.249 3.678.001 1.024.174 2.953.198

Infarmatian on hedging derivative financial assets:

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC

Fair vaıue hedget1t 177.895 - 307.375 -
Cash fIow hedget1t 78.251 - 155.444 4.808
Foreign net investment hedge - - - -

Total 256.146 - 462.819 4.808



(Convenience translation of publiciy announced consotidated financial statements originaliy issued
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts ara expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

k. Information on tangible assets:

Leased fixed Other tangible
Immovabıe assets Vehicıes fixed assets Total

Prior Period
Cost 1.977,369 422.378 3.745 942.201 3.345.693
Accumulated depreciation (.) (1.386.192> (323.504> (1.989> (617.467) <2.329.152>
Net book value 591.177 98.874 1.756 324.734 1.016.541

Current Period
Net book value et beginning of
the period 591.177 98,874 1.756 324.734 1.016.541
Additions 48 6.122 32 313.873 320.075
Disposais (.), net <800> (49) (47) (46.321> (47.217>
Reversal of impairment, net 925 . 47 . 972
lmpairment (.) . .

Depreciation () (39.819> <34.256> <367> <93,270> (167.712>
Foreign exchange

differenoes,net (3.794) 1.621 <128> (10.571> (12.872>
Net book vaıue et end of
the period 547.737 72.312 1.293 488.445 1.109.787

Cost et the end of the period 1.966.626 394.322 3.404 986.814 3.351.166
Accumulated depreciation
et the period end (-) (1.418.889> (322.010> (2.111> <498.369) (2.241.379>

Current Period 547.737 72.312 1.293 488.445 1.109.787

As of December 31, 2014, the Parent Bank had total provision for impairment amounting to TL
326.746 (December 31, 2013— TL 327.673) for the property and equipment.

Information on intangible assets:

Current Period Prior Period

Balance at the beginning of the period 1.393.590 1.361.391
Additions during the period 173.323 131.329
Unused and disposed items () (217) (183)
Sales of a subsidiary - (19.669>
Impairment reversal -
Amortization expenses (-) (110.151> (80.594>
Foreign exchange valuation diiferences 821 1.316

Balance at the end of the period 1.457.366 1.393.590

m. Information on investment property:

None (December 31,2013 - None).
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(Convenlence translatlon of pubilciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy Issued
in Turklsh, sec in note 1. of sectian three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta cansalidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (cantinued)
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Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

n. Informatian an deferred tax asset:

Current Period Prior Period
Tax base Deferred Tax Tax base Deferred Tax

Temporary ditferences 934.405 187.183 1.004.869 201,149
Derivative financial Iiabilities 1.324.579 256.083 1.262.940 276.380
Securities portfolio valuation differences 17.344 3.468 1 8.499 3.700
Subsidiaries, investment in associates and
sharecertificates 122.117 24.423 122.117 24.423
Other 844.582 170.007 562.614 113.756

Total deferred tax asset 3.243.027 641.164 2.971.039 619.408

Derivative financial assets (1.484.690> (297.640) (2.176.864) (447.867)
Valuation difference of securities portfolio (587.640> (117.430) (206.816) (41.366)
Property, equipment and intangibles, net (255.343> (40.638) (225.745) (34.602)
Other (79.144) (18.861) (62.408) (12.481)

Total deferred tax IiabiIity (2.406.817) (474.569) (2.671.833) (536.316)

Deferred tez asset, nett1> 836.210 166.595 299.206 83.092

(1) tncludes TL 2.439 deflered tax liabittios as ot December 31,2014.

Deferred tax expense amounting to TL 84.087 was recognized in prof it and bas statement,
whereas deferred tax income amounting to TL 172.108 was recognized directby in equity
accounts for the period ended December 31, 2014.

o. Movement schedule of assets heid for resale and related ta discontinued operations:

Current Period Prior Period

Net book value et the beginning of the period 159.395 139.653
Additions 64.578 66.982
Transferst1> - 1.410.080
Disposais (-), net (63.481) (1 .453.446)
bmpairment provision reversab 979 934
Impairment provision (-) (566) (302)
Depreciation (-) (4.958) (4.586)
Translation differences (462) 80

Net book value et the end of the period 155.485 159.395

Cost at the end of the period 169.027 171.377
Accumulated depreciation at the end of the period (-) (13.542) (11.982)

Net book value at the end of the period 1 55.485 159.395

(1) As of JuIy 12, 2013, the transfer of YKS’s shares is completed.

As of December 31, 2014, the Group booked impairment provision on assets held for resale
with an amount of TL 7.998 (December 31, 2013 - TL 8.411).

ö. Information an other assets:

As of December 31, 2014, other assets do not exceed 10% of the total assets.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amaunts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

Il. Explanations and notes related to consolidated Iiabilities:

a. Information on deposits:

1. Information on maturity structure of deposits/collected funds:

Current Period:

With 7 days tip ta 6 Months- 1 Yem
Oemand notiflcallons 1 month 1-3 Months 3-6 Months 1 Yaar and over Totaı

Saving deposits 3.183.189 19.203 1.472.508 23.308.258 1.124.488 261.856 241.704 29.611.206
Foreign currencydeposils 7.115.405 28.095 5.555.497 22.185.813 3.568.019 1.454.480 2.297.646 42.204.955

Residentş inTuriçey 6.254.086 18.288 5.372.527 20.979.428 1.214.498 648,474 1.158.253 35.645.554
Residents abraad 861.319 9.807 182.970 1.206.385 2.353.521 806.006 1.139.393 6.559.401

Public sectordeposits 899.028 3.076 417 516 1 903.038
Commercial depasits 4.440.843 . 4.182.457 14.150.955 2.814.083 501.598 124.116 26.214.052
Other institutions deposits 92.324 - 970.380 3.557.132 253.563 434,066 5.740 5.313.205
Precious metais vault 499,354 . 1.473 91.739 29.870 49.681 168.249 840.366
Bank deposits 406.111 12.744 999.163 592.191 30.098 465,868 37.634 2.543.809

TheC8RT 2 - ‘ - . - 2
Oomestic banka 2.981 - 878.853 445,203 - 12.715 6.333 1.346.085
Foreign banka 121.380 12.744 120.310 146.988 30.098 453.153 31.301 915.974
Participation banks 281.748 - . - - - - 281.748
Other - - - - - -

Totaı 16.636,254 60.042 13,181.478 63.889.164 7.020.538 3.168.065 2.875.090 107.630.631

(ii). Prior Period:

With 7 days tip ta 6 Month- 1 Yaar
Demand notifications 1 month 1-3 Month 3-6 Manth 1 Yaar and avar Tataı

Saving deposits 2.767.927 3 900.126 18.933.100 781.300 180.664 221.297 23.784.417
Foreign currencydeposits 5.614.849 31.425 2.254.769 26.196.898 3.111.597 1.302.867 3.404.436 41.916.841

8esidents inTurkey 4.643.375 26.860 2.128.111 25.732.386 1,577.097 784,777 1.526.998 36.419.604
Residents abroad 971.474 4.565 126.658 464.512 1.534.500 518,090 1.877.438 5.497.237

Public sectordeposits 715.021 - 206.687 151 1.778 2.387.769 30 3.311.436
Commercial deposits 4.006.380 10 3.245.660 5.628.503 269.711 165.109 85.976 13,401.349
Otherinstitutions deposits 75.070 - 198.765 1.132.227 255.756 851.554 3.759 2.517.131
Precious metais vault 747.228 - 1.579 114.459 43.762 96.790 173.869 1.177,687
Bank deposits 540.702 100.613 31.559 1.100.399 78.748 375,131 145,768 2.372,920

The C8RT - - - ‘ . - -

Domestic banka 365.130 - - 848.726 32.740 37.795 11.802 1.296.193
Foreign banka 9.110 100.613 31.559 251.673 46.008 337.336 133.966 910.265
Participation banks 166.462 - . . ‘ 166.462
Other - - - ‘ -

Totaı 14.467.177 132.051 6.839.145 53,105,737 4.542.652 5.359.884 4,035.135 88.481.781
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
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Explanations and notes related ta consolidated financial statements (continued)

2. Information on saving deposits insurance:

(i). Information on saving deposits under the guarantee of the saving deposits insurance fund
and exceeding the limit of deposit insurance fund:

Under the guarantee D! Exceedlng the limit of the
deposit insurance insurance deposit

Saving deposlts”1 Current period Prior period Current period Prior period

Saving deposits 14.413.302 12-724.262 15.541.585 11.119.884
Foreign currency savings deposit 5.038.690 3.417.838 13.437.356 14.100.882
Other deposits in the form of savings deposits 453.318 638.262 300.290 423.714
Foreign branches deposits under foreign
authorities’ insurance - - . -

Off-shore banking regions’ deposits under foreign
authorities insurance - - - -

b.

(1) The balances 1mm foreign subsidiaries, caıculated in accordance with their ovrn regulation, ara included.

(ii). Saving deposits which are not under the guarantee of saving deposit insurance fund of

real persons:
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Current Period Prior Period

Foreign branches’ deposits and other accounts 6.348 6.329
Saving deposits and other accounts of controııing shareholders and deposits of
their mother, father, spouse, children in cara . -

Saving deposits and other accounts of president and members of board of
directors, CEO and vice presidents and deposits of their mother, father,
spouse, ohiidren in cara 89.998 65.355
Saving deposits and other accounts in scope of the property holdings derived
from crime defined in adicle 282 of Turkish cdminal law no:5237 dated
26.09.2004 - -

Saving deposits in deposit bank which Is established in Turkey in order to
engage in off-shore banking activities soleiy - -

Information on trading derivative financial liabilitles:

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC

Forward transactions 55.781 3.942 54.945 735
Swap transactions 610.069 132.892 585.846 62.338

Futures transactions . . - -

Options 31.687 22.955 134.744 25.025
Other - -

Total 700.537 159.789 775.535 88.098
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

c. Information on borrowings:

1. Information on borrowings:

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC

The Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey
borrowings - - - -

From domestic banks and institutions 1.408.691 906.936 1.1 55.299 349.000
From foreign banka, inslitutions and funds 662.856 18.438.473 894.179 16.893.089

Total 2.071.547 19.345.409 Z049.478 17.242.089

2. Information on maturity structure of borrowings:

E?C

ç.

Current Periad Prior Period
TL FC TL FC

Short-term 1.394.185 9.627.189 1.627.155 8.733.133
Medium and Iong-term 677.362 9.718.220 422.323 8,508.956

Total 2.071.547 19.345.409 2.049.478 17.242.089

Information on marketable securities issued

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC

BilIs 1.638.373 1.712.209 1.165.920 827.050
Asset backed securities - 3.054.498 - 2.576.083
Bonds 1.648.691 5.302.166 493.857 3.359.933

Coİ!ateraized securitles 462.642 - 462,691

Total 3.287.064 l0£68.873 1,659.777 6.763.066

The Group classified some of its asset backed securities as the tinancial Iiabilities classified at
fair value through profitlloss in order to eliminate the accounting mismatch at the initial
recognition in accordance with AS 39 paragraph 9. As of December 31, 2014, the total amount
of financial liabilities classified as fair value through profiVloss is TL 1.163.996 and the fair value
difference is TL 5.673 recognised in the income statement as income.
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Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

d. Information on other Iiabilities:

As of December 31, 2014, other Iiabilities do not exceed 10% of the total balance sheet
commitments.

e. Information on lease payables:

1. Information on financial leasing agreements:

None (December 31, 2013 - None).

2. Information on operational leasing agreements:

The Parent Bank enters into operational leasing agreements annualiy for some of its
branches and ATMs. The leases are prepaid and accounted as prepaid expenses under
Other Assets”.

f. Information on hedging derivative financial liabilitles:

g.

2. Information on resewe for employee rights:

in accordance with Turkish Labour Law, the reserve for employment termination benefits
is calculated as the present value of the probable future obligation in case of the
retirement of employees. TAS 19 necessitates actuarial valuation methods to calculate
the iabilities of enterprises.
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Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL

Fair value hedget1> 657 - - -

Cash fiow hedget” 228.442 211.349 30.573 355.822
Foreign net investment hedge - - - -

Total 229.099 211.349 30.573 355.822

(1) Explained in Note XIII, of Section IV.

information on provisions:

1. Information on general provisions:

Current Period Prior Period

t. Provisions for first group ioans and receivables 1.489.110 1.205.781
of which, Provisıon for Loans and Receivables with
Extended Maturity 61. 798 60.329

il. Provisions for second group loans and receivables 194.464 104.333
of which, Pre vision for Loans and Receivables with
Extended Maturity 55.839 26. 77?

Provisions for non-cash loans 84.796 65.880
Other 159.451 144.879

Total 1.927.821 1.520.873
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Explanations and notes related ta consalidated financial statements (continued)

The following actuarial assumptions were used in the calculation of total Iiabilities:

Current Period Priar Period

Discount rate (%> 3,50 4,78
Possibility of being eligible for retirement (%) 94,11 94,59

The principal actuarial assumption is that the maximum Iiability wili increase in line with
infiation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting
for the effects of future infiation. As the annual ceiling is revised semi-annualiy, the ceiling
of fuli TL 3.541,37 effective from January 1, 2015 (January 1, 2014 . fuli TL 3.438,22) has
been taken into consideration in calculating the reserve for employment termination
benefits.

Movement of employment termination benefits Iiability in the balance sheet:

Current Period Priar Period

Prior period ending balance 122.718 142.207
Changes during the period 28.456 35.264
Recognized in equity 21.194 <20.590>
Paid during the period (31.631) <36.712>
Foreign currency differences 397 2.549

Balance at the end of the periad 141.134 122.718

in addition, the Group has accounted for unused vacation rights provision amounting to
TL 136.910 as of December 31,2014 (December 31,2013 - TL 115.317).

3. information on provisions related with the foreign currency difference of foreign currency
indexed ioans:

As of December 31, 2014, the provision related to the foreign currency difference of
foreign currency indexed ioans amounts to TL 25.125 (December 31, 2013 - TL 691>.
Provisions related to the foreign currency difference of foreign currency indexed Ioans are
netted from the oan amount in the financiai statements.

4. Other provisions:

(i> Information on other provisions:

Current Period Prior Period

Pension fund provision 654.901 767.131
Provisions on unindemnified non cash loans 82.424 73.790
Provisions on credit cards and promotion campaigns
related to banking services 35.877 28.804
Provision on export commitment tax and funds liability 44.489 41.007
Other 155.270 200.893

Totai 972.961 1.111.625
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Explanations and nates related ta consolidated financial statements (cantinued)

(Il) General resewes for possible losses:

Current Period Priar Periad

General reserves for possible losses 180.211 209.470

Total 180.211 209.470

5. Pension tund provision:

The Parent Bank provided provision amounting to TL 654.901 (December 31, 2013— TL
767.131) for the technical deficit based on the report prepared by a registered actuary in
accordance with the technical interest rate of 9,8% determined by the New Law and CSO
1980 mortality table.

Current Periad Prior Period

lncome statement (charge)/benefit 112.230 60.046

The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are determined as follows:

Current Period Prior Period

Presenl value of funded obligations 1.621.901 1.635.549
Pension benefits transferable 10 SSI 1.658.083 1.543.740
Post employment medical benefits transferable to SSI (36.182> 91.809

Fair value of plan assets (967.000) (868.418)

Provision for the actuarial deficit af the pension fund 654.901 767.131

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Current Periad Prior Period

Discount rate
Pension benefits transferable lo SSI %9,80 %9,80
Post employment medical benefits transferable to 881 %9,80 %9,80

Martality rate: Average ute expectation is defined according to the mortality table based
on statistical data, as 13 years for men and 18 years for women who retire at the age of
66 and 64, respectively.

Plan assets are comprised as follows:

Current Period Prior Period
Amaunt % Amaunt

Government bonds and treasury bills 190.168 20 178.678 21
Premises and equipment 138.997 14 304.423 35
Bank placements 570.814 59 339.980 39
Short term receivables 52.549 6 30.219 3
Other 14.472 1 15.118 2

Total 967.000 100 868.418 100
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Explanations and notes related ta consolidated financial statements (cantinued)

ğ. Infarmation an taxes payable:

h.

(i) Information on taxes payable:

(1)Subordinated loans ara explained in detail
calculation of equity” in section bur.

in the Note “Information on debt instrumenls included in the
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Current Period Prior Period

Corporate Tax Payable 179.027 30.573
Taxation of Marketable Securities 94,719 71.659
Property Tax 2.411 2.000
Banking Insurance Transaction Tax (“BIH”) 79.811 62.360
Foreign Exchange Transaction Tax - -

Value Added Tax Payable 10.766 7.122
Other 30.592 25.650

Total 397.328 199.364

(ii) Information on premium payables:

Current Period Prior Period

Social security premiums - employee 239 187
Social security premiums - empioyer 280 219
Bank pension fund premiums - employee 11.981 9.751
Bank pension fund premiums - employer 12.397 10.146
Pension fund deposit and provisions - employee -

Pension fund deposit and provisions - empioyer - -

Unemployment insurance - employee 855 695
Unemployment insurance - empioyer 1.711 1.392
Other - -

Total 27.463 22.390

(ili) Information on deferred tax liability:

There iş a deferred tax Iiability amounting to TL 2.439 as of December 31, 2014 reflected in the
consolidated financial statements after the deferred fax assets and Iiabilities of each entity in
consolidation has been netted off in their standalone financial statements as per TAS 12
(December 31,2013 — TL 1.321).

Information an subardinated Iaans>:

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC

From domestic banks - - -

From other domestic institutions - - - -

From foreign banks - 6.770.549 - 6.480.981
From other foreign institutions - - - -

Total - 6.770.549 - 6.480.981
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Explanations and notes related tü consolidated financial statements (continued)

ı. Information on shareholders’ equity:

1. Presentation of paid-in capital

Current Period Prior Period

Common stook 4.347.051 4.347.051
Preterred stock - -

2. Paid-in capital amount, explanation as to whether the registered share capital system is
applied and it so, amount of registered share capital ceiling:

The Parent Bank’s paid-in-capital is amounting to TL 4.347.051 and in accordance with
the decision taken in the Ordinary General Assembly at April 7, 2008, the Parent Bank
has switched to the registered capital system and the registered share capital ceiling is
TL 10.000.000.

3. Intormation on the share capital increases during the period and the sources:
None (December3l, 2013- None).

4. Information on transters trom capital reserves to capital during the current period: None.

5. Intormation on capital commitments, until the end ot the fiscal year and the subsequent
interim period: None.

6. Information on prior period’s indicators on the Group’s income, profitability and liquidity,
and possible etfects ot these future assumptions on the Bank’s equity due to
uncertainties ot these indicators:

The interest, liquidity, and toreign exchange risk related to on-balance sheet and ott
balance sheet assets and liabilitias are managed by the Parent Bank within several risk
and legal limits.

7. Privileges on the corporate stock: None.

8. lnformation on value increase tund ot marketable securities:

Current Period Prior Period
TL TL FC

From investments in associates, subsidiaries, and
jointventures - - - -

Valuation ditference - - - -

Foreign currency difference”> - - - -

Available for sale securities 193.539 197.929 (241.315) 123.197
Valuation ditterences 193.539 197.929 (241.315) (123.197>
Foreign currency differences1 - - - -

Total 193.539 197.929 (241.315) 123.197

tl) Includes current pedod foreign currency ditferencas.
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Expianations and notes related ta cansolidated financial statements (continued)

i. Information on minority interest:

Current Period Prior Period

Period opening balance 2.527 64.792

Current period income/(Ioss) 167 237

Dividends paid (47) (678)

Translation difterences - (380)
Transaction done with minorfty<2t (2.185) (33.352)
Other<11 - (28.092)

Period ending balance 462 2.527

(1) tncludes the change in the consolidation due to the sates of YKS shares.
(2) tncludes the change of the minoriy purchased ot YKYO which is liquidated.
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ili. Explanations and nates related ta consolidated off-balance sheet accounts

a. Information on off balance sheet commitments:

1. The amount and type of irrevocable commitments:

Current Period Prior Periad

Commitments on credit card limits 25.612.776 21.610.762
Loan granting commitments 8.125.659 6.394.154
Commitments for cheques 5.981.382 5.385,711
Other irrevocable commitments 6.703.313 11.657.414

Tatal 46.423.130 45.048.041

2. Type and amount of probable losses and obligations arising from off-balance sheet items:

Obligations arising from off-balance sheet are disclosed in “Off-balance sheet
commitments”. The Group set aside general provision for its non-cash oans amounting to
TL 84.796 (December 31, 2013 - TL 65.880) and specific provision amounting to TL
381.510 (December 31, 2013- TL 334.113) for non-cash loans which are not indemnified
yet amounting to TL 82.424 (December 31, 2013 - TL 73.790).

2(i). Non-cash loans ineluding guarantees, bank acceptance Ioans, collaterais that are
accepted as financial guarantees and other letter of credits:

2(0).
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Current Period Prior Period

Bankacceptance Ioans 126.982 118.686
Letter of credits 7.859.833 6.710.481
Other guarantees and collaterais 2.774.812 3.611.450

Total 10.761.627 10.440.617

Guarantees, surety ships and other similar transactions:

Current Period Priar Period

Temporary letter of guarantees 1.825.976 1.275.206
Definite letterof guarantees 27.510.437 18.915.412
Advance letter of guarantees 4.339.852 4.459.399
Letter of guarantees giyen to customs 2.069.847 1.373.468
Other letter of guarantees 2.249.100 1.623.814

Total 37.995.212 27.647.299
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30). Total amount of non-cash Ioans:

Current Period Priar Period

Non-cash Ioans giyen against cash Ioans 1.980.658 1,384.229
Withoriginalmaturityof 1 yearorlessthan 1 year 360.254 146.909
With original maturiiy of more than 1 year 1.620.404 1.237.320

Other non-cash Ioans 46.776.181 36.703.687

Tatal 48.756.839 38.087.916

30i) Information on seatoral concentration of non-cash Ioans:

Current Period Prior Period
TL (%) FC (%) TL (%) FC (%)

Agrlcultural 196.602 1,22 328.672 1,00 149.219 1,15 286.469 1,14
Fanung and raising Uvestock 160.024 1,00 286.515 0,87 120.504 0,93 250.704 1,00
Forestry 30.413 0,19 19.070 0,06 23.781 0,18 15.860 0,06
Fishing 6.165 0,04 23.084 0,07 4.934 0,04 19.905 0,08

Manufacturing 6.906.723 43,21 15.750.516 48,06 5.435.621 42,14 11.128.192 44,17
Mining 861.448 5,39 1.329.664 406 784.397 6,08 823.901 327
Production 5.354.725 33,50 12.607.283 38,47 4.052.815 3142 8.794.606 3491
ElectrIc, gas and water 690.550 4,32 1.813.569 5,53 598.409 4,64 1.509.685 5,99

Construction 4.071.437 25,47 6.709.671 20,47 3.395.001 26,32 6.347.603 25,20
Servlces 2.937.242 18,38 6.898.215 21.05 2.791.833 21,64 5.097.488 20,25

Wholesaleand retail trade 1.351.946 8,65 2.632.317 8,03 1.171.783 9,08 2.327.424 9.24
Hotel food and beverage seMces 118.296 0,74 303.617 0,93 120.130 0,93 136.859 0.54
Transpodation and

telecommunicafion 363.853 2,28 1.570.946 4,79 332.783 2,58 568.268 2,26
Financial institutions 340.457 2,13 1.365.876 4,17 722.895 5,60 1.066.851 4.24
Real estate and rentingseMces 248.093 1,55 306.883 0,94 144.743 1,12 419.479 1,67
Self-employement seMces - . . .

Educafion seMces 18.842 0,12 3.697 0,01 18.745 0.15 4.124 0,02
Health and social seMces 465.755 2,91 714.879 2,18 280.754 2,18 574.483 2,28

Other 1.871.219 11,72 3.086.542 9,42 1.127.284 8,75 2.329.206 9,24

Total 15.983.223 100,00 32.773.616 100,00 12.898.958 100,00 25.188.958 100.00
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{Convenience ıranslation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turkişh, sea in nota 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta cansalidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Explanations and notes related ta consolidated financial statements (continued)

30H) Information on non-oash Ioans classified in Group 1. and Group Il:

30v)

(1) The distdbulion is based on the original maturities.
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Current Period Group 1 Group Il
TL FC TL FC

Non-casb Ioans
Letters of guarantee 1 5.593.060 22.007.956 320.358 73.838
Bank acceptances 124.663 - 2.319
Letters of credit 3 7.857.458 - 2.372
Endorsements . - -

Underwriting commitments . - . -

Factoring guamntees . - . -

Other commitments and
contingencies 69.802 2.698.440 - 6.570

Total 15.662.865 32.688.517 320.358 85.099

Prior Period Graup 1 Groupj
TL FC TL FC

Non-cash loans
Letters of guarantee 12.663.136 14.776.419 155.264 52.480
Bankacceptances 118.517 169
Lettem of oredit 1.208 6.709.273
Endorsements . -

Undeıwriting commitments . - -

Factoring guarantees . - . -

Other commitmenta and
contingencies 79.350 3.532.100 . -

Total 12.743.694 25.136.309 155.264 52.649

Maturity distribution of non cash loans:

Upto 1-5 Above
Current Perlodt1> Indeflnite 1 yaar years 5 years Total

Letter of oredit 4.991.798 2,361.487 506.243 305 7.859.833
Letter of guarantee 32.914.935 310.385 4,114.862 655.030 37.995,212
Bank acceptances 126.639 343 . - 126,982
Other 702.860 120.775 1.366.233 584.944 2.774.812

Total 38.736.232 2.792.990 5.987.338 1.240.279 48.756.839

Up to 1-5 Above
Prior Periodi> Indefinite 1 yaar years 5 years Total

Letter of oredit 4.200.894 2.203.350 305.441 796 6.710.481
Leller of guarantee 14.985.676 3.699.173 8.030.583 931.867 27.647.299
Bank acceptances 118.686 - - 118.686
Other 328.556 1.731.701 1.156.224 394.969 3.611.450

Total 19.633.812 7.634.224 9.492248 1.327£32 36.087.916



(Convenlence translatian of publiciy announced consalidated financial statements originaliy issuad
in Turkish, sea in nota 1. of sectian three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consalidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (cantinued)
(Unless atherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Explanations and notes related ta cansalidated financial statements (continued)

b. Infarmation an derivative financial instruments:

Current Period Prior Period

Types of trading transactions
Foreign currency related derivative transactions (1) 95.117.720 87.093.268

FC trading forward transactions 7.119.997 9.463.616
Trading swap transactions 78.505.376 64.982.398
Futures transactions
Trading option transactions 9.492.347 12.647.254

Interest related dedvative transactions (Il) 23.052.540 15.426.976
Forward interest rate agreements - -

Interest rate swaps 15.959.242 10.566.324
Interest rate options 7.093.298 4.860.652
Interest rate futures - -

Other trading derivative transactions (ili) 9.343.196 2.482.678

A. Tatal trading derivative transactions (1+11+111) 127.513.456 105.002.922

Types of hedging derivative transactions
Transactions for fair value hedge 1.180.422 2.610.975
Cash flow hedges 40.767.075 35.017.718
Transactions for foreign net investment hedge -

B. Total hedging related derivatives 41.947.497 37.628.693

Tatal derivative transactions (A+B) 169.460.953 142.631.615

c. Informatian on credit derivatives and risk expasures:

Derivative portfolio of the Group inoludes oredit default swaps for TL 1.217.430 for the period
ended December 31, 2014. Credit default swaps linked ta credit link notes are for the purposes
protection seller and inaluded in this figure (December 31, 2013— TL 1.210.160>.

ç. Infarmatian an cantingent Iiabilities and assets:

The Group has recorded a provision of TL 81.056 (December 31, 2013 — TL 68.691) for
litigations against the Group and has accounted for it in accompanying consolidated the
financial statements under the “Other provisions” account. Except for the claims where
provisions are recorded, management considers as remote the probability of e negative result in
ongoing litigations and therefore does not foresee any cash outflows for such olaim.

d. Infarmatian an services in the name and account of athers:

The Group’s activities such as intermediation and custody to serve the investment needs of
customers are followed up under off balance sheet accounts.
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(Convenlence translation ot pubilciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turkish, see in nate 1. af section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amaunts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (‘TL”))

Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

IV. Explanations and notes related to consolidated income statement:

a. Information on interest income:

1. Information on interest income on bana:

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC

Short-term Ioans<” 4.025.822 262.885 3.244.278 219.177
Medium/Iong-term banat1> 3.787.374 1.737.098 2.901.328 1.305.086
Interest on boans under follow-up 100.029 533 104.305 2.408
Premiums received from
resource utilisation support fund - - - -

Total 7.913.225 2.000.516 6.249.911 1.526.671

(1) Includes fees and commissions received for cash ıoans,

2. Information on interest income on banka:

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC

From the CBRT - - - -

From domestic banks 102.265 10 75.974 9.747
From foreign banks 5.047 15.629 3.480 17.087
Headquarters and branches abroad - - - -

Total 107.312 15.639 79.454 26.834

3. Information on interest income on marketable securities:

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC

From trading financial assets 2.143 1.235 8.451 2.695
From financial assets at fair value through

profit or boss - - -

From available-for-sale financial assets 1.215.336 203.432 726.968 377.084
From held-to-maturityinvestments 239.032 199.986 266.457 158.184

Total 1.456.511 404.653 1.001.876 537.963

4. Information on interest income received from associates and subsidiaries:
Current Period Prior Period

Interesta received from associates and subsidiaries 4.534 2.824
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in Turkiah, sea in nota 1. of seotion three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts ara expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Explanations and notes related ta consolidated financial statements (continued)

b. Information on interest expense:

1. Information on interest expense on borrowings:

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC

Banks 134.228 708.634 94.565 683.336
The CBRT - - - -

Domesticbanks 46.169 9.536 36.690 11.975
Foreign banks 88.059 699.098 57.875 671.361
Headquarters and branches abroad - - - -

Other institutions 20 8.125 - 364

TotaV’> 134.248 716.759 94.565 683.700

(1) Inciudes foos and commissions rolatod ta borrowings.

2. Information on interest expense to associates and subsidiaries:
Current Period Prior Period

interests paid ta associates and subsidiades 1.463 1.188

3. Information on interest expense to marketable securities issued:

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC

Interest expense to marketable
securities issued 242.454 271,428 121.263 148.959

Total 242.454 271.428 121.263 148.959

4. Maturity structure of the interest expense on deposits:

More
Demand Up to 1 Up to 3 Up taS Up ta 1 than Cumutetive Prior

Account neme depasit monliı months months yaar 1 yaar deposit Totaı Period

TL
Bank deposit 294 9,677 398 135 2691 . 13,195 13.685
Saving deposit 1 76.397 1.916.995 85.047 38.918 17.091 ‘ 2.136.449 1.580.452
Pubic sectordeposit 32 2.895 51 45 3.023 795
Commercial deposit 44 174.465 854.749 137.599 48.224 8.540 ‘ 1.223.621 808.536
Other deposU 10.258 283.170 37.040 114.743 512 - 445.723 351.795
Deposu with 7 days
notification - - . . . - -

Totaı 339 270.829 3.060.207 259.872 204.621 26.143 . 3.822.011 2.755.263

FC
Foreign currency
deposit 3.135 171.952 583.707 43.798 33.526 86.911 ‘ 923.029 776.673
Bankdeposit 87 4.299 4.557 5.415 10.302 1.086 ‘ 25.746 23.076
Deposit wuih 7 days
notufication . . -

Precious metat vautt 649 1.451 137 231 33 - 2.501 2.665

Totaı 3.222 176.900 589.715 49.350 44.059 88.030 951.276 802.414

Grand total 3.561 447.729 3.649.922 309.222 248.680 114.173 - 4.773.287 3.557.677
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Explanations and notes related ta consolidated financial statements (continued)

c. Information on dividend income:

ç.

d. Information on gam/tass from derivative financial transactions:

The amount of net income from derivative financial transactions related to exchange rate
changes is TL 707.009 (December 31, 2013 . TL 2.213.911 bas).

e. information on other operating income:

Other operating income mainiy results trom collections trom provisions recorded as expense,
release of provisions and sale of fixed assets.
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Current Period Prior Period

Trading financial assets - -

Financial assets al fair value through profit or bas -

Avaibable-for-sale financiab assets 32 3.235
Other 9.319 12.008

Total 9.351 15.243

Information on trading gainfloss (net>:

Current Period Prior Period

Gam 37037.115 30.378.541
Gam trom capital market transactions 31 0.974 630.378
Derivative tinancial transaction gains 8.269.427 10.527.461
Foreign exchange gains 28.456.714 19.220.702
Loss(-) (37.273.769) (29.990.815>
Loss <rom capital market transactions (32.173) (58.559>
Derivative tinancial transaction losses (9.548.672) (8.915.394)
Foreign exchange boss (27.692.924> (21.016.862)

Net gainlloss (236.654) 387.726
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

f. Provision for impairment of bana and other receivables:

g.

Current Period

1.321.488
47.437

130.539
1.143.512

467.753
25.256
55.459

565
54.894

35.360

35.360
33.413

Prior Period

1.158.549
33.343
69.695

1.055.511
233.042

57.854
31.124

1.436
29.688

32,081

32.081
39.471
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E,

Specific provisions for loans and other receivables
ili. Group Ioans and receivables
IV. Group bana and receivables
V. Group bana and receivables

General provision expenses
Provision expense for possibbe risks
Marketable securities impairment expensest

Financial assets at fair value through profit or asa
Available-for-sale financial assets

Impairment of investments in associates, subsidiaries and heid
to-maturity securities

Investments in associates
Subsidiaries
doint ventures
HeId-to-maturity investmentst1’

Other

Total 1.938.729 1.552.121

(1> Includes amortisation of the premiums paid during the purehase of the securities throughout the maturity of the
securities and the impairment provisions, if any.

Information related to other operating expenses:

Current Period Prior Period

Personnel expenses 1.710.692 1.456.388
Reseıve for empboyee termination benefits 520 7.652
Provision expense for pension fund - -

lmpairment expenses of property and equipment - -

Depreciation expenses of property and equipment 167.712 164.747
lmpairment expenses of intangible assets - -

Goodwill impairment expenses - -

Amortisation expenses of intangible assets 110.151 80.594
Impairment expenses of equity participations for which equity
method is applied - -

Impairment expenses of assets heid for resabe 566 302
Depreciation expenses of assets heid for resale 4.958 4.586
lmpairment expenses of fixed assets heid for sale and assets
related to discontinued operations - -

Other operating expenses 1.400.631 1.193.135
Operational lease expenses 205.467 172.856
Repair and maintenance expenses 83.428 68.083

Advertising expenses 136.166 114.012
Other expense 975.570 838.184

Loss on sales of assets 32.400 304
Other 718.651 635.638

Total 4.146.281 3.543.346



(Convenience translatlon of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements odginally Issued
in Turkish, see in note 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Explanations and notes related ta consolidated financial statements (continued)

. Explanations on income/Ioss from continuing operations and discontinued operations
before tax:

Income before tax includes net interest income amounting to TL 5.973.300 (December 31, 2013
-TL 5.066.435), net lee and commission income amounting to TL 2.343.015 (December 31,
2013 - TL 2.136.188) and total other operating expense amounting TL 4.146.281 (December
31, 2013- TL 3.543.346).

As of December 31, 2014, the Group has no profit before taxes 1mm discontinued operations
(December 31, 2013— TL 1.407.797).

h. Provision for taxes on incame from continuing operations and discontinued operations:

As of December 31, 2014, the Group has current tax expense amounting to TL 784.504
(December 31, 2013 - TL 223.229) and deferred tax income amounting to TL 172.108
(December 31, 2013- TL 406.573 deferred tax expense).

1.

As at December 31, 2014 the Group has no current and deffered tax income /
to discontinued operations (December 31, 2013 — TL 81.785 current tax
deffered tax income / expense).

(expense) related
expense and no

1 Other items in income statement:

‘Other fees and commissions received in income statement mainiy includes commissions and
fees from credit cards and banking transactions.
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Current Period Prior Period

Prof it before tax 2.668.578 4.370.776
Tax calculated at rate of 20% 533.716 874.155
Nondeductible expenses, discounts and other, net 78.680 (162.568)

Total 612,396 711.587

Information on net incomelloss for the periad:

1. The characteristics, dimension and recurrence of income or expense items arising from
ordinary banking transactions do not require any additional explanation to understand the
Group’s current period performance.

2. Information on any change in the accounting estimates concerning the current period or
future periods: None

Income/Ioss of minority interest:

Current Period Prior Period

Income/(Ioss) of minority interest 167 237
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkisb Lira (‘TL’»

Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

V. Expianations and notes related ta consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

a. Information on dividends;

Authorised body for profit appropriation of the current period is General Assembiy. As of the
preparation dale of these financial statements, annual ordinary meeting of the General
Assembiy has not been heid yet.

b. Information on increase!decrease amounts resulting from merger:

None.

c. information on increase/decrease amounts resulting from merger:

“Unrealised gain/loss” arising from changes in the fair value of securities classified as available
for-sale are not recognized in ourrent year income statement but recognized in the “Marketable
securities valuation differences” account under equity, until the financial assets are
derecognised, sold, disposed or impaired.

ç. Kedging transactions:

The Parent Bank has begun to apply cash flow hedge accounting in order to hedge the risk of
cash t Iow of its Iiabilities from January 1, 2010. in the scope of this application, the derivative
financial instruments are specified as floating rate and fixed rate interest payment USD, EUR
and TL interest rate swaps, hedging Iiabilities as the USD, EUR and TL customer deposits,
repos, cash outflows due to re-pricing of loans because of the expected interest rate financing.
In this context, fair value change of the effective portion of derivative financial instruments
accounted in equity hedge funds, taking into account tax effects. Such amount as of December
31,2014 is TL 297.009 loss (December 31 2013— TL 115.117 loss).

The Group hedges part of the currency translation risk of net investments in foreign operations
through foreign currenoy borrowings. The Group’s Euro denominated borrowing is designated
as a hedge of the net investment in the Group’s certain EUR denominated subsidiaries. The
total amount of the borrowing designated as a hedge of the net investment at December 31,
2014 is EUR 275 million (December 31, 2013- EUR 275 million). The foreign exchange Ioss of
TL 215.653 (December 31, 2013- TL 241.119 foreign exchange bas), net of tax, on translation
of the borrowing to TL at the statement of financial position dale is recognized in “hedging
reserves” in equity.

d. Information on share issue premium:

Explained in details in Note XIX of Section Three.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

Vi. Explanations and notes related to consolidated statement of cash t Iows

a. Intormation on cash and cash equivalent:

1. Components of cash and cash equivalents and the accounting policy applied in their
determination:

Cash and foreign currency balances together with demand deposits at banks including
the unrestricted amounts of CBRT are defined as “Cash”; money market placements and
time deposits in banks with original maturities of Iess than three months are defined as
‘Cash Equivalents”.

2. Effect ot a ohange in the accounting policies: None.

3. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalent items with balance sheet and cash f 10w
statements:

3 (i). Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period:

Current Period Prior Period

Cash 5.397.292 5.386,164
Cash and effectives 1.806.589 1.546.923
Demand deposits in banks 3.590.703 3.839.241

Cash equivalents 5.083.136 5.446.125
Interbank money market 2.922.052 2.768.409
Deposits in bank 2.161.084 2.677.716

Total cash and cash eguivalents 10.480.428 10.832.289

3 (İi). Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period:

Current Period Prior Period

Cash 7.840.395 5.397.292
Cash and effectives 2.281.092 1.806.589
Demand deposits in banks 5.559.303 3.590.703

Cash equivalents 3.186.301 5.083.136
Interbank money market 1.567.096 2.922.052
Deposits in bank 1.619.205 2.161 .084

Total cash and cash equivalents 11.026.696 10.480.428

b. Information on cash and cash equivalents those are not in use due to legal limitations
and other reasons:

As of December 31, 2014, the Group’s reserve deposits, inciuding those at foreign banks and
the TL reserve requirements, amount to TL 20.785.117 (December 31,2013 - TL 17.068.838).
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Expianations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

c. Expianations on other items in the statement of cash fiows and the effects of the change
in foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents:

Deorease in “Other account” amounting to TL 314.960 (December 31, 2013 — TL 4.784.185
decrease) which is ciassified under “Operating profit before changes in operating assets and
iiabilities” includes lee and commissions giyen, other operating expenses excluding personnei
expenses and foreign exchange gainsİlosses,

Inorease in ‘Net increase/decrease in other Iiabilities” amounting to TL 2.992.156 (December
31, 2013 - TL 837,563 increase) which is ciassified under “Changes in operating assets and
iiabilities” mainiy arises 1 rom changes in miscellaneous payables, subordinated ioans and other
iiabilities.

The effects of the change in foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents are
calculated as an increase approximately of TL 121.307 as of December 31, 2014 (December
31, 2013- TL 836.133 decrease).

Vii. Expianations and notes reiated to Group’s merger, transfers and companies acquired by Bank

None.

Vii!. Expianations and notes related to Group’s risk group

a. The volume of transactions reiating to the Group’s risk group, outstanding ban and
deposit transactions and prof it and Ioss of the period:

1. Information on bana of the Group’s risk group:

Direct and indirecı Other real and ıegaı
Associates, subsidiaries shareholders of the persons that hava been

Current Period and bini ventures Group incıuded in the risk group
Group’s risk group t’>”> Cash Non’cash Cash Non-cash Cash Non-cash

Loans and other receivabtes
Balance at the beginning ot the period 68.320 3.769 127.213 450,294 903.056 1.029.707
Balance at the end ot the pedod 88.339 5.916 47.956 536.763 1.320.617 2.117.169

Interest and commission income received 4.534 57 5.065 4.100 112.997 10.095

(1> Defined in subsection 2 of the 49th artiole of the Banking Act No. 5411.
(2> The information in tabte above inoludes toanş and due from banks as welt as marketable secudties.

Dlrect and indirect Other real and ıegaı
Associates, subsidlaries sharehoıders of the persons that have been

Prbor Period and joint ventures flank Incıuded in the risk group
Groups risk group ‘“‘ Cash Non-cash Cash Non-cash Cash Non-cash

Loans and other receivabtes
Batance et the beginning ot the pedod 35.480 2.559 361.814 403.915 777.335 937.437
Balanoe at the end ot the pedod 88.320 3.769 127.213 450.294 903.056 1.029.707

ınterest and commission Income received<’t 2.824 30 9.817 2.348 65.738 13,047

(1) Dotined in subseotion 2 of the 49th adicto of Banking Act No. 5411.
(2) The information in tablo above includes loans and due from banks as wett as marketabte seourities.
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Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

2. Information on deposits of the Group’s risk group:

Other reaı and ıegat
Assoclates, subsidiaries Dlrect and Indirect persons that have been

Group’s risk group tlH2t and jolnt ventures sharehoıders of the Bank inctuded in the risk graup
Deposlt Current Period Prior Period Current Period Prior Period Current Period Prior Period

Beginning ot the pedod 6,688 15.788 15.480464 8.646.705 6.544.935 8339.879
End of the period 121.840 6.688 13.660.682 15.480.464 10.291.156 6.544.935
Interest expense on
deposits 1.463 1.188 581.190 443.293 304.426 264.308

(1) Defined in subsection 2 of the 49th article of the Banking Aot Na. 5411.
(2) The information in table above inoludes borrowings, marketabte seourities issued and repo transaotions as wett

as deposits.

3. Information on forward and option agreements and other derivative instruments with the
Group’s risk group:

Other reel and legal
Associates, subsidiarles Direct and indirect persons that have been

Group’s risk group and jolnt ventures shareholders ot the Bank inoluded in the risk group
Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior
Period Period Period Period Period Period

Transactlons at fair vatue through
profit or loss<31

Beginning ot the pedod (3 .

- 442.253 300.627 659.635 432.403
End of the pedod . - 150.569 442.253 879.327 659.635

Total profit/loss <11.463) 57 (1.830) 12.415 (75.049) (32.013)

Transactions tor hedging
purposes<2>
Beginning ot the pedod’ - - -

End ot the period’ . .

Total proflt / loss’’ - . - . -

(1) Defined in subsection 2 ot the 49th aflicte of the Banking Act No. 5411.
(2) The Banks dedvative instmments are ctassified as “Financiat instruments et tair value through profit or toss or “Dedvative

tinanciat instruments hetd for hedging’ according to TAS 39.
(3) The balances at the beginning and end of the periods are disclosed as the totat of buy and set amounts ot derivative financiat

instruments.

b. Information regarding benefits provided to the Group’s top management:

Salaries and benefits paid to the Group’s top management amount to TL 40.723 as ot
December 31, 2014 (December 31, 2012 - TL 43.220).

IX. Explanations and notes related to the domestic, foreign, off-shore branches or associates and
foreign representatives of the Bank<l>:

Number of
Number plo,yeçs

Domestic Branch 1 1.002 17.454
Country ot

incorporation

ForeignRep.Office

____________________

Total Statutory
assets sharecapitaı

Foreign Branch 1 3 Bah reyn 777 ?...
Öff-SheBankijReğionch 1 -f

(1) The values disctosed above are those of the Parent Bank.
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(Convenience translation ot publiciy announced consolidatod tinancial statements originaliy issued
in Turkish, see in nota 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes to consolidated financial statements December 31, 2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts are expressed in thousands ot Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Explanations and notes related to consolidated financial statements (continued)

X. Explanations and notes related to subsequent events

in accordance with the decision taken in the Board of Directors Meeting heid on January 19, 2015, it
was decided to establish a company, with a paid-in capital amount up to 5.000.000 fulI TL paid by the
Bank, which operates in information technology sector and provides sottware development,
research/development and consultancy activities in Istanbul Teknik Universitesi ARI Teknokent
Teknoloji Geliştirme Bölgesi and it was decided to authorize the Head Ouarter of the Bank in order to
apply for relevant regulatory approvals and authorizations.

rt rrrC
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(Convenience translation of publiciy announced consolidated financial statements originaliy issued
in Turklsh, see in nota 1. of section three)

Yapı ve Kredi Bankası A.Ş.
Notes ta consolidated financial statements December 31,2014 (continued)
(Unless otherwise stated amounts ara expressed in thousands af Turkish Lira (“TL”))

Sectian six

Other Explanations and Nates

Other explanations on Group’s operations

None

Section Seven

Explanations an independent audit report

Explanations an independent auditor’s report

The consolidated financial statements for the period ended December 31, 2014 have been audited by
Güney Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş. (A member t irm of Ernst Sc
Young GIoba Limited). The independent auditors report dated February 2, 2015 is presented
preceding the consolidated financial statements.

Explanations and notes prepared by independent auditor

None.
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